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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

Whirlpool Corporation, the world’leading global manufacturer and marketer of mlagone appliances, was incorporated in 1955 (
the laws of Delaware as the successor to a busihastraces its origin to 1898. Whirlpool manutaes products in 1&ountries and marke
products in nearly every country around the wondler brand names such airlpool, Maytag, KitchenAid, Jenair, Amana, Bauknecl
BrastemgandConsul. Whirlpool's reportable segments consist of North Americanlamerica, EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africajd
Asia. As of December 31, 2013, Whirlpool had apprately 69,000 employees.

As used herein, and except where the context otkemequires, “Whirlpool,” “we,” “us,” and “ourtefer to Whirlpool Corporation a
its consolidated subsidiaries.

Products and Markets

Whirlpool manufactures and markets a full line odjor home appliances and related products. Ourcipah products are launc
appliances, refrigerators and freezers, cookindiamges, dishwashers, mixers and other portablesdtmald appliances. We also proc
hermetic compressors for refrigeration systems.

The following table provides the percentage ofsadés for each class of products which accounted@® or more of our consolidas
net sales over the last three years:

2013 2012 2011
Laundry Appliances 29% 30% 30%
Refrigerators and Freezers 29% 30% 30%
Cooking Appliances 18% 17% 17%
Other 24% 23% 23%
Net Sales 10(% 10(% 100%

In North America, Whirlpool markets and distributesjor home appliances and portable appliancesrumgariety of brand names.
the United States, we market and distribute pradpdimarily under th&Vhirlpool , Maytag, KitchenAid, Jenn-Air, Amana, Roper, Estate
Admiral, Affreshand Gladiator brand names primarily to retailers, distributors! dwilders. In Canada, we market and distributeomiapme
appliances primarily under theaglis , Admiral , Whirlpool , Maytag, Jenn-Air, Amana, Roper, Estateand KitchenAidbrand names.
Mexico, we market and distribute major home apmi&nprimarily under th&vhirlpool , Maytag, Acros, KitchenAidand Supermatidoranc
names. We sell some products to other manufactulessibutors, and retailers for resale in Nortiéyica under those manufactureasic
retailers’ respective brand names.

In Latin America, we market and distribute our nmdjome appliances primarily under tB@nsul, Brastemp, WhirlpoglKitchenAid
Maytag and Eslabén de Lujdrand names. We manage appliance sales and disinbn Brazil, Argentina, Chile and Peru througtr
Brazilian subsidiary, and in Bolivia, Paraguay dddiguay through our distributors. We manage appbarales and distribution in -
Caribbean, Central American countries, VenezuelalofBbia, Guatemala and Ecuador through our Brawikabsidiary and throu
distributors.

In EMEA, we market and distribute our major homelemces primarily under thé/hirlpool, Bauknecht Ignis, Maytag, Laden Polar
andPrivileg brand names, and major and portable appliances timel€itchenAidbrand name. In addition to our operations in WesEurope
we have sales subsidiaries in Russia, Ukraine, Biyndoland, the Czech Republic, Slovakia, RomaBidgaria, Latvia, Estonia, Lithuan
Croatia, Morocco, Serbia, and Dubai. We marketdisttibute a full line of products under tii¢hirlpool, KIC andlgnis brand names in Sot
Africa. Our European operations also market antibdige products under th&hirlpool, Bauknechtandlgnis brand names to distributors ¢
dealers in Africa and the Middle East.

In Asia, we have organized the marketing and distidbn of our major home appliances into five ogiagagroups: (1) mainland Chir
(2) Hong Kong and Taiwan; (3) India, which includgasngladesh, Sri Lanka, Nepal and Pakistan; (4p6iee which includes Australia, Ni
Zealand and Pacific Islands; and (5) Southeast, Adigch includes Thailand, Singapore, Malaysiaoimesia, Vietnam, the Philippines, Kol
Myanmar and Japan. We market and distribute owlymts in Asia primarily under thé/hirlpool , Maytag, KitchenAid, Amana, Bauknec
andJenn-Airbrand names through a combination of direct salesppliance retailers and chain stores and thréuigfservice distributors to
large network of retail stores.




Competition

Competition in the major home appliance industrintsnse, including competitors such as Arceliks&o Siemens, Electrolux, Gene
Electric, Haier, Indesit, Kenmore, LG, Mabe and Sang, many of whom are increasingly expanding bdythieir existing manufacturil
footprint. Moreover, our customer base includegdasophisticated trade customers who have mangashand demand competitive prodt
services and prices. Competition in our marketisaised upon a wide variety of factors, includindirsglprice, product features and des
performance, innovation, energy efficiency, qualitgst, distribution and financial incentives. Tadmancial incentives include coopera
advertising, canarketing funds, salesperson incentives, volumeatesband terms. We believe that we can best competee currer
environment by focusing on introducing new and wative products, building strong brands, enhang¢iage customer and consumer vi
with our product offerings, continuing to expand global footprint, expanding trade distributionacimels, increasing productivity, improv
quality, lowering costs, and taking other efficigranhancing measures.

Raw Materials and Purchased Components

We are generally not dependent upon any one séorcaw materials or purchased components essdat@lr business. In areas wk
a single supplier is used, alternative sourcegjanerally available and can be developed withinnivenal manufacturing environment. Sc
unanticipated costs may be incurred in transitignio a new supplier if a prior single supplier tiglaship were abruptly interrupted
terminated. Supply constraints due to environmentghcts such as hurricanes and floods have ratjthie qualification and use of alterr
materials, some of which were at premium costs béleeve such raw materials and components willalable in adequate quantities to n
forecasted production schedules.

Trademarks, Licenses and Patents

We consider the trademarks, licenses and patentsumgin the aggregate, to be a valuable assetrlpgbi is the owner of a number
trademarks in the United States and foreign coemtThe most important trademarks to North Amesica\Whirlpool , Maytag, Jenn-Air,
KitchenAid, Amana,andAcros. The most important trademarks to Latin America@onsul, Brastemp, WhirlpoalindKitchenAid. The mos
important trademarks to EMEA akhirlpool , KitchenAid, Bauknechand Ignis . The most important trademark to AsiaVighirlpool . We
receive royalties from licensing our trademarkshiod parties to sell and service certain prodigtaring thewhirlpool, Maytag, KitchenAi
andAmanabrand names. We continually apply for and obtaiitéthStates and foreign patents. The primary pwpo®btaining patents is
protect our designs and technologies.

Research and Development

Expenditures for research and development relatingew and innovative products and the improvenoéngxisting products we
approximately $582 million , $553 million and $5#llion in 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Protection of the Environment

Our manufacturing facilities are subject to numertaws and regulations designed to protect or esghtire environment, many of wh
require federal, state, or other governmental Besnand permits with regard to wastewater disckargie emissions, and hazardous w
management. Our policy is to comply with all suatv$ and regulations. Where laws and regulationdeaeerestrictive, we have establis
and are following our own standards, consisterth witr commitment to environmental responsibility.

We believe that we are in compliance, in all maferespects, with presently applicable governmemt@visions relating 1
environmental protection in the countries in whiske have manufacturing operations. Compliance witbsé environmental laws &
regulations has not had a material effect on chekpenditures, earnings, or our competitive positiluring 2013 and are not expected t
material in 2014,

The entire major home appliance industry, includiigirlpool, must contend with the adoption of dicgovernmental energy &
environmental standards. These standards will lasgahin over the next several years and includegyéineral phase-out of ozodepleting
chemicals used in refrigeration, energy standantisnrakings for selected major appliances, regujatestrictions on the materials cont
specified for use in our products by some jurisditt, and mandated recycling of our products aetia of their useful lives. Compliance v
these various standards, as they become effegtillagquire some product redesign. However, wadyel, based on our understanding of
current state of proposed regulations, that welvélhble to develop, manufacture, and market ptedhat comply with these regulations.

State and federal environmental protection ager@ee notified us of our possible involvement intember of “Superfundsites in th
United States. However, based upon our evaluatfothe facts and circumstances relating to theses silong with the evaluation of «
technical consultants, we do not presently antteigany material adverse effect upon our earnirigan€ial condition, or competitive positi
arising out of the resolution of these mattersher resolution of any other known governmental pedagg regarding environmental protec
matters.




Other Information

For information about the challenges and risks @ased with our foreign operations, see “Risks Refpato Our Businesstunde
Item 1A below.

For certain other financial information concerniagr business segments and foreign and domestiatipes, see Note 1B the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

For information on our global restructuring pla@msd the impact of these plans on our operating eatgn see Note 1€ the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth the names and ag@sioexecutive officers on February 7, 2014, thsitions and offices they held on t
date, and the year they first became executiveeri

First Became
an Executive

Name Office Officer Age
Jeff M. Fettig Director, Chairman of the Board and Chief Execu®fécer 1994 5€
Michael A. Todman Director and President, Whirlpool International 2001 56
Marc R. Bitzer President, Whirlpool North America and EMEA 2006 49
Esther M. Berrozpe Executive Vice President and President, WhirlpddEA 2013 44
Jodo C. Brega Executive Vice President and President, Whirlpcatir. America 2012 5C
David T. Szczupak Executive Vice President, Global Product Organirati 2008 58
Larry M. Venturelli Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office 2012 53

The executive officers named above were electedunyBoard of Directors to serve in the office irated until the first meeting of t
Board of Directors following the annual meetingsbbckholders in 2014 and until a successor is chasel qualified or until the execut
officer's earlier resignation or removal. Each of executive officers has held the position sethfan the table above or has served Whirl,
in various executive or administrative capacitiasdt least the past five years.

Available Information

Financial results and investor information (inchgliwhirlpool’'s Form 10-K, 10-Q, and 8-K reports)eaaccessible at Whirlpoal’
website; www.whirlpoolcorp.com- click on “Investors” and then click on “SEC Fija.” Copies of our Form 10-K, 10-Q, and8eports an
amendments, if any, are available free of chargeutih our website on the same day they are filetl,var furnished to, the Securities
Exchange Commission.




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS .

This report contains statements referring to Whinlghat are not historical facts and are consudiéferward-looking statementskithin
the meaning of the Private Securities LitigatioridRea Act of 1995. These statements, which are ui¢elto take advantage of the “safe harbo
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Refi Act of 1995, are based on current projectiobsué operations, industry conditio
financial condition and liquidity. Words that iddwgt forward-looking statements include words such“enay,” “could,” “will,” “should,”
“possible,” “plan,” “predict,” “forecast,” “potendil,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project,”intend,” “believe,” “may impact,” “on track,”
and words and terms of similar substance usednnexion with any discussion of future operatindioancial performance, a merger, or
businesses. In addition, any statements that tefexxpectations, projections, or other charactdoma of future events or circumstant
including any underlying assumptions, are forwknoking statements. Those statements are not ge@srand are subject to ris
uncertainties, and assumptions that are diffiaulptedict. Therefore, actual results could diffeatenially and adversely from these forward
looking statements. These risks and uncertaintigsde, but are not limited to, the following:

” o " ou " ou ” w ” w

Risks Relating to Our Business

We face intense competition in the major home apmhce industry and failure to successfully compete ay negatively affect ou
business and financial performance.Each of our operating segments operates in ayhigithpetitive business environment and faces ie
competition from a growing number of competitorsgny of which have strong consumer brand equitye&dwf these competitors, suct
Bosch Siemens, Electrolux, General Electric, Hdi&, Panasonic and Samsung are large, eatblished companies, many ranking an
the Global Fortune 150, and have demonstrated andmnent to success in the global market. Moreower, customer base includes la
sophisticated trade customers who have many cha@odsdemand competitive products, services andceqri€ompetition in the glot
appliance market is based on a number of factarsiding selling price, product features and desjggrformance, innovation, reputati
energy efficiency, quality, cost, distribution, afidancial incentives, such as cooperative adviagiscoimarketing funds, sales per:
incentives, volume rebates and terms. Many of ounpetitors are increasingly expanding beyond tagisting manufacturing footprints. C
competitors, especially global competitors with {owst sources of supply and/or highly protected homaekets outside, have aggressi
priced their products and/or introduced new prosltictincrease market share and expand into newggloigs. If we are unable to success
compete in this highly competitive environment, business and financial performance could be neggtaffected.

The loss of or substantial decline in sales to arof our key trade customers, which include Lowe's, &rs, Home Depot, hhgreg:
Best Buy, GPA -Grupo Pdo De Acucar, lkea, Alno, Suning, major buyig groups, and builders, could adversely affect oufinancial
performance. We sell to a sophisticated customer base of ltage customers that have significant leverageugers over their supplie
Most of our products are not sold through Idagn contracts, which facilitates the trade custsireility to change volume among suppli
As the trade customers continue to become larlyey, may seek to use their position to improve thaifitability by various means, includi
improved efficiency, lower pricing, and increasemrmotional programs. If we are unable to meet tldeimand requirements, our volu
growth and financial results could be negativelgeted. The loss of, or substantial decline in wwduof, sales to Lowe's, Sears, Home Dt
hhgregg, Best Buy, GPAGrupo P&o De Acucar, lkea, Alno, Suning, major hgygroups or builders, or any other trade custorgevghich we
sell a significant amount of products, could adebrsaffect our financial performance. Additionallthe loss of market share or finan
difficulties, including bankruptcy and financialsteucturing, by these trade customers could haweaterial adverse effect on our liquid
financial position and results of operations.

We face risks associated with our acquisitions andther investments. From time to time, we make strategic acquisitions
participate in joint ventures. These transacticars iovolve significant challenges and risks, inahgdthat the transaction does not advanct
business strategy or fails to produce a satisfgaurn on our investment. We may encounter diffies in integrating acquisitions with ¢
operations, and in managing strategic investméntghermore, we may not realize the degree, ontymdf benefits we anticipate when we 1
enter into a transaction. While our evaluation 0§ @otential acquisition includes business, legal &inancial due diligence with the goal
identifying and evaluating the material risks inxed, we may be unsuccessful in ascertaining owuatialg all such risks.

Our growth plans include efforts to increase rewefram emerging markets, including through acqaisg. Local business practice:
these markets may not comply with U.S. laws, Id@ais or other laws applicable to usour compliance policies, including the requirarhic
comply with all laws, are not followed, such noompliant practices may result in increased ligpitisks. For example, our anticipa
acquisition of a 51 percent equity stake in Hefengshida Sanyo Electric Co., Ltd ("Hefei Sanyo"puld expand our international operati
and thus increase our exposure to certain risksceged with operating internationally. See Notetd%he Consolidated Financial Statem
for additional information regarding the Hefei Saracquisition.




Changes in economic conditions could adversely affiedemand for our products. A number of economic factors, including, but
limited to, gross domestic product, availability @dnsumer credit, interest rates, consumer sentimet debt levels, retail trends, hou
starts, sales of existing homes, the level of nagégrefinancing and defaults, fiscal and credit keauncertainty, and foreign currel
exchange rates, generally affect demand for ouduyms. Higher unemployment rates, higher fuel atiteroenergy costs, higher def
spending and debt levels, and higher tax ratesraelyeaffect demand. A decline in economic actidtyd conditions in the United States, L
America, Europe and the other markets in which ywerate have had an adverse effect on our finanoradition and results of operations
recent years, and future declines and adverse ttmmglicould have a similar adverse effect.

Product liability or product recall costs could adwersely affect our business and financial performare We are subject to the risk
exposure to product liability and product recalials if any of our products are alleged to haveilted in injury to persons or damage
property. In the event that any of our products/prto be defective, we may need to recall and@esign such products. In addition, any cl
or product recall that results in significant acepublicity, particularly if those claims or rdsatause customers to question the safe
reliability of our products, may negatively affemtir business, financial condition, or results oémgions. We do maintain product liabi
insurance, but this insurance may not be adeqaatever losses related to product liability claibomeught against us. We may also be invo
in certain class action and other litigation, fani@gh no insurance is available. Product liabilingurance could become more expensive
difficult to maintain and may not be available amunercially reasonable terms, if at all. In addifieve do not maintain any product re
insurance. Therefore any product recall we areireduo initiate could have a significant impactaur operating results and/or cash flows.

We regularly engage in investigations of potergiglity and safety issues as part of our ongoifigrteio deliver quality products to ¢
customers. We are currently investigating a limiteidnber of potential quality and safety issues, andecessary, we undertake to effect r
or replacement of appliances. Actual costs of tliesges and any future issues depend upon sewetatd, including the number of consun
who respond to a particular recall, repair and aistriative costs, whether the cost of any correctigtion is borne initially by Whirlpool or t
supplier, and, if initially borne by Whirlpool, wtteer we will be successful in recovering our cdsten the supplier. The actual costs incu
as a result of these issues and any future issugd bave a material adverse effect on our busjdiesscial condition or results of operations.

We face inventory and other asset risk.We writedown product and component inventories that haeere obsolete or do not m
anticipated demand or net realizable value. We ads@w our longived and intangible assets for impairment wheneaxgants or chang
circumstances indicate the carrying amount of @etamay not be recoverable. If we determine thagirment has occurred, we record a write
down to adjust carrying value to fair value. Altighuwe believe our inventory and other asset relptedisions are currently adequate,
assurance can be given that, given the unpredéctaside of product obsolescence and business anslitiith trade customers and in gen
we will not incur additional inventory or assetatd charges. Such charges could materially adyeastect our financial condition al
operating results.

Risks associated with our international operationsnay decrease our revenues and increase our costar the year endeBecember 3:
2013 , we derived approximately 46% of our nets&lem outside of North America (which includes @da and Mexico), including 26%
Latin America, 16% in EMEA and 4% Asia. We expect that international sales wilhtioue to account for a significant percentagewfre
sales in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, waefaumerous risks associated with conducting iateynal operations, any of which co
negatively affect our financial performance. Theasks include the following:

» changes in foreign country regulatory requirem

« various import/export restrictions and the avallgbof required import/export license

« imposition of foreign tariffs and other trade bars

* political, legal, and economic instability and urntaety;

« foreign currency exchange rate fluctuatit

» changes in foreign country tax rules, regulationsl @ther requirements, such as changes in tax emdsstatutory and judic
interpretations of tax laws;

* inflation;

* managing widespread operations and enforcirgrmat policies and procedures such as compliante WiS. and foreign antifibery
and anti-corruption regulations, such as the Far€igrrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”), and antitrust Egw

» work stoppages and labor relatic

« disruptions in the shipping of imported and expaipeoducts

* government price contro

» extended payment terms and the inability to coll@ciounts receivable; &

« limitations on the repatriation of earnings andhc




As a U.S. corporation, we are subject to the FORKich may place us at a competitive disadvantager&ign companies that are
subject to similar regulations. Additionally, angtdrmination that we have violated the FCPA coualdeha material adverse effect on us.

Terrorist attacks, armed conflicts, labor disputestural disasters, governmental actions and epideoould affect our domestic
international sales, disrupt our supply chain, angair our ability to produce and deliver our prottu Such events could directly impact
physical facilities or those of our suppliers ostmmers, both in the United States and elsewhere.

We are exposed to risks associated with the unceitaglobal economy. Uncertain economic conditions within our regiomsl a&low
recovery in the United States, Europe, and Asianglwith national debt and fiscal concerns in wasigegions and government auste
measures, are posing challenges to the industshich Whirlpool operates. The markets for our pretdudepend largely on consumer spen
and the availability of financing. Economic uncértg and related factors exacerbate negative tramdisisiness and consumer spending
may cause certain customers to push out, cancegfi@in from placing orders for our products. Unam market conditions, difficulties
obtaining capital, or reduced profitability may@isause some customers to scale back operatiohsnaskets, merge with other retailers
file for bankruptcy protection and potentially ceagperations, which can also result in lower satefor additional inventory. These conditi
may similarly affect key suppliers, which could iaiptheir ability to deliver parts and result inlales for our products or added costs
addition, these conditions may lead to stratediarades by, or consolidation of, other appliancaenafacturers, which could adversely affect
ability to compete effectively.

Uncertainty about future economic and industry émas also makes it more challenging for us teéast our operating results, m
business decisions, and identify and prioritizerthles that may affect our businesses, sourcesisesl of cash, financial condition and resul
operations. We may be required to implement adtificost reduction efforts, including restructuramgivities, which may adversely affect
ability to capitalize on opportunities in a marketovery. In addition, our operations are subjeajeneral credit, liquidity, foreign exchan
market and interest rate risks. Our ability to stvi@ our businesses, fund strategic acquisitionkrafinance maturing debt obligations depr
in part on access to the capital markets.

If we do not timely and appropriately adapt to amresulting from the uncertain macroeconomicrenment and industry conditiol
or to difficulties in the financial markets, orwe are unable to continue to access the capitaketsgrour business, financial condition
results of operations may be materially and adWeeféected.

An inability to effectively execute and manage oubusiness objectives could adversely affect our fingial performance. The
highly competitive nature of our industry requithat we effectively execute and manage our busimessding our global operating platfo
initiative. Our global operating platform initiagvaims to reduce costs, expand margins, drive ptddly and quality improvements, accelel
our rate of innovation, and enable us to receiva@eptable return on our investments. Our ingbitt effectively control costs and dr
productivity improvements could affect our profibs.addition, our inability to provide highuality, innovative products could adversely ai
our ability to maintain or increase our sales, Wwhiccould negatively affect our revenues and oldirsancial performance. Additionally, o
success is dependent on anticipating and apprefyriegacting to changes in customer preferencesoarsliccessful new product and pro
development and product relaunches in responsedo shanges. Our future results and our abilityn&intain or improve our competiti
position will depend on our capacity to gauge theation of our key markets and upon our abilitystacessfully and timely identify, devel
manufacture, market, and sell new or improved petglin these changing markets.

Failure to maintain our reputation and brand image could negatively impact our businessOur brands have worldwide recogniti
and our success depends on our ability to mairtaghenhance our brand image and reputation. Maintgipromoting and growing our brai
depends on our design and marketing efforts, inetuddvertising and consumer campaigns, as wefpraduct innovation. We could
adversely impacted if we fail to achieve any ofséh@bjectives or if, whether or not justified, tiegutation or image of any of our brand
tarnished or receives negative publicity. In additiadverse publicity about regulatory or legalactgainst us could damage our reput:
and brand image, undermine our customers' confelémais and reduce lortgim demand for our products, even if the reguwatarlega
action is unfounded or not material to our operstio

In addition, our success in maintaining, extending expanding our brand image depends on ouryatiliadapt to a rapidly changi
media environment, including our increasing rel@amn social media and online dissemination of atieg campaigns. Negative posts
comments about us on social networking and othéisites that spread rapidly through such forumsdeatiously damage our reputation
brand image. If we do not maintain, extend and egpaur brand image, then our product sales, firreindition and results of operati
could be materially and adversely affected.




Fluctuations and volatility in the cost of raw mateials and purchased components could adversely affeour operating results
The primary materials used to produce and manufaciur products are steel, plastic resins, and batals, such as aluminum, copper, .
and nickel. On a global and regional basis, thercesuand prices of those materials and componeetsusceptible to significant pr
fluctuations due to supply/demand trends, tranggiort costs, government regulations and tariff@ngfes in currency exchange rates, |
controls, the economic climate, and other unfonesgeumstances. These inflationary costs are dgdeto have a material impact in 2C
largely driven by increases in the cost of plastisins and steel, as well as component parts iregdey these commaodity fluctuatio
Continued significant increases in these and atbsts in the future could have a material adveffeeteon our operating results.

Unfavorable results of legal and tax proceedings otd materially adversely affect our business and fiancial condition anc
performance. We are subject to a variety of litigation and legampliance risks, including litigation concernipgpducts, intellectual prope
rights, income and nomcome taxes, environmental matters, corporateersattommercial matters and compliance with cortipetlaws an
distribution, marketing and trade practices. Foaragle, we are currently disputing certain incomd annincome tax related assessm
issued by the Brazilian authorities relating to BEK, CFC Tax and to IPI tax credits (see Note 6 Aiode 11 of the Notes to the Consolid:
Financial Statements for additional informationtbese matters). Unfavorable outcomes regardingtassessments could materially adve
affect our financial position, liquidity, or ressilof operations in any particular reporting periBdsults of legal proceedings cannot be prec
with certainty and for some matters no insurand&ély available. Regardless of merit, litigatiomay be both timeonsuming and disrupti
to our operations and cause significant diversiomanagement attention and expense. We estimaetrgingencies and establish accrua
required by generally accepted accounting prinsipleased on our assessment of contingencies wiadnidity is deemed probable a
reasonably estimable, in light of the facts anawinstances known to us at a particular point iretiBubsequent developments in |
proceedings, volatility in foreign currency exchangtes and other factors may affect our assessamghestimates of the loss continge
recorded and could result in an adverse effectuwnasults of operations in the period in whichadility would be recognized or cash flows
the period in which amounts would be paid. Acteslults may significantly vary from our reserves.

We are subject to, and could be further subject togovernmental investigations or actions by other tind parties. We are subject
various federal, foreign and state laws, includargitrust laws, violations of which can involve itier criminal sanctions. Governme
regulators in various jurisdictions have investightalleged pricing practices in the global compesadustry, including our Embra
compressor business headquartered in Brazil. litiaddwe have been named as a defendant in relatesliits in various jurisdictions, whi
seek damages in connection with the pricing of aasgors, and additional lawsuits may be filed. ifingact of these and other investigati
and lawsuits could have a material adverse efflectur financial position, liquidity and resultsapberations.

Our intellectual property rights are valuable, and any inability to protect them could reduce the vale of our products, service:
and brands. We consider our intellectual property rights, udihg patents, trademarks, trade secrets, andslivgragreements, to be
significant and valuable aspect of our businessattampt to protect our intellectual property rigtiirough a combination of patent, traden
copyright, and trade secret laws, as well as licgnagreements and third party nondisclosure asgjasment agreements. Our failure to ok
or adequately protect our trademarks, products,features of our products, or our processes majndimour competitiveness.

We have applied for patent protection in the UniBtdtes and other jurisdictions with respect tdagerinnovations and new produt
product features, and processes. We cannot beedsthat the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office orahgr jurisdiction will approve any
our patent applications. Additionally, the patewis own could be challenged, invalidated, or othemgld design around our patents anc
patents may not be of sufficient scope or strengthrovide us with any meaningful protection or ecoercial advantage. Further, the law
certain foreign countries in which we do businessgontemplate doing business in the future, dorecbgnize intellectual property rights
protect them to the same extent as United StatesAa a result, these factors could weaken our atitive advantage with respect to
products, services, and brands in foreign jurisols, which could adversely affect our financiatfpemance.

Moreover, while we do not believe that any of otwducts infringe on the valid intellectual properights of third parties, others r
assert intellectual property rights that cover saheur technology, brands, products, or servidesy litigation regarding patents or otl
intellectual property could be costly and tim@isuming and could divert the attention of our aggment and key personnel from our busi
operations. Claims of intellectual property inframgent might also require us to enter into costigrise agreements. We also may be subj
significant damages or injunctions against develapnand sale of certain products.




The ability of suppliers to deliver parts, componets and manufacturing equipment to our manufacturing facilities, and our
ability to manufacture without disruption, could affect our global business performance.We use a wide range of materials
components in the global production of our prodaatd use numerous suppliers to provide materialscamponents. Because we generall
not have guaranteed supply arrangements with qaplisus and some key parts may be available oniyfa single supplier or a limited grc
of suppliers, we are subject to supply and pricisk. In addition, certain proprietary componenttpaised in some of our products are prov
by single-source unaffiliated thingiarty suppliers. We would be unable to obtain thmsgrietary component parts for an indeterminatéog
of time if these singlsource suppliers were to cease or interrupt préatuctr otherwise fail to supply these componentsigpwhich coul
adversely affect our product sales and operatisglt® Our operations and operations at supplfacdiities are subject to disruption fo
variety of reasons, including, but not limited vegrk stoppages, intellectual property claims agasngpliers, information technology failur
and hazards such as fire, earthquake, floodingtloer natural disasters. Such disruption couldringg our ability to manufacture cert
products. Any significant disruption could negalyienpact our revenue and earnings performance.

In August 2012, the SEC adopted annual disclosuder@porting requirements for those companies vdgagrtain minerals known
“conflict minerals” mined from the Democratic Republic of Congo andmilig countries in their products. These disclesand reportin
requirements became effective for calendar yeaB2@ifected companies must make disclosures forfitise time by May 31, 2014, a
annually thereafter. There have been and will camtito be significant costs associated with complywith these disclosure requireme
including for diligence to determine the sourcesafiflict minerals used in our products and othateptial changes to products, process:
sources of supply as a consequence of such véidficactivities. Our disclosure will be predicatagon the timely receipt of accur
information from suppliers, who may be unwilling wnable to provide us with the relevant informatids a result, these new requirem
could adversely affect our costs, the availabiityninerals used in our products and our relatigpsstvith customers and suppliers.

Significant differences between actual results angstimates of the amount of future funding for our gnsion plans ani
postretirement health care benefit programs, and gificant changes in funding assumptions or signifant increases in fundin
obligations due to regulatory changes, could adveety affect our financial results.We have both funded and unfunded defined be
pension plans that cover certain employees in Nantierica, Europe, Asia and Brazil. We also havaindéd postretirement health care be
plans for eligible retired employees. The Employatirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) ahd Internal Revenue Code,
amended, govern the funding obligations for our.p&hsion plans, which are our principal pensi@ngl Our U.S. defined benefit plans v
frozen as of December 31, 2006 for substantiallyaiticipants. For 2007 and beyond, Whirlpool eoyekes may participate in an enhar
defined contribution plan.

As of December 31, 2013 our projected benefit obligations under our pemgplans and postretirement health and welfare fit
programs exceeded the fair value of plan assetanbgggregate of approximately $1.5 billion , ( $Biion of which was attributable
pension plans and $0.6 billiarf which was attributable to postretirement healihe benefits). Estimates for the amount and tiroirnttpe futur
funding obligations of these pension plans and rpostment health and welfare benefit plans areebasn various assumptions. Th
assumptions include discount rates, expected feng-rate of return on plan assets, and health @asetrend rates. These assumption:
subject to change based on changes in interesteatigh quality bonds, stock and bond marketrmstuand health care cost trend rates, i
which are largely outside our control. Significatifferences in results or significant changes isuagptions may materially affect ¢
postretirement obligations and related future dbations and expenses.

We may be subject to information technology systerfailures, network disruptions, cybersecurity attacks and breaches in dat
security, which may materially adversely affect ouroperations, financial condition and operating reslis. We depend on informatis
technology as an enabler to improve the effectiserad our operations and to interface with our @ustrs, as well as to maintain finan
accuracy and efficiency. Information technologytsys failures, including suppliers' or vendors' eysfailures, could disrupt our operation:
causing transaction errors, processing inefficesicdelays or cancellation of customer orders,ldss of customers, impediments to
manufacture or shipment of products, other busidesaptions, or the loss of or damage to intellatproperty through security breach.

In addition, we have outsourced certain informatiechnology support services and administrativetions, such as payroll process
and benefit plan administration, to thipasty service providers and may outsource othectfons in the future to achieve cost savings
efficiencies. If the service providers to which watsource these functions do not perform effegfivele may not be able to achieve
expected cost savings and may have to incur additicosts to correct errors made by such serviogigers. Depending on the funct
involved, such errors may also lead to businesmigti®n, processing inefficiencies or the loss pfdamage to intellectual property throi
security breach, or harm employee morale.
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Our information systems, or those of our thirakty service providers, could also be penetrateduiside parties intent on extract
information, corrupting information or disruptingidiness processes. Such unauthorized access ésuldtabur business and could result in
loss of assets. Cybersecurity attacks are becomimg sophisticated and include, but are not limtgdmalicious software, attempts to ¢
unauthorized access to data, and other electraurisy breaches that could lead to disruptionsritical systems, unauthorized releas
confidential or otherwise protected informationdasorruption of data. These events could impactaustomers and reputation and lea
financial losses from remediation actions, losdo$iness or potential liability or an increase xpense, all of which may have a mate
adverse effect on our business.

A deterioration in labor relations could adverselyimpact our global business.As of December 31, 2013we had approximate
69,000employees. We are subject to separate collectikgabang agreements with certain labor unions, Wigenerally have two to three y
terms. We are periodically in negotiations withtagr of the unions representing our employees aayl e subject to employee work stopp:
that, if such events were to occur, may have a niaat@dverse effect on our business, financial @ or results of operations. Further,
cannot be assured that we will be able to renelecdle bargaining agreements on the same or sitt@tans, or at all, which may also ha\
material adverse effect on our business, finarmabition, or results of operations.

Our ability to attract, develop and retain executives and other qualified employees is crucial to ouresults of operations ani
future growth. We depend upon the continued services and perfarenaf our key executives, senior management ailédslkpersonne
particularly our professionals with experience ur business and operations and the home appliadeestry. We cannot be sure that an
these individuals will continue to be employed ts; A lengthy period of time is required to hire aselelop replacement personnel w
skilled personnel depawhirlpool. An inability to hire, develop, engagedaretain a sufficient number of qualified employeesid materiall
hinder our business by, for example, delaying duilita to bring new products to market or impairitige success of our operations.

Changes in the legal and regulatory environment cdd limit our business activities, increase our opating costs, reduce demar
for our products or result in litigation. The conduct of our businesses, and the produdlistrjbution, sale, advertising, safety, transator
and use of many of our products, are subject tuaraws and regulations administered by fedetate and local governmental agencie
the United States, as well as to foreign laws agulilations administered by government entities agehcies in markets in which we opel
These laws and regulations may change, sometinagsatiically, as a result of political, economic ocial events. Changes in laws, regulat
or governmental policy and the related interpretatimay alter the environment in which we do bussrend, therefore, may impact our re:
or increase our costs or liabilities. In additiarg incur and will continue to incur capital and etexpenditures to comply with various laws
regulations, especially relating to, protectiontlodé environment, human health and safety and eneffipiency. These types of costs cc
adversely affect our financial performance. Additily, we could be subjected to future liabilitigges or penalties or the suspensio
product production for failing to comply with vatis laws and regulations, including environmentgltations. Cleanup obligations that mi
arise at any of our manufacturing sites or the isitm of more stringent environmental laws in thire could adversely affect us.

Foreign currency fluctuations may affect our finandal performance. We generate a significant portion of our revenné acur :
significant portion of our expenses in currenci¢iseo than the U.S. dollar. Changes in the exchaatgs of functional currencies of th
operations affect the U.S. dollar value of our rexe and earnings from our foreign operations. Wee aigrency forwards and options
manage our foreign currency transaction exposWiescannot completely eliminate our exposure toifpreurrency fluctuations, which m
adversely affect our financial performance. In &ddi because our consolidated financial resulésraported in U.S. dollars, if we gene
sales or earnings in other currencies, the traoslaftf those results into U.S. dollars can resul significant increase or decrease in the an
of those sales or earnings. Finally, the amounkegél contingencies related to foreign operatiorssy fluctuate significantly based ug
changes in the exchange rates and usually cannotdmaged with currency forwards, options or othearmjements. Such fluctuations
exchange rates can significantly increase or deerttee amount of any legal contingency relatedutof@areign operations and make it diffic
to assess and manage the potential exposure.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS .

None.
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ITEM 2.

Our principal executive offices are located in BenHarbor, Michigan. On December 31, 2Q1dur principal manufacturing operatis
were carried o n at 34 locations in 11 countri exldwide. We occupied a total of approximatel y ®@lion square feet devoted
manufacturing, service, sales and administratifieex, warehouse and distribution space. Over 3fBomisquare feet of such space is occu
under lease. Whirlpool properties include facititiwhich are suitable and adequate for t he manufaand distribution of Whirlpod!’

PROPERTIES.

products. The company’s major production sites fpgrating segment are as follows:

North America:

Latin America:

Europe, Middle East and Africa:

Asia:

ITEM 3.

Information regarding legal proceedings can be dounNote 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statemaents is incorporated herein

reference.

ITEM 4.

United States:

Mexico:

Brazil:
China:
Italy:
Slovakia:
Mexico:

France:

Italy:

Poland:
Slovakia:
Sweden:
South Africa:

China:
India:

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS .

Amana and Newton, lowa; Tulsa, Oklahoma;
Greenville, Clyde, Findlay, Marion and Ottawa, Qhio
Cleveland, Tennessee

Celaya; Monterrey; Ramos Arizpe

Itaiopolis; Joinville; Manaus; Rio Claro
Beijing

Riva di Chieri

Spisska Nova Ves

Monterrey

Amiens

Trento; Cassinetta; Siena; Naples
Wroclaw

Poprad

Norrkoping

Isithebe

ChangXing (Joint Venture); Shunde
Faridabad; Pune; Pondicherry

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES .
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Whirlpool's common stock is traded on the New Y@&tock Exchange and the Chicago Stock Exchangef Agloruary 10, 2014 the
number of holders of record of Whirlpool commoncétavas approximately 11,820 .

Quarterly market and dividend information can beni in Note 14 (unaudited) to the Consolidated i Statements.

On April 23, 2008, our Board of Directors authodza share repurchase program of up to $500 milliShare repurchases are
from time to time on the open market as conditimasrant. We resumed the share repurchase programgd2013 and repurchas@db million
shares at an aggregate purchase price of $3500mitirough December 31, 2013 . At December 31, 201f3ere was no remaini
authorization under this program.

The following table summarizes repurchases of hil's common stock in the three months ended Deee8i, 2013:

Total Number of Approximate

Shares Purchased Dollar Value of

as Part of Publicly Shares that May
Total Number of Average Price Paid Announced Plans Yet Be Purchased

Period (Millions of dollars, except number and prie per share) Shares Purchased per Share or Programs Under the Plan

October 1, 2013 through October 31, 2013 465,86. $ 139.8¢ 465,86. $ 14~

November 1, 2013 through November 30, 2013 940,09: 147.8¢ 940,09: 6

December 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 37,96( 152.7: 37,96( —
Total 1,443,91. g 145.4° 1,443,91.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.
FIVE-YEAR SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(Millions of dollars, except share and employee daj) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS
Net sales $ 18,76¢ $ 18,14 $ 18,66¢ $ 18,36¢ $ 17,09¢
Restructuring costs 19€ 237 13€ 74 12€
Depreciation and amortization 54(C 551 55¢ 55¢ 52t
Operating profit 1,24¢ 86¢ 79z 1,00¢ 68¢
Earnings (loss) before income taxes and other items 917 55¢ (28) 58¢€ 29z
Net earnings 84¢ 42¢ 40¢ 65( 354
Net earnings available to Whirlpool 827 401 39( 61¢ 32¢
Capital expenditures 57¢€ A7€ 60¢ 597 541
Dividends paid 187 15t 14¢ 132 12¢
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION
Current assets $ 7,02:  $ 6,827 $ 6,42: $ 7,318 $ 7,028
Current liabilities 6,79¢ 6,51( 6,297 6,14¢ 5,941
Accounts receivable, inventories and accounts gayabt 54¢ 694 947 1,41( 1,38¢
Property, net 3,041 3,03¢ 3,10: 3,13¢ 3,117
Total assets 15,54« 15,39¢ 15,18: 15,58¢ 15,09¢
Long-term debt 1,84¢ 1,94¢ 2,12¢ 2,19t 2,502
Total debt” 2,46% 2,461 2,491 2,50¢ 2,90:
Whirlpool stockholders’ equity 4,92¢ 4,26( 4,181 4,22¢ 3,66¢
PER SHARE DATA
Basic net earnings available to Whirlpool $ 10.4: $ 51,  $ 5.07 $ 81: $ 4.3¢
Diluted net earnings available to Whirlpool 10.22 5.0€ 4.9¢ 7.97 4.32
Dividends 2.3¢ 2.0C 1.9¢ 1.7 1.7
Book value? 60.9i 53.7( 53.5( 54.4¢ 48.4¢
Closing Stock Price—NYSE 156.8t¢ 101.7¢ 47 4% 88.8: 80.6¢
KEY RATIOS
Operating profit margin 6.7% 4.8% 4.2% 5.5% 4.0%
Pre-tax margir® 4.%% 3.1% 0.29% 3.2% 1.7%
Net margir® 4.4% 2.2% 2.1% 3.4% 1.9%
Return on average Whirlpool stockholc’ equity® 18.0% 9.5% 9.2% 15.7% 9.8%
Return on average total ass® 5.5% 2.6% 2.5% 4.C% 2.5%
Current assets to current liabilities 1.C 1.C 1.C 1.2 1.2
Total debt as a percent of invested caj” 33.% 36.0% 36.8 % 36.1% 43.6%
Price earnings rati8 15.2 20.1 9.E 11.2 18.€
OTHER DATA
Common shares outstanding (in thousands):

Average number—on a diluted basis 80,76: 79,33; 78,14: 77,62¢ 75,58¢

Year-end common shares outstanding 77,41, 78,407 76,45 76,03( 74,70¢
Year-end number of stockholders 11,88¢ 12,75¢ 13,52; 14,08( 14,93(
Year-end number of employees 69,00 68,00 68,00( 71,00( 67,00(
Five-year annualized total return to stockholc®® 34.% 7.6% (8.1% 3.8% 5.8%

(1) Total debt includes notes payable and cuaadtlongterm debr

(2) Total Whirlpool stockholdergquity divided by average number of shares onuetilbasit

(3) Earnings (loss) before income taxes, as a perdemtsale:

(4) Net earnings available to Whirlpool, as a percémis sale:

(5) Net earnings available to Whirlpool, divided by eage Whirlpool stockholde’ equity

(6) Net earnings available to Whirlpool, divided by eage total asse

(7) Total debt divided by total debt and totalcktmlders’equity

(8) Closing stock price divided by diluted net earniagailable to Whirlpoo

(9) Stock appreciation plus reinvested dividends, @ididy share price at the beginning of the pe
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS.

This Management Discussion and Analysis should daal rin connection with the Consolidated Financi@te®nents, Notes to t
Consolidated Financial Statements and Selectech&imaData included in this Form 10- Certain references to particular informationtlia
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsnaige to assist reade

ABOUT WHIRLPOOL

Whirlpool Corporation (“Whirlpool”) is the world' leading global manufacturer and marketer of miajone appliances with net sale:
approximately $19 billion and net earnings ava#atl Whirlpool of $827 million in 2013We are a leading producer of major home applie
in North America and Latin America and have a digant presence throughout Europe and India. We lnageived worldwide recognition
accomplishments in a variety of business and s@tfatts, including leadership, diversity, innowatiproduct design, business ethics, s
responsibility and community involvement. We corndoar business through four reportable segmentichvive define based on geogray
Our reportable segments consist of North Americatjn. America, EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa)d Asia. Our customer b
includes large, sophisticated trade customers vawe lmany choices and demand competitive produetsices and prices. The major hc
appliance industry operates in an intensely cortipetenvironment, reflecting the impact of both newd established global competit
including Asian and European manufacturers.

The charts below summarize the balance of net glesportable segment for 2013 , 2012 and 20&%pectively:

2013 2012 2011

North

America
51%

We monitor countryspecific economic factors such as gross domestidymt, unemployment, consumer confidence, retaihds
housing starts and completions, sales of existiogds and mortgage interest rates as key indicatoiadustry demand. In addition
profitability, we also focus on country, brand, ¢wet and channel sales when assessing and foregéistincial results.

Our leading portfolio of brands includ&ghirlpool, Maytag, KitchenAid, Brastengmd Consul, each of which have annual revenue
excess of $1 billion. Our global branded consumredpcts strategy is to introduce innovative newdpuads, increase brand customer loy:
expand our presence in foreign markets, enhancérade management platform, improve total cost quility by expanding and leverag
our global operating platform and, where appropriatake strategic acquisitions and investments.

As we grow revenues in our core products, ouresats to extend our business by offering prodacis services that are depender
and related to our core business and expand inéeemt products, such @dfreshcleaners anéladiator GarageWorks through standione
businesses that leverage our core competenciesueiness infrastructure.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - (CONTINUED)

2013 OVERVIEW

Whirlpool delivered very strong operating resutis2013 as we continued to execute our businessit@gsy which include continut
investments in new product innovations, a focuscost productivity programs and the execution oft @sl capacity reduction initiativi
These priorities, which have been consistent feeisd years, placed us in a strong position to fiefilem the improving consumer confider
and industry demand levels experienced in the driiates during 2013. A continuation of the ressy demand environment througt
the Eurozone, a slowdown in emerging markets atatility in foreign currencies partially offset thmsitive results in the United States du
2013.

We believe that continued execution of our businmssrities and a focus on lortgrm growth will allow the Company to adap
changes in the macroeconomic environment and niiota position as the world's leading global matiirer and marketer of major hc
appliances.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table summarizes the consolidatedlteof operations:

December 31,

Consolidated - Millions of dollars (except per shag data) 2013 Change 2012 Change 2011

Net sales $ 18,76¢ 3.4% $ 18,14 (2.8)% $ 18,66¢
Gross margin 3,29¢ 14.0 2,89: 12.3 2,571
Selling, general and administrative 1,82¢ (4.0) 1,75i (8.4) 1,621
Restructuring costs 19¢ 17.2 237 (74.3) 13€
Interest and sundry income (expense) (15%) (38.8) (112) nm (607)
Interest expense (177) 11.0 (199 6.7 (213
Income tax expense (benefit) 68 49.2 13< nm (43€)
Net earnings available to Whirlpool 827 106.0 401 3.0 39C
Diluted net earnings available to Whirlpool perrgha $ 10.2¢ 102.3% $ 5.0¢ 15% $ 4.9¢

nm: not meaningful
Consolidated Net Sales

The following tables summarize units sold and ctidated net sales by operating segment:

December 31,

Units Sold - In thousands 2013 Change 2012 Change 2011

North America 25,89¢ 6.€ % 24,29: (5.0% 25,57¢
Latin America 13,42: 6.2 12,63" 6.€ 11,83(
EMEA 11,907 3.1 11,54¢ (6.9 12,33¢
Asia 3,917 2.7 4,02¢ 0.4 4,01«
Consolidated 55,14: 5.C % 52,50: (2.9% 53,75

December 31,

Consolidated Net Sales Millions of dollars 2013 Change 2012 Change 2011

North America $ 10,17¢ 57% $ 9,631 0E% $ 9,58-
Latin America 4,92¢ (0.5 4,95( (2.2) 5,06%
EMEA 3,02¢ 5.2 2,87¢ (13.3) 3,30t
Asia 807 (4.9 847 (3.9 881
Other/eliminations (16¢) — (159 — (164)
Consolidated $ 18,76¢ 34% $ 18,141 (2.6% $ 18,66¢

Consolidated net sales increased 3.4% compare@dltd@imarily due to higher unit shipments and BEFIEXdits, partially offset k
the unfavorable impact of foreign currency and desnin product mix. Excluding the impact of foreigarrency and BEFIEX credi
consolidated net sales increased 4.4% compare@td 2Consolidated net sales for 2012 decreaséd @ddnpared to 201frimarily due to th
unfavorable impact of foreign currency, lower BEKIEredits recognized and lower unit shipments, Wwhieere largely offset by favoral
pricing and mix. Excluding the impact of foreignr@ncy and BEFIEX credits, consolidated net sates2D12increased 2.9% comparec



2011.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - (CONTINUED)

We provide the percentage change in net salesyairg the impact of foreign currency and BEFIEXditg, as a supplement to
change in net sales as determined by U.S. genexedigpted accounting principles ("GAAP") to proviteckholders with a clearer basit
assess Whirlpool's results over time. This measui@nsidered a noBAAP financial measure and is calculated by tramlathe currer
period net sales excluding BEFIEX credits, in fumaal currency, to U.S. dollars using the pryaar period's exchange rate compared t
prior-year period net sales excluding BEFIEX credit

Significant regional trends were as follows:

* North America net sales increas5.7% compared to 2012 primarily due to a 6.8%rease in units sold, partially offset
changes in product mix and foreign currency. Néuherica net sales for 2012 increased 0.5% compar@@11primarily due t
favorable product price/mix, partially offset byp#% decrease in units sold.

» Latin America net sales decreased 0.5% compar@®12primarily due to the unfavorable impact of foreigmrency, partiall
offset by a 6.2%ncrease in units sold and higher BEFIEX creditecl&ding the impact of foreign currency and BEFIEMedits
Latin America net sales increased 4.1% in 2013inLAamerica net sales for 2012 decreased 2.2% cozdpa 201 Jprimarily due
to the unfavorable impact of foreign currency, &maer BEFIEX credits recognized, partially offset & 6.8% increase in un
sold and favorable product price/mix. Excluding thepact of foreign currency and BEFIEX credits, ihaAmerica net salt
increased 13.9% in 2012.

We were able to recognize approximately $109 mmilli®37 million and $266 million of BEFIEX credits 2013 , 2012 and 2011
respectively. As of December 31, 2013, approxinya®@6 million of future cash monetization remainegatluding $52 million ¢
related court awarded fees, which is not expeatelet payable for several years. For additionalrmédion regarding BEFIE
credits, see Note 11 of the Notes to the Cons@dl&inancial Statements.

» EMEA net sales increased 5.2 % compared to 2@tinarily due to the favorable impact of foreigmrrency and a 3.1%creas
in units sold. Excluding the impact of foreign @mcy, net sales increased 1.8%. In 2012 EMEA nles sgecreased 13.:
compared to 2011, primarily due to the unfavoralvipact of foreign currency and a 6.4% decreasenitssold. Excluding tt
impact of foreign currency, net sales decrease¥ 6.6

e Asia net sales decreased 4.8 % compared to @b2rily due to the unfavorable impact of foreigurrency and a 2.7% decre
in units sold, partially offset by favorable prodyrice/mix. Excluding the impact of foreign curosm Asia net sales decrea
1.1%. Asia net sales for 2012 decreased 3.8% cadpar 2011 primarily due to the unfavorable impafcforeign currenc
partially offset by favorable product price/mix. &xding the impact of foreign currency, Asia ndesancreased 3.8%.

Gross Margin

The table below summarizes gross margin percentagesgion:

December 31,

Percentage of net sales 2013 Change 2012 Change 2011
North America 18.1% 1.7 pts 16.4% 5.1 pts 11.3%
Latin America 19.4 1.7 17.7 2.3 20.0
EMEA 11.2 15 9.7 (0.9 10.1
Asia 18.6 0.7 17.9 1.4 16.5
Consolidated 17.6% 1.7 pts 15.9% 2.1 pts 13.8%

The consolidated gross margin percentage increhSepoints to 17.6% compared to 2012rimarily due to productivity, restructuri
initiatives, higher BEFIEX credits, and favorablécp/mix, partially offset by higher material casts

Significant regional trends were as follows:

* North America gross margin increased compare2012primarily due to productivity and cost and capacéguction initiatives
partially offset by a 2012 curtailment gain in sspetirement benefit plan that did not recur in 208lorth America gross mar¢
for 2012 reflected strong improvement comparedd12primarily due to the favorable impact from poasly announced cost-
based price increases and cost and capacity reduditiatives, partially offset by higher materi@sts and a supplier recov
payment received in the prior year that did notiréc 2012.
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e Latin America gross margin increased compare20tb2 primarily due to favorable product price/mix, pretivity and BEFIE>
credits, partially offset by higher material codbairing 2012, Latin America gross margin decreasampared to 2011 primar
due to $229 million in lower BEFIEX credits recoged due to a IP| sales tax holiday during 2012 laigtier material cost
partially offset by favorable product price/mix aoahtinued productivity and cost reduction initiats.

« EMEA gross margin increased compared to 2@irdarily due to increased productivity and berssfibm restructuring initiative
partially offset by higher material costs. During12, EMEA gross margin decreased compared to 26ibiaply due to lowe
production levels related to the weak demand enument throughout Europe and higher material cegig;h were partially offs
by the favorable impact of product price/mix, protivity and benefits from restructuring initiatives

e Asia gross margin increased in 2013 and in 2012nwdmmpared to the prior year periods, primarily dodavorable produ
price/mix and productivity, partially offset by tlhfavorable impacts of higher material costs amdi§n currency.

Selling, General and Administrative

The following table summarizes selling, general adhinistrative expenses as a percentage of splegion:

December 31,

As a% As a % As a %
Millions of dollars 2013 of Net Sales 2012 of Net Sales 2011 of Net Sales
North America $ 75¢ 7.5% $ 707 7.3% $ 65¢ 6.9%
Latin America 39¢ 8.1 40C 8.1 37C 7.3
EMEA 33¢ 11.2 332 11.5 338 10.1
Asia 11€ 14.4 11t 13.6 11t 13.1
Corporate/other 217 — 203 — 14t —
Consolidated $ 1,82¢ 9.7% $ 1,751 9.7% $ 1,621 8.7%

Consolidated selling, general and administrativeeases in 2013 reflect an increased investmenbmsumer advertising comparec
2012 and remain flat as a percent of consolidagtdsales due to leverage on increased sales. Gadimeral and administrative expenses
percent of consolidated net sales in 2012 increesetpared to 2011 , primarily due to higher empoiyeentive compensation.

Restructuring

During the fourth quarter 2011, the Company coneditto restructuring plans (the "2011 Plan") to expaur operating margins &
improve our earnings through substantial cost aphcity reductions, primarily within our North Aniea and EMEA operating segments.
actions related to the 2011 Plan have been anndusee are now substantially complete, with cumuéattosts of $511 million incurr
through December 31, 2013. Approximately $50 millio costs related to actions authorized unde€@iel Plan remain and will be recogni
primarily during 2014.

In January 2014, the Company announced the clafuaemicrowave oven manufacturing facility in EMEB the end of 2014. Tt
action, combined with other organizational effiggractions in EMEA, are expected to result in ckargf approximately $50 millioim 201¢
primarily related to employee termination costs4tash asset impairment costs and facility exitcos

We incurred restructuring charges of $196 millidd237 million , and $136 millioffor the years ended December 31, 2013, 201:
2011, respectively. Future cash expenditures nglab the 2011 Plan and the other actions discusisede are approximately $177 million
which, we expect the majority to be paid in 2014dAional information about restructuring activtiean be found in Note 1df the Notes t
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Interest and Sundry Income (Expense)

Interest and sundry income (expense) increased#48n compared to 2012 primarily driven by charges related to Embracttarsi
matters, a Brazilian government settlement, andstment expenses related to the pending acquisifibtefei Rongshida Sanyo Electric C
Ltd. ("Hefei Sanyo"). During 2012, interest and @gnincome (expense) decreased $495 million conapr@011, primarily driven by charg
related to the 2011 settlement of the Braziliaeotion dispute and lower charges related to Entbeantitrust matters, partially offset by 2(
expenses related to the conclusion of long-standimited States contract and patent resolutions.

For additional information about the Embraco ausitrmatters, the Brazilian collection dispute, #r&l Brazilian government settleme
see Note @f the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateémdtor additional information about the pendingusition of Hefei Sanyo, s
Note 15 of the Notes to the Consolidated Finariatements

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $22 million compar@81@, primarily due to lower interest rates. During 20interest expense decree
$14 million compared to 2011, primarily due to lovirgerest rates, partially offset by higher averagonthly debt levels.

Income Taxes

The income tax expense (benefit) was $68 millisa33 million, and ($436) million in 2013 , 2012 a2@11, respectively. The decre:
in tax expense in 2013 compared to 2012 is primatie to United States energy tax credits recoghipartially offset by higher prex
earnings. The "American Taxpayer Relief Act of 20Egned in January 2013, reinstated the enenggredit for 2012 and 2013, and resu
in a tax credit benefit related to the productiémealifying appliances in 2012 and 2013 in the borad amount of $126 millionpall of whict
was recognized in 2013.

The increase in tax expense in 2012 compared th BOgrimarily due to higher prex earnings and the expiration of the United S
energy tax credit in 2012. For additional inforroatiabout our consolidated tax provision, see Ndteoflthe Notes to the Consolida
Financial Statements.

The following table summarizes the difference bemvacome tax expense at the United States stgtrater of 35%and the income t:
expense (benefit) at effective worldwide tax rdteshe respective periods:

Millions of dollars 2013 2012 2011
Earnings (loss) before income taxes
United States $ 14¢  $ 11z % (240
Foreign 76¢ 44r 212
Earnings (loss) before income taxes 917 55¢ (28)
Income tax computed at United States statutory rate 321 19t (20
U.S. government tax incentives, including Energy Taedits (142) — (379)
Foreign government tax incentives, including BEFIEX (63 (39 (100
Foreign tax rate differential a7 () (13
U.S. foreign tax credits (237) (32) (37
Valuation allowances 1€ (8€) 11
State and local taxes, net of federal tax benefit 7 2 (4)
Foreign withholding taxes 29 12 1C
Non-deductible government settlements — — 3C
U.S. tax on foreign dividends and subpart F income 19t 57 26
Settlement of global tax audits (59 18 1C
Other items, net 7 6 2C
Income tax expense (benefit) computed at effectiweorldwide tax rates $ 68 $ 13z % (436€)
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FORWARD-LOOKING PERSPECTIVE

We currently estimate earnings per diluted shackimeustry demand for 2014 to be within the follagriranges:

2014
Millions of dollars, except per share data Current Outlook
Estimated earnings per diluted share, for the yeaending December 31, 2014 $11.05 — $11.55
Including:
BEFIEX credits $0.21
Restructuring expense $(0.95)
Investment expense $(0.21)
Industry demand
North America 5% — 7%
Latin America Flat
EMEA 0% — 2%
Asia 0% — 3%

For the fullyear 2014, we expect to generate free cash floappfoximately $700 million, including restructuriegsh outlays of up
$150 million, capital spending of $625 million t6785 million and U.S. pension contributions of apgmmately $ 160 million .

The table below reconciles projected 2014 cashigeolvby operations determined in accordance wittABAo free cash flow, a non-
GAAP measure. Management believes that free cash ffrovides stockholders with a relevant measuréqoidity and a useful basis 1
assessing Whirlpool's ability to fund its activti@and obligations. There are limitations to using-GAAP financial measures, including
difficulty associated with comparing companies tlhige similarly named noBAAP measures whose calculations may differ fronn
calculations. We define free cash flow as cashigsea/by continuing operations less capital expemd# and including proceeds from the
of assets/businesses.

2014
Millions of dollars Current Outlook
Cash provided by operating activities $ 1,328 — $ 1,37F
Capital expenditures and proceeds from sale otsbssinesses (625) — (675)
Free cash flow $ 700 _ $ 70C

The projections above are based on many estimateara inherently subject to change based on futecésions made by managen
and the Board of Directors of Whirlpool, and sigraht economic, competitive and other uncertairdies contingencies.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

Our objective is to finance our business througkrating cash flow and the appropriate mix of loagyt and shorterm debt. B
diversifying the maturity structure, we avoid contations of debt, reducing liquidity risk. We havarying needs for shoterm working
capital financing as a result of the nature of business. We regularly review our capital structanel liquidity priorities, which incluc
funding the business through capital and engingespending to support innovation and productiwitijiatives, funding our pension plan ¢
term debt liabilities, providing return to sharetheis and potential acquisitions. In the last 12 tm®Vhirlpool's credit rating was upgradec
S&P to BBB and by Moody's to Baa2, returning to-preession levels.

Recent improvements in consumer confidence andimgusgithin the United States have begun a trendyafsam the recessiona
demand environment experienced in recent yearsselmprovements have offset the financial impaeinfihigher global material costs
economic weakness throughout the Eurozone. Whileamtinue to expect that we will operate under wiade and volatile global econon
conditions, we believe that the improving trendshie@ United States and our recently executed anduarted cost and capacity reductions
allow us to generate operating cash flow, togethign access to sufficient sources of liquidity, ttheill be adequate to meet our ongc
requirements to fund our operations.
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As disclosed on our current report on Form 8-K, alihive filed with the SEC on August 13, 2013, on Astgl2, 2013, Whirlpoaf’
wholly-owned Chinese subsidiary entered into agm@mto acquire a 51 % equity stake in Hefei RoitgsBanyo Electric Co., Ltd. lefei
Sanyo”),through two transactions, for an aggregate purchase of RMB 3.4 billion (approximately $555 mdh as of December 31, 201
The Company currently intends to fund the total sideration for the shares with cash on hand orrgplublic or private debt financii
depending on the timing of the closing and marketditions. The acquisition, which has been apprdwetiefei Sanyas board of directors,
subject to certain closing conditions. Approvalsnir the Ministry of Commerce of the PeopleRepublic of China (antitrust and fore
strategic investment), the Staiemed Assets Supervision and Administration Comimissf the State Council, and Hefei Sanyo sharede
(share purchase and private placement transactitms) been received. The China Securities Regyla@ommission approval (includil
waiver of a tender offer), as well as regulatoryiews and approvals by other governmental autlestithave not yet been received.
acquisition is also subject to a $20 million bregakee. Whirlpool currently expects to close thensi@ctions anytime between the end o
second quarter and the end of 2014. Additionalilg, ttansaction includes the commitment of capital #chnical resources to enhance F
Sanyos research and development and product innovagidditional information about the transaction canfdaend in Note 15 of the Notes
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our short term potential uses of liquidity includeding our ongoing capital spending, restructuiegvities, our United States pens
plans and returns to shareholders. We also ha@¥ $nfllion of term debt maturing in the next twelvenths.

We monitor the credit ratings and market indicatufrsredit risk of our lending, depository, andidative counterparty banks regula
In addition, we diversify our deposits and investitsen short term cash equivalents to limit thecamiration of exposure by counterparty.

We continue to monitor the general financial ingigband uncertainty throughout Europe. At DecemB&, 2013, we had cash, ¢
equivalents and thirgarty receivables of approximately $385 milliorBalgium, which was the only country in Europe watkposure for cas
cash equivalents and third party receivables grehsn 1% of our consolidated assets. In additasnpf December 31, 2013, we h&ide
million in outstanding trade and other receivatadssociated with Alno AG, a lorgtanding European customer. Alno took steps togthet
its financial position during 2013, including thecsessful issuance 8 million public bonds during the second quarketditionally, in April
2013, we agreed to conve@&Emillion (equivalent to $41 million as of Decemtdd, 2013) of past due receivables into a noteivable, at
fair market interest rate, with €10 million dueZ@14 and £0 million due in 2017. This transaction did novéa material impact on our res
of operations based on our assessment of thedhie\of the receivables.

As of December 31, 2013 , we had $1.4 billion ddlfcand equivalents on hand, of which $1.3 bilkees held outside of the Unit
States. Our cash balance in the United States @drblger 31, 2018ecreased from the prior year primarily due to bigteturn to shareholde
through higher dividends paid and the resumptiomwf share repurchase program during 2013. Ountingeto permanently reinvest th
funds outside of the United States and our curpdams do not demonstrate a need to repatriate thesks to fund our U.S. operatio
However, if these funds were repatriated, then weildv be required to accrue and pay applicable th&s (subject to an adjustment
foreign tax credits) and withholding taxes payablgarious countries.

Sources and Uses of Cash

We met our cash needs during 2@®ugh cash flows from operations, cash and etpmts, and financing arrangements. Our cast
equivalents at December 31, 2013 increased $21@®mdompared to the same period in 20Xgnificant drivers of changes in our cash
equivalents balance during 2013 are discussed below

Cash Flow Summary

Millions of dollars 2013 2012 2011

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 1,262 $ 69€¢ $ 53C
Investing activities (582) (499) (59€)
Financing activities (439 (148 (16€)
Effect of exchange rate changes (34) 5 (27)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents $ 212 % 59 % (259
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

The increase in cash provided by operations du2ioit@3 reflects higher cash earnings and workingtahpnprovements, which we
partially offset by $116 million to fund our UniteBtates qualified pension plans. The increase $h gaovided by operations during 2!
reflects strong cash earnings and working capit@rovements, which were partially offset by appneoaiely $400 million for legal settleme
and $167 million to fund our United States quadifigension plans.

The timing of cash flows from operations variemgigantly within a quarter primarily due to charsge production levels, sales patte
promotional programs, funding requirements as aglfeceivable and payment terms. Dependent ongioficash flows, the location of c:
balances, as well as the liquidity requirementeaxdh country, external sources of funding are twseslipport working capital requireme
throughout the year. Due to the variables discuabede, cash flow used in operations during the gesy significantly exceed our quarter
yearend balances.

We offer our suppliers access to third party pagslgrocessors. Independent of Whirlpool, the psmrssallow suppliers to sell th
receivables to financial institutions at the disicre of only the supplier and the financial institen. We have no economic interest in the sa
these receivables and no direct financial relatignsvith the financial institutions concerning teeservices. All of our obligations, includi
amounts due, remain to our suppliers as statedrirsupplier agreements. As of December 31, 2013284@, approximately $1.3 billion ai
$1.2 billion, respectively, have been sold by sigsplto participating financial institutions.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities of $582 millioaridg 2013 increased $88 million from 201%rimarily driven by higher capil
investment to support new product innovations. Gesgd in investing activities of $494 million dugi@012 decreased $102 million from 2(
primarily driven by lower capital investment duepimject timing and the completion of a significamtestment in a new cooking facility in 1
United States during 2011.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities during 2013 iasexl compared to 20J#imarily due to the resumption of our share repas
program and higher cash dividends, partially oftsgtincreased proceeds from the issuance of conmstmrk associated with stock opt
exercises. Cash used in financing activities du2@d2 decreased compared to 2011, reflecting isetkgroceeds from the issuanc
common stock associated with stock options, partadfset by a net reduction in long-term debt llsvend higher cash dividends.

Financing Arrangements

We have a $1.725 billion committed credit facilityaturing on June 28, 2016, which includes a $200omiletter of credit sulfacility.
Borrowings under the credit facility are availabbeus and designated subsidiaries for general catp@urposes, including commercial pi
support. Subsidiary borrowings under this facilifygny, are guaranteed by Whirlpool Corporatiartetest under the credit facility accrues
variable annual rate based on LIBOR plus a margithe prime rate plus a margin. The margin is ddpahon our credit rating at that tir
The credit facility requires us to meet certairelage and interest coverage requirements. Weniliria commitment fee based on Whirlpc
credit rating for any unused portion of the crddiility. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, we hadnaoowings outstanding under this cri
agreement and are in compliance with all financtalenant requirements.

We have committed credit facilities in Brazil, whiprovide borrowings up to 1,120 million Brazilieeais (approximatel$478 millior
as of December 31, 2013 ) maturing in 2014 andQOmh52 The credit facilities contain no financial emants and we had rwrrowings
outstanding under these credit facilities at Decen®i, 2013 and 2012 .

In March 2013, $500 million of 5.50% notes matuesdl were repaid. On February 27, 2013, we complatddbt offering of$25(
million principal amount of 3.70% notes due in 2G281 $250 million principal amount of 5.1586tes due in 2043 (collectively, the "Note
The Notes contain covenants that limit our abildyincur certain liens or enter into certain sald éeasdack transactions. In addition, if
experience a specific kind of change of control,ane required to make an offer to purchase alhefNotes at a purchase price of 104fthe
principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpatierést. The Notes are registered under the SesuAtt of 1933, as amended, pursua
the Company’s Registration Statement on Form Si#8 0. 333-181339) filed with the SEC on May 1012.
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During 2012 we completed a debt offering comprieé& 300 million aggregate principal amount of 2¢®@otes due June 1, 2022
Proceeds from the issuance were used to partieigyr $350 million in term debt that matured in M2312. The notes contain custorr
covenants that limit our ability to incur certaierls or enter into certain sale and lebaek transactions. In addition, if we experienspecific
kind of change of control, we are required to makeoffer to purchase all of the notes at a purclpase of 101%of the principal amou
thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

For additional information about our financing axgaments, see Note 5 of the Notes to the Consetidéinancial Statements.
401 (k) Defined Contribution Plan

During January 2012, we began contributing compstogk to fund the company match and automatic compantributions, equal
up to 7% of employees' eligible pay, in our 401dlefined contribution plan covering all U.S. emplegeWe contributed $49 million
company stock to our 401(k) defined contributioarptiuring 2012. We resumed funding the company lreatd automatic contribution in c:
during the fourth quarter 2012.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND FORWARD-LOOKING CASH RE QUIREMENTS
The following table summarizes our expected casfious resulting from financial contracts and cortments:

Payments due by period

2015 & 2017 &
Millions of dollars Total 2014 2016 2018 Thereafter
Long-term debt obligatiors $ 3,26¢ % 725 $ 882 $ 122 $ 1,54(
Operating lease obligations 851 201 29¢ 20¢ 144
Purchase obligatioris )
1,02; 22t 34C 24¢ 21¢
Brazilian government settlemeht 51 21 30 — —
United States pension plafis 70¢ 16C 211 17¢ 15¢
Foreign pension plaris 11 11 — — —
Other postretirement benefits 434 51 10z 93 187
Legal settlement$ 66 45 21 — —
Total® $ 6,417 $ 1,43¢ $ 1,88t $ 84§ 2,24¢

@ Interest payments related to long-term debt ariidied in the table above. For additional informatabout our financing arrangements, see Natéthe Notes to tr
Consolidated Financial Statements.

@ Purchase obligations include our “take-or-paghtracts with materials vendors and minimum paytrobtigations to other supplie

®  Represents payments agreed to under a Brazil gmestnsettiement program. See Notef6the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateésnéor additionz
information.

@ Represents the minimum contributions required by éatimated based on current interest rates, asseh assumptions, legislative requirements ahéroactuaric
assumptions at December 31, 2013 . Management fhaelyte contribute amounts in addition to thoseunsl by law. See Note 1@ the Notes to the Consolida
Financial Statements for additional information.

®  Represents required contributions to our foreigrléid pension plans only. See Noteoi he Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statasitem additional informatio
©®  Represents our portion of expected benefit paymerdsr our retiree healthcare pl:
@ For additional information regarding legal settlense see Note 6f the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statds:

®  The table does not include any payments relatedetgpending acquisition of a 51% equity interestifei Sanyo, which is expected to close in 20b¢. &iditions
information about the pending acquisition, see Nd&ef the Notes to the Consolidated Financialébtants. This table also does not include stesrt credit facilit
and commercial paper borrowings. For additionadiimfation about short-term borrowings, see Note thefNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We have guarantee arrangements in a Brazilian diabgi As a standard business practice in Brdad,dubsidiary guarantees custa
lines of credit at commercial banks to support pases, following its normal credit policies. If astomer were to default on its line of cn
with the bank, our subsidiary would be requiredatisfy the obligation with the bank and the reable would revert back to the subsidiary
of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , the guaranteed restataled $485 million and $449 milligrrespectively. Our subsidiary insures ag:
credit risk for these guarantees, under normalaijper conditions, through policies purchased fraghkguality underwriters. We had no los
associated with these guarantees in 2013 or 2012.
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We have guaranteed a $50 million five year revavimedit facility between certain financial institns and a not-foprofit entity ir
connection with a community and economic develogmanject (“Harbor Shores”)The credit facility, which originated in 2008, v
refinanced in December 2012 and we renewed ourlgtes through 2017. The fair value of the guaraw@enominal. The purpose of Har
Shores is to stimulate employment and growth inatteas of Benton Harbor and St. Joseph, Michigathé event of default, we must sat
the guarantee of the credit facility up to the antdaorrowed at the date of default.

In the ordinary course of business, we enter igte@ments with financial institutions to issue bgokrantees, letters of credit and st
bonds. These agreements are primarily associat#ul wviresolved tax matters in Brazil, as is custgmander local regulations, a
governmental obligations related to certain empdopenefit arrangements. As of December 31, 2013284@ we had approximatefy40<
million and $ 600 million outstanding under thegee@ments, respectively.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith generally accepted accounting principleshi@ United States (GAAP) requi
management to make certain estimates and assumpida periodically evaluate these estimates andngssons, which are based
historical experience, changes in the businesg@mvient and other factors that management beli@vies reasonable under the circumstal
Actual results may differ materially from theseimsites.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Accounting for pensions and other postretiremenelits involves estimating the costs of future Bgse@nd attributing the cost over
employees expected period of employment. The determinatibrour obligation and expense for these costs reguithe use of cert:
assumptions. Those assumptions include the discatgtexpected lontgrm rate of return on plan assets and healthamsetrend rates. The
assumptions are subject to change based on intateston high quality bonds, stock and bond mar&etl medical cost inflation, respectiv
Actual results that differ from our assumptions aceumulated and amortized over future periodstackfore, generally affect our recogni
expense and accrued liability in such future peviddthile we believe that our assumptions are apfatpgiven current economic conditic
and actual experience, significant differenceseisults or significant changes in our assumptiong materially affect our pension and ot
postretirement benefit obligations and relatedrieiexpense.

Our pension and other postretirement benefit obtiga at December 31, 2013 and preliminary retingnienefit costs for 201vere
prepared using the assumptions that were determateBecember 31, 2013 The following table summarizes the sensitivity adi
December 31, 201%&tirement obligations and 2014 retirement bemefits of our United States plans to changes ikeheassumptions used
determine those results:

Estimated increase (decrease) in

Percentage PBO/APBO*
Millions of dollars Change 2014 Expense for 2013
United States Pension Plans
Discount rate +/-50bps $ (1)~ $ (188)/19¢
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets +/-50bps (13)/13 -
United States Other Postretirement Benefit Plan
Discount rate +/-50bps 1/(2) (18)/13
Health care cost trend rate +/-100bps - 2/(2)

*  Projected benefit obligation (PBO) for pensidans and accumulated postretirement benefit oliiggAPBO) for other postretirement benefit plans.

These sensitivities may not be appropriate to asether yearsfinancial results. Furthermore, the impact of agstion changes outsi
of the ranges shown above may not be approximayedsing the above results. For additional inforortabout our pension and ot
postretirement benefit obligations, see Note 1thefNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Income Taxes

We estimate our income taxes in each of the taxinigdictions in which we operate. This involvesimsting actual current tax expel
together with assessing any temporary differenesslting from the different treatment of certaienits, such as the timing for recogni:
expenses, for tax and accounting purposes. Thdferetices may result in deferred tax assets oiilitiab, which are included in o
Consolidated Balance Sheets. We are required tsasbe likelihood that deferred tax assets, winiclude net operating loss carryforwa
foreign tax credits and deductible temporary déferes, are expected to be realizable in futuresy@&aalization of our net operating loss
foreign tax credit deferred tax assets is suppobgdspecific tax planning strategies and, wheresides, considers projections of fut
profitability. If recovery is not more likely thamot, we provide a valuation allowance based omedés of future taxable income in the var
taxing jurisdictions, and the amount of deferrexetathat are ultimately realizable. If future talealmcome is lower than expected or if
planning strategies are not available as anticibatee may record additional valuation allowancesubh income tax expense in the pe
such determination is made. Likewise, if we deteerthat we are able to realize our deferred tagtass the future in excess of net recol
amounts, an adjustment to the deferred tax asfidiemefit income tax expense in the period sudiemeination is made.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , we had totedrded tax assets of $3.0 billion and $3.1 billiorespectively, net of valuati
allowances of $186 million and $130 milligrrespectively. Our income tax benefit or expenag ffuctuated considerably over the last
years from a tax benefit of $436 million in 2011the current year tax expense (68 million and has been influenced primarily by U.S. en
tax credits, audit settlements and adjustmentsplEnning strategies, enacted legislation, anded#gpn of global income. Future changes ir
effective tax rate will be subject to several fastdncluding remaining BEFIEX credits, businessfjpability, tax planning strategies,
enacted tax laws.

In addition, we operate within multiple taxing jsdlictions and are subject to audit in these juctsmtis. These audits can inva
complex issues, which may require an extended garidime to resolve. For additional informationoabincome taxes, see Notes 1, 6 an
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen

BEFIEX Credits

In previous years, our Brazilian operations earteedcredits under the Brazilian governmsngxport incentive program (BEFIE:
These credits reduce Brazilian federal excise taredomestic sales, resulting in an increase iroffeationsrecorded net sales. We recog!
BEFIEX credits as they are monetized; however,rutactions by the Brazilian government could lioitr ability to monetize these exg
credits. For additional information regarding BEKIEredits, see Note 11 of the Notes to the Conatéidl Financial Statements.

Warranty Obligations

The estimation of warranty obligations is deterrdiime the same period that revenue from the satbefelated products is recogniz
The warranty obligation is based on historical eigree and represents our best estimate of expedsts at the time products are s
Warranty accruals are adjusted for known or ardigid warranty claims as new information becomegiabla. New product launches requii
greater use of judgment in developing estimates historical experience becomes available. Fuwents and circumstances could mater
change our estimates and require adjustments twdlhenty obligations. For additional informatiobcait warranty obligations, see Note ¢
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Goodwill and Intangibles

Certain business acquisitions have resulted imgberding of goodwill and trademark assets. Upaquisition, the purchase price is f
allocated to identifiable assets and liabilities;luding trademark assets, based on estimated/difile, with any remaining purchase p
recorded as goodwill. Most trademarks and goodwi#t considered indefinite lived intangible assatd as such are not amortized.
December 31, 2013 , we have goodwill of $1,724iarill which is primarily recorded within our North Anieat reporting unit. There ha
been no changes to our reporting units or allonataf goodwill by reporting units. We have tradeknassets in our North America and EM
operating segments with a carrying value of $1 @flon and $53 million, respectively, as of Decesnl31, 2013 .

We perform our annual impairment assessment fodgdloand other indefinitdived intangible assets as of October 1st and
frequently if indicators of impairment exist.
Goodwill Valuations

We evaluate goodwill using a qualitative assessrt@aietermine whether it is more likely than nattthe fair value of any reporti
unit is less than its carrying amount. If we detiemrthat the fair value of the reporting unit maylbss than its carrying amount, we eval
goodwill using a two-step impairment test. Othenyisve conclude that no impairment is indicated amddo not perform the twstef
impairment test.

25




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - (CONTINUED)

In conducting a qualitative assessment, the Compenayyzes a variety of events or factors that nmljpénce the fair value of t
reporting unit, including, but not limited to: tihesults of prior quantitative tests performed; demin the carrying amount of the reporting 1
actual and projected operating results; relevanketadata for both the company and its peer congzarindustry outlooks; macroeconol
conditions; liquidity; changes in key personneld dhe Company's competitive position. Significardgment is used to evaluate the totalit
these events and factors to make the determinafiovhether it is more likely than not that the faalue of the reporting unit is less thar
carrying value.

If the qualitative assessment concludes that tlwestep impairment test is necessary, we first comgi@rdoook value of a reporting ul
including goodwill, with its fair value. The fairalue is estimated based on a market approach dist@unted cash flow analysis, also kn
as the income approach, and is reconciled badket@trrent market capitalization for Whirlpool tasere that the implied control premiun
reasonable. If the book value of a reporting uriteeds its fair value, we perform the second stepstimate an implied fair value of
reporting units goodwill by allocating the fair value of the refrag unit to all of the assets and liabilities eththan goodwill (including ar
unrecognized intangible assets). The differencevdxet the total fair value of the reporting unit d@he fair value of all the assets and liabili
other than goodwill is the implied fair value ofathgoodwill. The amount of impairment loss is equathe excess of the book value of
goodwill over the implied fair value of that goodiwi

Evaluating Goodwill - Results and Significant Assumtions

Based on the favorable results of the qualitatisseasment conducted on October 1, 2013, there ava®adwill impairment charg
recorded in 2013.

For our North America reporting unit, where the omety of our goodwill is held, our qualitative assenent included a review of
events and factors outlined above. Our last quaiv# test was performed in 2011. Significant weighs provided to the following factors,
we determined that these items have the most gigntfimpact on the fair value of this reportingtun

. Operating profit margins improved for the secondsazutive year to 10.5% in 2013 compared to 8.8% A% in 2012 ar
2011, respectively. The improvements have beeredrlw higher net sales, ongoing cost productivitg, benefit of cost ai
capacityreduction initiatives, as well as our continuedligbito deliver innovative and consumer relevanbgucts to th
marketplace. The improvements in operating margorapared to the prior quantitative assessment paef in 2011 provide
significant positive evidence for the qualitatissassment.

. We experienced a 175 basis point decrease in soeutit rate from our last quantitative assessmenfibrmed in 2011, primari
driven by a decline in our company specific riskmpium. The decrease in the company specific risknprm is driven largely t
the structural improvement in our operating modsiveéred through successful execution of our cost @apacity reductions a
implementation of previously announced cbated price increases since 2011. The decreaseeimiscount rate provid
significant positive evidence for the qualitatissassment.

The implied increases to the fair value of our H@gkmerica reporting unit noted above are furthgpeuted by an increase in our ove
market capitalization of approximately $7.7 billimr 200%, as of October 1, 2013, compared to tle guantitative assessment in 2011.
increase is largely attributable to the improvedrafing performance of the North America reportim.

Intangible Valuations

We evaluate certain indefinitered intangibles using a qualitative assessmeutetermine whether it is more likely than not ttie fail
value of the indefinite lived intangible assetesd than its carrying amount. If we determine thatfair value may be less than its carr
amount, the fair value of the trademark is estighated compared to its carrying value to determiremiimpairment exists. Otherwise,
conclude that no impairment is indicated and waakoperform the quantitative test.

When the qualitative assessment is not utilized aadiantitative test is performed, we estimatef#éiirevalue of these intangible ass
using the relief-from-royalty method, which req@irassumptions related to projected revenues fromanaual long-ange plan; assum
royalty rates that could be payable if we did netnahe trademark; and a discount rate based orweighted average cost of capital.
recognize an impairment loss when the estimated/&hile of the indefinite-lived intangible asseless than its carrying value.

Evaluating Trademarks - Results and Significant Assmptions

We performed a qualitative assessment for one imade with a value of approximately $20 million. Oprior quantitative te
performed in 2011 indicated that the fair valuetfis trademark exceeded its respective carryingevhy approximately 400%. Based on
qualitative assessment conducted on October 1,,20@Zoncluded that it was more likely than nott ttee fair value of this trademark v
greater than its respective carrying value, theesfm impairment was recorded.
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We performed a quantitative test for our remairtiagiemarks. Based on the results of our test &ctifber 1, 2013, we determined
no impairment existed for our trademarks.

In performing the quantitative test, significansasptions used in our relief from royalty modelod®ctober 1, 2013 included revel
growth rates, assumed royalty rates and the diseatey which are discussed further below.

* Revenue growth rates relate to projected revermoas dur annual long range plan and vary from brandrand. Adverse changes
the operating environment for the appliance ingustr our inability to grow revenues at the foreedstates may result in a fut
impairment charge. We performed a sensitivity asialpn our estimated fair value noting that a 1@#uction of forecasted reven
would result in an impairment of approximately $Blion.

» In determining royalty rates for the valuation afr drademarks, we considered factors that affextitrinsic royalty rates that wot
hypothetically be paid for the use of the tradematke most significant factors in determining th&insic royalty rates include t
overall role and importance of the trademarks enghrticular industry, the profitability of the phacts utilizing the trademarks, and
position of the trademarked products in a givenkelasegment. Based on this analysis, we determinylty rates of 3% for ou
value brands, 3.5% to 4% for our mass market brands6% for our super premium brand. We performedrsitivity analysis on o
estimated fair value noting that a 100 basis pogdtuction of the royalty rates for each brand worddult in an impairment
approximately $150 million.

» In developing discount rates for the valuation of trademarks, we used the industry average welgiterage cost of capital as
base, adjusted for the higher relative level dfsiassociated with doing business in other cows)tes applicable, as well as the hi
relative levels of risks associated with intangibksets. Based on this analysis, we determinedutiseates ranging from 9.0%
13.0%. We performed a sensitivity analysis on ostingated fair value noting that an increase in discount rates used for 1
valuation of 100 basis points would result in apa@nmment of approximately $20 million.

Many of the factors used in assessing fair val@ecartside the control of management and it is mesly likely that assumptions &
estimates can change in future periods. These elsaran result in future impairments.

For additional information about goodwill and ingglle valuations, see Note 2 of the Notes to thesbbidated Financial Statements.
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEME NTS

Issued but not yet effective accounting pronouncgsare not expected to have a material effectusrtonsolidated financial statemer
OTHER MATTERS
Embraco Antitrust Matters

Beginning in February 2009, our compressor busihesslquartered in Brazil ("Embraco”) was notifiédnvestigations of the gloh
compressor industry by government authorities ifous jurisdictions. In 2013, Embraco sales repres approximately 8%f our global ne
sales.

Government authorities in Brazil, Europe, the Uthigtates, and other jurisdictions have entered agi@ements with Embraco ¢
concluded their investigations of the Company.dnrection with these agreements, Embraco has adkdged violations of antitrust law w
respect to the sale of compressors at various tirnes2004 through 2007 and agreed to pay finesetfement payments.

Since the government investigations commenced bmuaey 2009, Embraco, and other compressor manuéast have been namec
defendants in related antitrust lawsuits in varipussdictions seeking damages in connection wlih pricing of compressors during cer
periods beginning in 1996 or later. We have regbhertain claims and certain claims remain pending.

In February 2013, Embraco entered into a settleragraement with plaintiffs representing a proposetilement class of U.Sditect
purchasers” of compressors which provides for, agmmther things, the payment by Embraco of up to ®80on (subject to reduction for opt-
outs) in exchange for a release by all settlemkisscmembers. The settlement agreement, which vedisnmarily approved by the court
January 9, 2014 and remains subject to final capproval, does not cover any claims by direct pasehs which opt out of the propo
settlement class or claims by “indirect purchag#égintiffs. Other lawsuits are also pending anditamital lawsuits may be filed by purpor
purchasers of compressors or other plaintiffs.
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In connection with the defense and resolution ef Bmbraco antitrust matters, we have incurred cativel charges of approximat
$409 millionsince 2009, including fines, defense costs andr@kgenses. These charges have been recorded imtidiest and sundry incol
(expense). At December 31, 2013, $117 million remaiccrued, with installment payments of $46 milligplus interest, remaining to be m
to government authorities at various times thro2@h5.

We continue to defend these actions and take cffegis to minimize our potential exposure. The fimaicome and impact of the
matters, and any related claims and investigatibasmay be brought in the future are subject taynaariables, and cannot be predicted.
establish accruals only for those matters wherel@termine that a loss is probable and the amoulasefcan be reasonably estimated. Wh
is currently not possible to reasonably estimagedtigregate amount of costs which we may incunimection with these matters, such c
could have a material adverse effect on our firermpmsition, liquidity, or results of operations.

Brazilian Collection Dispute

We reached an agreement in June 2011 to setttdaaths arising from our longtanding dispute in Brazil with Banco Safra S.Acl
settlement was subsequently approved by a Brazilamt in July 2011. Pursuant to the settlement,sabsidiary agreed to pay Banco S
S.A. 959 million Brazilian reais, in two installmsnthe first of 469 million reais (equivalent t8G1 million) was made in July 2011, and
second of 490 million reais (equivalent to $275lioml ) was made during January 2012.

BEFIEX Credits

In previous years, our Brazilian operations eartgedcredits under the Brazilian governmengxport incentive program (BEFIE.
These credits reduced Brazilian federal excisestawedomestic sales, resulting in an increasedrofierationstecorded net sales. We be
recognizing BEFIEX credits in accordance with priavorable court decisions allowing for the crediisbe recognized. We were able
recognize approximately $109 million , $37 milliamd $266 millionof export credits in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respebtivwe recogniz
export credits as they are monetized; however réutictions by the Brazilian government could limitr ability to monetize these exg
credits.

In December 2013, the Brazilian government reintgd the monetary adjustment index applicable tEIBK credits that existed pri
to July 2009, when the Brazilian government requicempanies to apply a different monetary adjustnietiex to BEFIEX credits. It
unknown whether Brazilian courts will require these of the reinstituted index be given retroacéffect for the July 2009 to December 2
period, the effect of which would be to increase dimount of BEFIEX credits we would be entitledgoognize.

Our Brazilian operations have received governmeagaéssments related to claims for income andlsmmm#ribution taxes associa
with BEFIEX credits monetized from 2000 through 20énd 2007 through 2011. We do not believe BEFIKKoet credits are subject
income or social contribution taxes. We are disguthese tax matters in various courts and intendgorously defend our positions. We h
not provided for income or social contribution texan these export credits, and based on the ogiribtax and legal advisors, we have
accrued any amount related to these assessmenft®asember 31, 2013. The total amount of outstathx assessments received for inc
and social contribution taxes relating to the BEFIEredits, including interest and penalties, is ragpnately 1.2 billion Brazilian rea
(equivalent to $ 530 million ) as of December 3112

Litigation is inherently unpredictable and the doson of these matters may take many years tmattly resolve, during which tir
the amounts related to these assessments willnc@nto be increased by monetary adjustments &ehe rate, which is the benchmark rate
by the Brazilian Central Bank. Accordingly, it isgsible that an unfavorable outcome in these pdinge could have a material adverse e
on our financial position, liquidity, or results operations in any particular reporting period.

Brazil Tax Matters

Relying on existing Brazilian legal precedent, B02 and 2004, we recognized tax credits in an gggeeamount of $26 millio
adjusted for currency, on the purchase of raw ne$eused in production (“IPI tax credits"'The Brazilian tax authority subsequel
challenged the recording of IPI tax credits. Nodde have been recognized since 2004. In 2009, ntered into a Brazilian governmu
program which provided extended payment terms addaed penalties and interest to encourage taxgayeaesolve this and certain ot
disputed tax credit amounts. As permitted by thegmam, we elected to settle certain debts throhghuse of other existing tax credits
recorded charges of approximately $34 million i®2@&ssociated with these matters. In July 2012Btlaeilian revenue authority notified
that a portion of our proposed settlement was tefeand we received tax assessments of 197 mBifaailian reais (equivalent 84 million
as of December 31, 2013), reflecting the origirssessment, plus interest and penalties. We aratuliggthese assessments and we inte
vigorously defend our position. Based on the opireé our tax and legal advisors, we have not rezdran additional reserve related to tl
matters.
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In 2001, Brazil adopted a law making the profitscohtrolled foreign corporations of Brazilian eigt#t subject to income and so
contribution tax regardless of whether the profitsre repatriated ("CFC Tax"). Our Brazilian subaiglj along with other corporatiol
challenged tax assessments on foreign profits ostitotionality and other grounds. In April 2018gtBrazilian Supreme Court ruled in
case, finding that the law is constitutional, betnanding the case to a lower court for considanatioother arguments raised in our apg
including the existence of tax treaties with juitsibns in which controlled foreign corporationgatomiciled. As of December 31, 20]18ul
potential exposure for income and social contriiutiaxes relating to profits of controlled foreigorporations, including interest and pena
and net of expected foreign tax credits, is appnaxely 108 million reais (equivalent to $46 millipriwWe believe these assessments are wi
merit and we intend to continue to vigorously digpthem. Based on the opinion of our tax and legalsors, we have not accrued any am
related to these assessments as of December 3., 201

In December 2013, we entered into a Brazilian gowvent program to settle long standing disputedidization in the program remov
uncertainty related to 16 assessments that wewéopisdy under dispute and significantly reduceseptil penalties and interest associated
these matters. Our participation will result in pegnts, including principal and discounted inteeaxl penalties, of 123 million reais (equiva
to $53 million as of December 31, 2013), with $2lion paid in 2013 and the remainder in 30 montinistallments, increased by monet
adjustments at the Selic rate. During the fourthrtgr 2013, we recognized pi@ex charges of $11 million in cost of products sattd $1
million in interest and sundry income (expensedtes to this program.

In addition to the IPI tax credit and CFC Tax miateoted above, we are currently disputing otheesaments issued by the Brazi
tax authorities related to naneome and income tax matters, including BEFIEXddss which are at various stages of review in nioug
administrative and judicial proceedings. In accamawith our accounting policies, we routinely assthese matters and, when neces
record our best estimate of a loss. We believeettees assessments are without merit and are vighraefending our positions, however, €
of these matters may take several years to reswletdhe outcome of litigation is inherently unpotable. For additional information regard
BEFIEX credits, see Note 11 of the Consolidate@haial Statements.

Other Litigation

We are currently defending against numerous lawsending in federal and state courts in the Untates relating to certain of «
front load washing machines. Some of these lawshatse been certified for treatment as class actidhe complaints in these lawsi
generally allege violations of state consumer fraats, unjust enrichment, and breach of warranty domplaints generally seek unspec
compensatory, consequential and punitive damagesb®lieve these suits are without merit and arereigsly defending them. Given -
preliminary stage of these proceedings, the Comganyot reasonably estimate a possible range sf ifoany, at this time. The resolution
one or more of these matters could have a mataisgdrse effect on our Consolidated Financial States

In addition, we are currently defending a numberotfer lawsuits in federal and state courts in lthéted States related to 1
manufacturing and sale of our products which inelathss action allegations. These lawsuits allégiens which include breach of contr:
breach of warranty, product defect, fraud, violatwf federal and state consumer protection actsnagtigence. We do not have insure
coverage for class action lawsuits. We are alsolied in various other legal actions arising in tirmal course of business, for wt
insurance coverage may or may not be availablerdipg on the nature of the action. We dispute tlegits1 of these suits and actions,
intend to vigorously defend them. Management bebewased upon its current knowledge, after takimg consideration legal couns
evaluation of such suits and actions, and aftan¢aiato account current litigation accruals, ttted outcome of these matters currently per
against Whirlpool should not have a material adveféect, if any, on our Consolidated Financiat&teents.

Antidumping Actions

In January 2014, the U.S. Court of Internationalder (“CIT") ruled on our appeal from a 2012 determination leyWhS. Internation
Trade Commission (“ITC") that dumped and subsidibettommount refrigerators imported from South Korea itite United States did r
cause material injury to domestic producers. THE f6und errors in the ITG decision and remanded the case for reconsiderdtalowing
the CIT ruling, we decided to no longer pursue afpeelated to the bottom mount refrigerator actionJanuary 2014, the CIT granted
request to dismiss the appeal and, consequentlyexpect the other pending appeals concerning thimrbenount refrigerator case to
dismissed.

In December 2011, we filed petitions requesting th@ Department of Commerce (“DOC&nd the ITC initiate antidumping a
countervailing duty investigations against largsidential washers from South Korea, and an antidognpvestigation against the sa
products from Mexico. In December 2012, the DO@aéskfinal determinations that several Korean andités
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producers had engaged in dumping and that certaieat producers received countervailable governsgodidies. In January 2013, the
unanimously determined that dumped and subsidimgabiits caused material injury to domestic produders-ebruary 2013, the DOC issI
final orders requiring certain South Korean and Mamx producers to pay cash deposits on importargelresidential washers into the Un
States. Various appeals challenging all or pathefDOC and ITC final determinations have beerdfilEhese appeals may take several ye:
resolve. During the pendency of these appealdD@®€ orders remain in effect and the DOC will conérto conduct administrative review:
determine the amount of dumping and countervailinges to be paid by these importers. The amoumeiawvill depend on the extent to wh
foreign producers price these products below falu& and receive subsidies on these products dtivéngeriods under review.

Conflict Minerals

In August 2012, the SEC issued final rules requirdlisclosure of the use of conflict minerals (tdumg tin, tungsten and gol
originating in the Democratic Republic of Congo aujoining countries. We are currently analyzingetiter conflict minerals are necessat
the functionality or production of our products aificso, the most efficient and effective means omgplying with the due diligence a
reporting requirements of the rules. The first idisare reporting period is for the 2013 calendarywith a final report to be filed no later ti
May 31, 2014,

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of B98rovides a safe harbor for forwdmbking statements made by us or on our be
Certain statements contained in this annual repuctuding those within the forwaroking perspective section within this Managens
Discussion and Analysis, and other written and stalements made from time to time by us or onbaimalf do not relate strictly to histori
or current facts and may contain forwdodking statements that reflect our current viewishwespect to future events and finan
performance. As such, they are considered “fordaolting statementsivhich provide current expectations or forecastfuafre events. Sui
statements can be identified by the use of terrmogolsuch as “may,” “could,” “will,” “should,” “posbkle,” “plan,” “predict,” “forecast,”
“potential,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” ‘fjoject,” “intend,” “believe,” “may impact,” “on trek,” and similar words or expressions. !
forward-looking statements generally relate to growth strategies, financial results, product depeient, and sales efforts. These forwart
looking statements should be considered with thdersianding that such statements involve a vaoétysks and uncertainties, known
unknown, and may be affected by inaccurate assomgtiConsequently, no forwalobking statement can be guaranteed and actudisesay
vary materially.

This document contains forward-looking statemeibisud Whirlpool Corporation and its consolidated sidtaries (“Whirlpool”) tha
speak only as of this date. Whirlpool disclaims afjigation to update these statements. Ford@olling statements in this document t
include, but are not limited to, statements regaydéxpected earnings per share, cash flow, prodiycind material and oilelated price:
Many risks, contingencies and uncertainties coalase actual results to differ materially from Wardl's forwardiooking statements. Amo
these factors are: (1) intense competition in thén appliance industry reflecting the impact ofhboeéw and established global competi
including Asian and European manufacturers; (2)Afgbol's ability to continue itselationship with significant trade customers amel ability
of these trade customers to maintain or increag&enahare; (3) acquisition and investmegitited risk; (4) changes in economic condit
which affect demand for our products, including gteength of the building industry and the levelimterest rates; (5) product liability €
product recall costs; (6) inventory and other asskt (7) risks related to our international cgtéans, including changes in foreign regulati
regulatory compliance and disruptions arising froatural disasters or terrorist attacks; (8) theewain global economy; (9) the ability
Whirlpool to achieve its business plans, produttimprovements, cost control, price increasestaging of its global operating platform, i
acceleration of the rate of innovation; (10) Whifis ability to maintain its reputation and branthge; (11) fluctuations in the cost of |
materials (including steel, plastic, resins, coppad aluminum) and components and the ability ofiridiol to offset cost increast
(12) litigation, tax, and legal compliance risk arabts, especially costs which may be materiaffigint from the amount we expect to incu
have accrued for; (13) the effects and costs okguwmental investigations or related actions bydtipiarties; (14) Whirlpool's ability to obt:
and protect intellectual property rights; (15) thieility of suppliers of critical parts, componers#ed manufacturing equipment to deli
sufficient quantities to Whirlpool in a timely awdsteffective manner; (16) health care cost trendgylegory changes and variations betw
results and estimates that could increase futundifig obligations for pension and postretirememntefié plans; (17) information technolc
system failures and data security breaches; (E8ntipact of labor relations; (19) our ability tdratt, develop and retain executives and «
qualified employees; (20) changes in the legal mgdilatory environment including environmental délth and safety regulations; and
the ability of Whirlpool to manage foreign currerflyctuations.
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We undertake no obligation to update any forwlamking statement, and investors are advised tewedisclosures in our filings wi
the SEC. It is not possible to foresee or iderdifyfactors that could cause actual results tcediffom expected or historic results. Therel
investors should not consider the foregoing factorse an exhaustive statement of all risks, una#ies, or factors that could potentially ce
actual results to differ from forward-looking staients.

Additional information concerning these and otreatérs can be found in “Risk Factors” in Item 1Atluif report.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK.

MARKET RISK

We have in place an enterprise risk managemengpsahat involves systematic risk identificationl amtigation covering the categor
of enterprise, strategic, financial, operation awnpliance and reporting risk. The enterprise risknagement process receives Boal
Directors and Management oversight, drives riskigaiton decisiormaking and is fully integrated into our internaldduplanning an
execution cycle.

We are exposed to market risk from changes in doreiurrency exchange rates, domestic and foreitgrest rates, and commoc
prices, which can affect our operating results andrall financial condition. We manage exposurehise risks through our operating
financing activities and, when deemed approprid@ugh the use of derivatives. Derivatives aravei@ as risk management tools and art
used for speculation or for trading purposes. Qaives are generally contracted with a diversifigdup of investment grade counterpartie
reduce exposure to nonperformance on such instrismen

We use foreign currency forward contracts, currepmyons and currency swaps to hedge the priceasskciated with firmly committ
and forecasted crosmrder payments and receipts related to ongoinqéss and operational financing activities. Foreigmrency contrac
are sensitive to chargs in foreign currency exchange rates. At DecerBibeR013, a 10% favorable or unfavorable exchaagemovement
each currency in our portfolio of foreign currerantracts would have resulted in an incrementadalimed gain or loss of approximately $
million. Consistent with the use of these contraotaeutralize the effect of exchange rate fludtuest, such unrealized losses or gains wou
offset by corresponding gains or losses, respdgtiirethe re-measurement of the underlying expesur

We enter into commodity swap contracts to hedgepthoe risk associated with firmly committed andeftasted commodities purcha:
the prices of which are not fixed directly through supply catts. As of December 31, 2013, a 10% favorable rdaworable shift i
commodity prices would have resulted in an incretaegain or loss of approximately $35 million, resgively, related to these contracts.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

WHIRLPOOL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Year Ended December 31,
(Millions of dollars, except per share data)

2013 2012 2011
Net sales $ 18,76¢ 18,14: $ 18,66¢
Expenses
Cost of products sold 15,47 15,25( 16,08¢
Gross margin 3,29¢ 2,89¢ 2,57
Selling, general and administrative 1,82¢ 1,755 1,621
Intangible amortization 25 30 28
Restructuring costs 19€ 237 13€
Operating profit 1,24¢ 86¢ 792
Other income (expense)
Interest and sundry income (expense) (15%) (112) (607)
Interest expense 77 (199) (213
Earnings (loss) before income taxes 917 55€ (28)
Income tax expense (benefit) 68 13z (43€)
Net earnings 84¢ 42~ 40¢
Less: Net earnings available to noncontrolling ries¢s 22 24 18
Net earnings available to Whirlpool $ 827 401 $ 39C
Per share of common stock
Basic net earnings available to Whirlpool $ 10.4- 51 % 5.07
Diluted net earnings available to Whirlpool $ 10.2¢ 5.0e $ 4.9¢
Weighted-average shares outstanding (in millions)
Basic 79.% 78.1 76.¢
Diluted 80.¢ 79.2 78.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part okt@emsolidated Financial Statements
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WHIRLPOOL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year Ended December 31,
(Millions of dollars)

2013 2012 2011
Net earnings $ 84¢ 42t % 40¢
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments (122 (36€) (8€)
Derivative instruments:
Net gain (loss) arising during period 9 (17) (62)
Less: reclassification adjustment for gairsgloincluded in net earnings (12) (25) 8C
Derivative instruments, net 2 8 (142)
Marketable securities:
Net gain (loss) arising during period 7 2 (13
Less: reclassification adjustment for gairsgloincluded in net earnings — (7 9
Marketable securities, net 7 9 4
Defined benefit pension and postretirement plans:
Prior service (cost) credit arising duringiper (2 2 14¢
Net gain (loss) arising during period 47¢% (389 (289)
Less: amortization of prior service credit§f@and actuarial (loss) (39) 38 42
Defined benefit pension and postretirement plaas, 50¢ (420 @77
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax 39t (439) (409)
Income tax benefit (expense) related to itefritleer comprehensive income (loss) (16%) 13C 71
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax $ 23C 309 $ (33¢)
Comprehensive income $ 1,07¢ 11€ % 7C
Less: comprehensive income, available to noimobling interests 19 20 13
Comprehensive income available to Whirlpool $ 1,06( 9% $ 57

The accompanying notes are an integral part okt@emnsolidated Financial Statements
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WHIRLPOOL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
At December 31,

(Millions of dollars, except share data)

Assets
Current assets
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $73 an@, $6spectively
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Prepaid and other current assets

Total current assets

Property, net of accumulated depreciation of $6 278 $6,070, respectively
Goodwill

Other intangibles, net of accumulated amortizatib$237 and $211, respectively
Deferred income taxes

Other noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued advertising and promotions
Employee compensation
Notes payable
Current maturities of long-term debt
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term debt
Pension benefits
Postretirement benefits
Other noncurrent liabilities

Total noncurrent liabilities

Stockholders’ equity

Common stock, $1 par value, 250 million sharesa@ighd, 109 million and 108 million shares issuec
and 77 million and 79 million shares outstandimgpectively

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Treasury stock, 32 million and 29 million sharesspectively

Total Whirlpool stockholders’ equity

Noncontrolling interests

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

2013 2012
1,38C $ 1,16¢
2,00t 2,03¢
2,40¢ 2,35¢

54¢ 55¢
68C 70¢
7,022 6,821
3,041 3,03¢
1,72¢ 1,721
1,70: 1,722
1,76¢ 1,83:
291 254
1554 $ 15,39
3,865 $ 3,69¢
71C 692
441 41¢
45€ 52C
10 7
607 51C
705 664
6,79¢ 6,51(
1,84¢ 1,944
93C 1,63¢
45¢ 422
482 517
3,71¢ 4,51¢
10¢ 10¢
2,45: 2,31¢
5,78¢ 5,147
(1,29¢) (1,531)
(2,129 1,777
4,92 4,26(
11C 107
5,03¢ 4,367
1554: $  15,39¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktEmsolidated Financial Statements
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WHIRLPOOL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31,
(Millions of dollars)

Operating activities
Net earnings
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to cash plexyby operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Curtailment gain
Increase (decrease) in LIFO inventory reserve
Brazilian collection dispute
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Accounts payable
Accrued advertising and promotions
Product recall
Taxes deferred and payable, net
Accrued pension and postretirement benefits
Employee compensation
Other
Cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of assets
Investment in related businesses
Other
Cash used in investing activities
Financing activities
Repayments of long-term debt
Proceeds from borrowings of long-term debt
Net proceeds (repayments) from short-term borrogving
Dividends paid
Repurchase of common stock
Common stock issued
Other
Cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and egquigal
Increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEmsolidated Financial Statements
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2013 2012 2011
$ 84c 425 $  40¢
54C 551 55¢
— (52) (35)
(26) (13) 54
— (275) 144
(65) 47 (15)
(86) @ 282
27¢F 24C 25
28 (13) 14
— — (15)
(108) (68) (579)
(184) (227) (34¢)
(23) 24¢ (59)
59 (161) 90
1,26- 69€ 53C
(57¢) (476€) (608)
6 10 23
(6) (28) (7
(4) — (4
(582) (494) (59€6)
(519) (361) (319
51¢ 322 30C
5 6 @)
(187) (158) (14¢)
(350) — —
95 43 14
(2 ©) (17)
(434) (14€) (16€)
(34) 5 27)
212 59 (25¢)
1,16¢ 1,10¢ 1,36¢
$ 1,38 1,166 $  1,10¢
$ 17¢ 197 $ 20¢
$ 15€ 177 $ 13€




WHIRLPOOL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balances, December 31, 2010
Comprehensive income

Net earnings

Other comprehensive loss
Comprehensive income
Stock issued
Dividends declared
Balances, December 31, 2011
Comprehensive income

Net earnings

Other comprehensive loss
Comprehensive income

Cumulative adjustment, equity method

investment
Stock issued
Dividends declared
Balances, December 31, 2012
Comprehensive income
Net earnings

Other comprehensive income

Comprehensive income
Stock issued (repurchased)
Dividends declared

Balances, December 31, 2013

Year ended December 31,
(Millions of dollars)

Whirlpool Stockholders’ Equity

Treasury Stock/ Non-

Retained Accumulated Other Additional Paid- Common Controlling

Total Earnings Comprehensive Loss in-Capital Stock Interests
$ 432( $ 4,680 $ (89%) $ 332 % 106 $ 94
40¢ 39C — — — 18
(339§ — (339) — — (5)
70 39C (339) — — 13
46 — — 46 — —
(15€) (14¢) — — — (8
4,28( 4,922 (1,22¢) 37¢ 10€ 99
42¢ 401 — — — 24
(309) — (30K) — — (4
11€ 401 (305) — — 20
18 (18) — — — —
15¢ — — 157 2 —_
(170) (15¢) — — — (12
4,36 5,147 (1,53 53¢ 10¢€ 107
84¢ 827 — — — 22
23C — 23¢ — — 3
1,07¢ 827 238 — — 19
(20¢) — — (207) 1 —
(20€) (190 — — — (16
$ 503 $ 578 $ (1,296 $ 32¢ % 106 $ 11C

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEmsolidated Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General Information

Whirlpool Corporation, a Delaware corporation, e tworld's leading manufacturer and marketer ofoméjome appliances. V
manufacture appliances in 11 countries and mankaygts in nearly every country around the worldiembrand names such ahirlpool,
Maytag, KitchenAid, Jer-Air, Amana, Bauknecht, Brastenapd Consul. Whirlpool has fourgeographic segments, which consist of N
America, Latin America, EMEA (Europe, Middle EasidaAfrica) and Asia. Our Consolidated Financialt&taents include all majoritgwnec
subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions havenbeliminated upon consolidation.

Reclassifications

We reclassified certain prior period amounts in @onsolidated Financial Statements to be consistéhtcurrent period presentatis
The effect of these reclassifications is not materi

Use of Estimates

We are required to make estimates and assumpti@isaffect the amounts reported in the Consolidd&tie@dncial Statements a
accompanying notes. Actual results could differemiatly from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Sales are recorded when title passes to the custasraetermined by the shipping terms. For the nigjof our sales, title is transferr
to the customer as soon as products are shipped portion of our sales, title is transferred e tustomer upon receipt of products a
customers location. Allowances for estimated returns arelenan sales of certain products based on historaatn rates for the produ
involved.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acamts

We carry accounts receivable at sales value lesdlanwance for doubtful accounts. We periodicallialeate accounts receivable .
establish an allowance for doubtful accounts basea@ combination of specific customer circumstancesdit conditions and the history
write-offs and collections. We evaluate items orratividual basis when determining accounts reddaavrite-offs. In general, our policy is
not charge interest on trade receivables afteimimice becomes past due. A receivable is congidpast due if payment has not been rece
within agreed upon invoice terms.

Freight and Warehousing Costs
We classify freight and warehousing costs withiatad products sold in our Consolidated Statemehiscome.

Cash and Equivalents

All highly liquid debt instruments purchased with iaitial maturity of three months or less are ddased cash equivalents.
Fair Value Measurements

We measure fair value based on an exit price, septeng the amount that would be received to selisset or paid to transfer a liabi
in an orderly transaction between market partidipafis such, fair value is a markeased measurement that should be determined ba
assumptions that market participants would useriting an asset or liability. As a basis for comsidg such assumptions, a thtered fai
value hierarchy is established, which prioritizes inputs used in measuring fair value as follofusvel 1) observable inputs such as qu
prices in active markets; (Level 2) inputs, otHeart the quoted prices in active markets that asemiable, either directly or indirectly; ¢
(Level 3) unobservable inputs in which there iddibr no market data, which require the reporémgjty to develop its own assumptions.
had no Level 3 assets or liabilities at Decembei2813 and 2012 .

We measured fair value for money market funds aralable for sale investments using quoted markitep in active markets f
identical or comparable assets. We measured faieviar derivative contracts, all of which have ntarparties with high credit ratings, ba
on model driven valuations using significant inpdésived from observable market data.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (C ONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at first-in, first-out (“l@B cost, except United States production invem®riwhich are stated at last-in, fimtt
(“LIFO") cost, and Latin America and Asia inventories, whach stated at average cost. Costs do not excéedatizable values. See Not
for additional information about inventories.

Property

Property is stated at cost, net of accumulatededégtion. For production machinery and equipmeng,record depreciation based
units produced, unless units produced drop belamiramum threshold at which point depreciation isaeled using the straighite methoc
For nonproduction assets, we depreciate costs baisetie straightine method. Depreciation expense for propertyjuiding accelerate
depreciation classified as restructuring expenssuinConsolidated Statements of Income, was $51®mj $521 million and $530 milliomm
2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

The following table summarizes our property as eE&@mber 31, 2013 and 2012 :

Estimated
Millions of dollars 2013 2012 Useful Life
Land $ 76 3 74 n/a
Buildings 1,30 1,252 25 to 50 year
Machinery and equipment 7,94( 7,77¢ 3 to 25 year
Accumulated depreciation (6,279 (6,070
Property, net $ 3,041 $ 3,03¢

We classify gains and losses associated with degmisitions in the same line item as the undeglgiepreciation of the disposed ass
the Consolidated Statements of Income. We retipguiaximately $163 million and $558 millioof machinery and equipment no longer in
during 2013 and 2012 , respectively. Net gainslassies recognized in cost of products sold werenadérial for 2013 , 2012 and 2011 .

We record impairment losses on loliggd assets, excluding goodwill and intangiblebew events and circumstances indicate the
may be impaired and the estimated future cash flpsveerated by those assets are less than thepincpamounts. There were significan
impairments recorded during 2013, 2012 and 2011 .

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

We evaluate goodwill using a qualitative assessrtedietermine whether it is more likely than nattthe fair value of any reporti
unit is less than its carrying amount. If we deti@erthat the fair value of the reporting unit may|lbss than its carrying amount, we eval
goodwill using a two-step impairment test. Othemyisve conclude that no impairment is indicated amddo not perform the twstef
impairment test.

If the qualitative assessment concludes that tlwestep impairment test is necessary, we first comgiardoook value of a reporting ul
including goodwill, with its fair value. The fairalue is estimated based on a market approach dist@unted cash flow analysis, also kn
as the income approach, and is reconciled badket@trrent market capitalization for Whirlpool tasere that the implied control premiun
reasonable. If the book value of a reporting uriteeds its fair value, we perform the second stepstimate an implied fair value of
reporting units goodwill by allocating the fair value of the refiag unit to all of the assets and liabilities eththan goodwill (including ar
unrecognized intangible assets). The differencevdxet the total fair value of the reporting unit d@he fair value of all the assets and liabili
other than goodwill is the implied fair value ofathgoodwill. The amount of impairment loss is equathe excess of the book value of
goodwill over the implied fair value of that goodiwi

We evaluate certain indefinitered intangibles using a qualitative assessmeutetermine whether it is more likely than not ttie fail
value of the indefinite lived intangible assetasd than its carrying amount. If we determine thatfair value may be less than its carr
amount, the fair value of the trademark is estighated compared to its carrying value to determireniimpairment exists. Otherwise,
conclude that no impairment is indicated and waakoperform the quantitative test.

When the qualitative assessment is not utilized aadiantitative test is performed, we estimatef#éiirevalue of these intangible ass¢
using the relief-from-royalty method, which req@irassumptions related to projected revenues fromanaoual longange plan; assum
royalty rates that could be payable if we did netahe trademark; and a discount rate based orweighted average cost of capital.
recognize an impairment loss when the estimated/&iie of the indefinite-lived intangible asseldass than its carrying value.

Definite lived intangible assets are amortized dbeir estimated useful life. See Note 2 for addisil information about goodwill a
intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (C ONTINUED)

Accounts Payable Outsourcing

We offer our suppliers access to third party pagsigrocessors. Independent of Whirlpool, the psmrssallow suppliers to sell th
receivables to financial institutions at the soleccktion of both the supplier and the financiatitution. We have no economic interest in
sale of these receivables and no direct finanahtionship with the financial institutions concieign these services. All of our obligatio
including amounts due, remain to our supplierstated in our supplier agreements. As of DecembePB13 and 2012 , approximate$yt.:
billion and $1.2 billion , respectively, have besaid by suppliers to participating financial instibns.

Derivative Financial Instruments

We use derivative instruments designated as cashdhd fair value hedges to manage our exposutieetoolatility in material cost
foreign currency and interest rates on certain gedttuments. Changes in the fair value of denxaatissets or liabilities (i.e., gains or losses
recognized depending upon the type of hedgingiosisttip and whether a hedge has been designatedhése derivative instruments t
qualify for hedge accounting, we designate the med@qstrument, based upon the exposure being liedgea cash flow hedge, fair ve
hedge, or a hedge of a net investment in a forefgration. For a derivative instrument designated &air value hedge, the gain or loss ot
derivative is recognized in earnings in the perdcthange in fair value together with the offseajtigain or loss on the hedged item. F
derivative instrument designated as a cash flovgagthe effective portion of the derivatigegain or loss is initially reported as a comporsd
Other Comprehensive Income and is subsequentlygnéoed in earnings when the hedged exposure affestsings. For a derivati
instrument designated as a hedge of a net investimenforeign operation, the effective portiontbé derivatives gain or loss is reported
Other Comprehensive Income as part of the cum@atanslation adjustment. Changes in fair valugesivative instruments that do not qua
for hedge accounting are recognized immediatelguiment net earnings. See Note 7 for additionadrimfition about hedges and deriva
financial instruments.

Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilarestranslated into United States dollars at exgbaates existing at the respec
balance sheet dates. Translation adjustments iresdtom fluctuations in exchange rates are reabrde a separate component of ¢
comprehensive income (loss) within stockholdeglity. The results of operations of foreign suiasids are translated at the average exct
rates during the respective periods. Gains aneosesulting from foreign currency transactionsiackided in net earnings.

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs are charged to ssxped totaled $582 million , $553 million and $57Blion in 2013 , 2012anc
2011 , respectively.
Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are charged to expense whendhergsement is first communicated and totaled $3@Hon , $273 million ands27¢
million in 2013 , 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the asset ahilitjamethod. Under this method, deferred tax tsa@ad liabilities are recognized
the future tax consequences of temporary differeegween the financial statement and tax basassafts and liabilities using enacted r:
The effect of a change in tax rates on deferredssets is recognized in income in the period ategnent date.

We recognize, in other current and noncurrentlités, in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, effettmn uncertain income tax posit
when it is more likely than not, based on technivadrits, that the position will be sustained upoamgination. We accrue for other
contingencies when it is probable that a liabitiya taxing authority has been incurred and thewsnrnof the contingency can be reason
estimated.

Provision is made for taxes on undistributed e@®iof foreign subsidiaries and related companigsd@xtent that such earnings are
deemed to be permanently invested. See Note Jddftitional information about income taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (C ONTINUED)

Stock Based Compensation

We recognize stock based compensation expense loaséte grant date fair value of the award over edod during which &
employee is required to provide service in exchaogehe award (generally the vesting period). Téie value of stock options is determir
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, whitctorporates assumptions regarding the figk-interest rate, expected volatility, expe
option life and dividend yield. Stock options amamfed with an exercise price equal to the stoadepon the date of grant. The fair valut
restricted stock units and performance stock usitgenerally based on the closing market price bfriool common stock on the grant d
See Note 9 for additional information about stoakd compensation.

BEFIEX Credits

In previous years, our Brazilian operations earteedcredits under the Brazilian governmengxport incentive program (BEFIE:
These credits reduce Brazilian federal excise taredomestic sales, resulting in an increase irofiegationstrecorded net sales. We recog!
export credits as they are monetized; however réutictions by the Brazilian government could limitr ability to monetize these exg
credits. See Note 11 for additional informationaneting BEFIEX credits.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2013, we adopted the provisions of Anting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2003, issued by the Financial Account
Standards Board (“FASB”")hich requires new asset and liability offsettingctbsures for derivatives, repurchase agreemerdssacurit
lending transactions to the extent that they drpoffset in the financial statements; or (2) sabje an enforceable master netting arrange
or similar agreement. We do not have any repurclagseements and do not participate in securitindihg transactions. Our derivat
instruments are not offset in the financial statetmeand are not subject to any specific right déetf provisions with our counterparti
Accordingly, this amendment did not have a matengdact on our Consolidated Financial Statementklifonal information about derivati
instruments can be found in Note 7 of the Notet¢oConsolidated Financial Statements.

In February 2013, the FASB amended Accounting Steded Codification 220, “Comprehensive Incomé&lis amendment requir
companies to report, in one place, information alrealassifications (by component) out of accumadabther comprehensive income
addition, this amendment requires companies tceptafe related line item effect of significantlessifications on the statement where inc
is presented. We adopted the provisions of thisngiment during the first quarter 2013, which affemt$y the display of information and dt
not change existing recognition and measuremeninagents in our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Issued but not yet effective accounting pronouncemare not expected to have a material impact unGonsolidated Financ
Statements.

(2) GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

We evaluate goodwill and indefinite lived intangiblfor impairment annually. During 2012, we voluilyachanged the date of ¢
annual impairment assessment from November 30 tob@c 1.

Goodwill

We performed our assessment as of October 1, 2813 determined there was ingpairment of goodwill. The total net carrying anmt
of goodwill was $1,724 million at December 31, 2018ith $1,720 million in our North America operagi segment and $4 millian our Latir
America operating segment. At December 31, 201haee$1,727 million , with $1,723 million in our NbrAmerica operating segment abdl
million in our Latin America operating segment.

Other Intangible Assets

We performed our annual assessment of indefirfegrtangibles as of October 1, 2013 , and detezthithere were nonpairments t
our indefinite lived intangibles.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (C ONTINUED)

The following table summarizes other intangiblestsst December 31, 2013 and 2012 :

2013 2012
Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated

Millions of dollars Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Other intangible assets, finite lives:

Customer relationshig¥ $ 28¢ % (125) $ 164 $ 28¢ % (109) $ 18C

Patents and othé&t 12¢ (112) 1€ 12¢ (102) 21
Total other intangible assets, finite lives $ 417  $ (237 $ 18C $ 41z $ 211y $ 201
Trademarks, indefinite lives 1,52z — 1,52z 1,521 — 1,521
Total other intangible assets $ 193¢ § (23 $ 1,70z $ 193¢ § (21) $ 1,72

1)
&)

Customer relationships have an estimated useéubfifl8 years.

Patents and other intangibles have an etimaseful life of 4 to 14 years.

The following table summarizes our future estimatatbrtization expense by year:

Millions of dollars

2014 22
2015 20
2016 18
2017 17
2018 17
(3) FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oecairring basis at December 31, 2013 and 2012safi@laws:
Quoted Prices In
Active Markets for Significant Other
Identical Assets Observable Inputs
Total Cost Basis (Level 1) (Level 2) Total Fair Value
Millions of dollars 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Money market fund$ $ 468 $ 56 $ 46t $ 56 9 — $ — $ 46E $ 567
Net derivative contracts — — — — (25) (14) (25) (14
Available for sale investments 8 7 18 1C — — 18 10
®Money market funds are comprised primarily of goweent obligations and other first tier obligations.
(4) INVENTORIES
The following table summarizes our inventories at®mber 31, 2013 and 2012 :

Millions of dollars 2013 2012
Finished products $ 1,95 $ 1,94¢
Raw materials and work in process 622 59¢€

2,572 2,54¢
Less: excess of FIFO cost over LIFO cost (164) (290
Total inventories $ 2,40¢ % 2,35¢

LIFO inventories represented 39% and 40% of totaéitories at December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respédcti
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (C ONTINUED)

(5) FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

Debt
The following table summarizes our debt at Decenie?013 and 2012 :

Millions of dollars

2013 2012

Medium-term note—5.5%, matured 2013 $ —  $ 50C
Maytag medium-term note—6.5%, maturing 2014 10C 101
Senior note—8.6%, maturing 2014 50C 50C
Maytag medium-term note—5.0%, maturing 2015 19¢ 19¢
Senior note—6.5%, maturing 2016 25C 25C
Debentures—7.75%, maturing 2016 244 244
Senior note—4.85%, maturing 2021 30C 30C
Senior note—4.70%, maturing 2022 30C 30C
Senior note—3.70% maturing 2023 25C —
Senior note—5.15% maturing 2043 25C —
Other (various maturing through 2019) 61 63
2,45% 2,45¢

Less current maturities 607 51C
Total long-term debt $ 1,84¢ $ 1,944

The following table summarizes the contractual mads of our debt, including current maturities December 31, 2013 :

Millions of dollars

2014 $ 607
2015 21z
2016 50¢
2017 9
2018 8
Thereafter 1,10¢

Debt, including current maturities $ 2,45:

The fair value of long-term debt (including currematurities) was $2.6 billion at December 31, 2ah8 2012and was estimated usin
discounted cash flow analysis based on increméntabwing rates for similar types of borrowing amgaments.

In March 2013, $500 million of 5.50% notes matueedl were repaid. On February 27, 2013, we complateébt offering of$25(
million principal amount of 3.70% notes due in 2G281 $250 million principal amount of 5.1596tes due in 2043 (collectively, the "Note
The Notes contain covenants that limit our abildyincur certain liens or enter into certain salel &easeback transactions. In addition, if
experience a specific kind of change of control,ane required to make an offer to purchase alhefNotes at a purchase price of 104fthe
principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpatierést. The Notes are registered under the SiesuAtt of 1933 (the "Securities Act"),
amended, pursuant to the Company’s Registratiotei®nt on Form S-3 (File No. 3381339) filed with the Securities and Exche
Commission (the “SEC”) on May 11, 2012.

On May 1, 2012, $ 350 million of 8.00% notes matband were repaid. On June 1, 2012 , we compéetibt offering of $00 million
principal amount of 4.70% notes due June 1, 2022 2022 Notes”)The 2022 Notes contain covenants that limit oulitglto incur certail
liens or enter into certain sale and lebsek transactions. In addition, if we experienapecific kind of change of control, we are requite
make an offer to purchase all of the 2022 Notes ptirchase price of 10186 the principal amount thereof, plus accrued angaid interes
The 2022 Notes are registered under the Secufitegpursuant to our Registration Statement on F&rB(File No. 333t81339) filed with th
SEC on May 11, 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (C ONTINUED)

We have a $1.725 billion committed credit faciliyaturing on June 28, 2016 which includes a $200anmiletter of credit sulfacility.
Borrowings under the credit facility are availabbeus and designated subsidiaries for general catp@urposes, including commercial pi
support. Subsidiary borrowings under this facilifygny, are guaranteed by Whirlpool Corporatiartetest under the credit facility accrues
variable annual rate based on LIBOR plus a margithe prime rate plus a margin. The margin is ddpahon our credit rating at that tir
The credit facility requires us to meet certairelage and interest coverage requirements. Weniliria commitment fee based on Whirlpc
credit rating for any unused portion of the crddiility. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, we hadnoowings outstanding under this cri
agreement and are in compliance with all financtalenant requirements.

We have committed credit facilities in Brazil, whiprovide borrowings up to 1,120 million Brazilieeais (approximatel$478 millior
as of December 31, 2013 ) maturing in 2014 andQOmh52 The credit facilities contain no financial emants and we had rwrrowings
outstanding under these credit facilities at Decen®i, 2013 and 2012 .

Notes Payable

Notes payable, which consist of either shertn borrowings payable to banks or commercial pagre generally used to fund work
capital requirements. The fair value of our notaggble approximates the carrying amount due tcstimet maturity of these obligations. '
had no commercial paper outstanding at Decembe2®1 and 2012 .

(6) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Embraco Antitrust Matters

Beginning in February 2009, our compressor busihesslquartered in Brazil ("Embraco”) was notifigdnvestigations of the glob
compressor industry by government authorities iious jurisdictions. In 2013, Embraco sales reprtes approximately 8%f our global ne
sales.

Government authorities in Brazil, Europe, the Uthigtates, and other jurisdictions have entered &gi@ements with Embraco ¢
concluded their investigations of the Company.dnrection with these agreements, Embraco has ad&dged violations of antitrust law w
respect to the sale of compressors at various tiroes2004 through 2007 and agreed to pay finesetitement payments.

Since the government investigations commenced bmuaey 2009, Embraco, and other compressor manuréast have been namec
defendants in related antitrust lawsuits in varipussdictions seeking damages in connection wlih pricing of compressors during cer
periods beginning in 1996 or later. We have regbhertain claims and certain claims remain pending.

In February 2013, Embraco entered into a settleragraement with plaintiffs representing a proposetilement class of U.Sditect
purchasers” of compressors which provides for, agmmther things, the payment by Embraco of up to ®80on (subject to reduction for opt-
outs) in exchange for a release by all settlemkisscmembers. The settlement agreement, which vedisnmarily approved by the court
January 9, 2014 and remains subject to final capproval, does not cover any claims by direct pasehs which opt out of the propo
settlement class or claims by “indirect purchag#égintiffs. Other lawsuits are also pending anditamital lawsuits may be filed by purpor
purchasers of compressors or other plaintiffs.

In connection with the defense and resolution ef Bmbraco antitrust matters, we have incurred cativel charges of approximat
$409 millionsince 2009, including fines, defense costs andr@kgenses. These charges have been recorded imtifviest and sundry incol
(expense). At December 31, 2013, $117 million remaiccrued, with installment payments of $46 milliplus interest, remaining to be m
to government authorities at various times thro2@h5.

We continue to defend these actions and take cffeguis to minimize our potential exposure. The fimalcome and impact of the
matters, and any related claims and investigatibasmay be brought in the future are subject toynariables, and cannot be predicted.
establish accruals only for those matters whereletermine that a loss is probable and the amoulassfcan be reasonably estimated. Wh
is currently not possible to reasonably estimateatigregate amount of costs which we may incuoimection with these matters, such ¢
could have a material adverse effect on our firelnmsition, liquidity, or results of operations.

Brazilian Collection Dispute

We reached an agreement in June 2011 to setttdaaits arising from our longtanding dispute in Brazil with Banco Safra S.Acl
settlement was subsequently approved by a Brazilkamt in July 2011. Pursuant to the settlement,sabsidiary agreed to pay Banco S
S.A. 959 million Brazilian reais, in two installmspthe first of 469 million reais (equivalent t8G8 million) was made in July 2011, and
second of 490 million reais (equivalent to $275lioml ) was made during January 2012.
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Brazil Tax Matters

Relying on existing Brazilian legal precedent, 03 and 2004, we recognized tax credits in an ggdgeeamount of $26 million
adjusted for currency, on the purchase of raw risseused in production (“IPI tax credits"The Brazilian tax authority subseque
challenged the recording of IPI tax credits. Noddse have been recognized since 2004. In 2009, mtered into a Brazilian governmu
program which provided extended payment terms addaed penalties and interest to encourage taxpayaesolve this and certain ot
disputed tax credit amounts. As permitted by thegmam, we elected to settle certain debts throhghuse of other existing tax credits
recorded charges of approximately $34 millinr2009 associated with these matters. In July 2@ Brazilian revenue authority notified
that a portion of our proposed settlement was tejeand we received tax assessments of 197 mBifaailian reais (equivalent 84 million
as of December 31, 2013), reflecting the origirssessment, plus interest and penalties. We aratuligpthese assessments and we inte
vigorously defend our position. Based on the opirgé our tax and legal advisors, we have not rezdrah additional reserve related to tl
matters.

In 2001, Brazil adopted a law making the profitscohtrolled foreign corporations of Brazilian eigt#t subject to income and so
contribution tax regardless of whether the profitsre repatriated ("CFC Tax"). Our Brazilian subaiglj along with other corporatiol
challenged tax assessments on foreign profits ostitotionality and other grounds. In April 2018gtBrazilian Supreme Court ruled in
case, finding that the law is constitutional, betnanding the case to a lower court for considanatioother arguments raised in our apg
including the existence of tax treaties with juitsidns in which controlled foreign corporationgatomiciled. As of December 31, 20]18ul
potential exposure for income and social contriiutiaxes relating to profits of controlled foreigorporations, including interest and pena
and net of expected foreign tax credits, is appnaxely 108 million reais (equivalent to $46 millipiwWe believe these assessments are wi
merit and we intend to continue to vigorously digpthem. Based on the opinion of our tax and legalsors, we have not accrued any am
related to these assessments as of December &, 201

In December 2013, we entered into a Brazilian gowvemnt program to settle long standing disputedidiaation in the program remov
uncertainty related to 16 assessments that wewéopisdy under dispute and significantly reduceseptiil penalties and interest associated
these matters. Our participation will result in pegnts, including principal and discounted inteeaxl penalties, of 123 millioreais (equivale!
to $53 million as of December 31, 2013), with $2lion paid in 2013 and the remainder in 30 monthly ihstahts, increased by monet
adjustments at the Selic rate. During the fourthrtgr 2013, we recognized pre-tax charges of $1llomiin cost of products sold aril7
million in interest and sundry income (expensetes to this program.

In addition to the IPI tax credit and CFC Tax matteoted above, we are currently disputing otheessments issued by the Brazi
tax authorities related to naneome and income tax matters, including BEFIEXddss which are at various stages of review in nioug
administrative and judicial proceedings. In accamawith our accounting policies, we routinely assthese matters and, when neces
record our best estimate of a loss. We believeettees assessments are without merit and are vighraefending our positions, however, €
of these matters may take several years to reswletehe outcome of litigation is inherently unpotable. For additional information regard
BEFIEX credits, see Note 11 of the Consolidate@haial Statements.

Other Litigation

We are currently defending against numerous lawsending in federal and state courts in the Untates relating to certain of «
front load washing machines. Some of these lawshatge been certified for treatment as class actidhe complaints in these lawsi
generally allege violations of state consumer fraats, unjust enrichment, and breach of warrantye domplaints generally seek unspec
compensatory, consequential and punitive damagesb®lieve these suits are without merit and arereigsly defending them. Given -
preliminary stage of these proceedings, the Comganyot reasonably estimate a possible range sf ifoany, at this time. The resolution
one or more of these matters could have a mataigdrse effect on our Consolidated Financial States

In addition, we are currently defending a numberotifer lawsuits in federal and state courts in lthdéted States related to 1
manufacturing and sale of our products which inelathss action allegations. These lawsuits allégiens which include breach of contr:
breach of warranty, product defect, fraud, violatmf federal and state consumer protection actsregligence. We do not have insure
coverage for class action lawsuits. We are alsolired in various other legal actions arising in tiermal course of business, for wt
insurance coverage may or may not be availablerdi¥pg on the nature of the action. We dispute tlegits1 of these suits and actions,
intend to vigorously defend them. Management belewased upon its current knowledge, after takimg consideration legal couns
evaluation of such suits and actions, and afténtaiato account current litigation accruals, ttte# outcome of these matters currently per
against Whirlpool should not have a material adveféect, if any, on our Consolidated Financiat&teents.
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Product Warranty Reserves

Product warranty reserves are included in othereatiand other noncurrent liabilities in our Cotidaled Balance Sheets. The follow
table summarizes the changes in total product whrreserves for the periods presented:

Millions of dollars 2013 2012
Balance at January 1 $ 187 $ 197
Issuances/accruals during the period 292 30z
Settlements made during the period (28¢) (319
Balance at December 31 $ 191 % 187
Current portion $ 154 $ 14¢
Non-current portion 37 39
Total $ 191 % 187

We regularly engage in investigations of potengiaality and safety issues as part of our ongoirfigriefo deliver quality products
customers. We are currently investigating a limiednber of potential quality and safety issuesn@sessary, we undertake to effect repe
replacement of appliances in the event that arsiiyation leads to the conclusion that such adsamarranted.

Guarantees

We have guarantee arrangements in a Brazilian diabgi As a standard business practice in Brdad,dubsidiary guarantees custa
lines of credit at commercial banks to support pases following its normal credit policies. If astamer were to default on its line of cr
with the bank, our subsidiary would be requiregdatisfy the obligation with the bank and the reable would revert back to the subsidiary
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 , the mpeac amounts totaled $485 million and $449 milljorespectively. Our subsidie
insures against credit risk for these guaranteederunormal operating conditions, through poligieschased from higlquality underwriter:
We had no losses associated with these guarant@€48 and 2012.

We provide guarantees of indebtedness and linegedit for various consolidated subsidiaries. Traximum amount of credit faciliti
available under these lines for consolidated sudnséd totaled $1.3 billion at December 31, 2018 &t.4 billion at December 31, 201Dui
total outstanding bank indebtedness under guarsamtas nominal at December 31, 2013 and Decemb&(3®, , respectively.

We have guaranteed a $50 million five year revavimedit facility between certain financial institns and a not-foprofit entity ir
connection with a community and economic develogmanject (“Harbor Shores”)The credit facility, which originated in 2008, v
refinanced in December 2012 and we renewed ourlgtes through 2017. The fair value of the guaraw@enominal. The purpose of Har
Shores is to stimulate employment and growth inatteas of Benton Harbor and St. Joseph, Michigathé event of default, we must sat
the guarantee of the credit facility up to the anmtdaorrowed at the date of default.

Operating Lease Commitments

At December 31, 2013 , we had noncancelable opgrétiase commitments totaling $851 milliohe annual future minimum le:
payments are summarized by year in the table below

Millions of dollars

2014 $ 201
2015 163
2016 13t
2017 11¢
2018 89
Thereafter 144
Total noncancelable operating lease commitments $ 851

Rent expense was $217 million , $229 million an@&kthillion for 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectively.
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Purchase Obligations
Our expected cash outflows resulting from purchdsigations are summarized by year in the tablewel

Millions of dollars

2014 $ 22t
2015 17t
2016 165
2017 12¢
2018 117
Thereafter 21¢
Total purchase obligations $ 1,023

(7) HEDGES AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMEN TS

Derivative instruments are accounted for at falugdased on market rates. Derivatives where wa bBldge accounting are design
as either cash flow or fair value hedges. Deristithat are not accounted for based on hedge davguare marked to market throt
earnings. The accounting for changes in the fdirevaf a derivative depends on the intended usedasijnation of the derivative instrumt
Hedging ineffectiveness and a net earnings impectirowhen the change in the fair value of the hedlges not offset the change in the
value of the hedged item. The ineffective portiémhe gain or loss is recognized in earnings.

Using derivative instruments means assuming copatgr credit risk. Counterparty credit risk relatesthe loss we could incur i
counterparty were to default on a derivative caitrd/e generally deal with investment grade coyadies and monitor the overall credit |
and exposure to individual counterparties. We db ardicipate nonperformance by any counterparfié® amount of counterparty cre
exposure is limited to the unrealized gains, if,amy such derivative contracts. We do not requinedo we post collateral or security on s
contracts.

Hedging strategy

In the normal course of business, we manage rigligimg to our ongoing business operations inclydhmose arising from changes
foreign exchange rates, interest rates and comgnpdites. Fluctuations in these rates and pricesatfect our operating results and finan
condition. We use a variety of strategies, inclgdihe use of derivative instruments, to manageethisks. We do not enter into derival
financial instruments for trading or speculativepmses.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

We incur expenses associated with the procurenmehpeoduction of products in a limited number ofietiies, while we sell in the loc
currencies of a large number of countries. Our prinforeign currency exchange exposures result tomseurrency sales of products. A
result, we enter into foreign exchange contractsetige certain firm commitments and forecasteds#retions to acquire products and sen
that are denominated in foreign currencies.

We enter into certain undesignated non-functionaresicy asset and liability hedges that relate grily to shortterm payable
receivables, inventory and intercompany loans. @Hesecasted crosairrency cash flows relate primarily to foreign reuncy denominate
expenditures and intercompany financing agreementslty agreements and dividends. When we hedgereagn currency denominat
payable or receivable with a derivative, the eff#fcthanges in the foreign exchange rates arecteflecurrently in interest and sundry incc
(expense) for both the payable/receivable and ¢nwative. Therefore, as a result of the econoreiige, we do not elect hedge accounting.

Commodity price risk

We enter into swap and option contracts on vargmmsmodities to manage the price risk associateld forecasted purchases of mate
used in our manufacturing process. The objectivéhefe hedges is to reduce the variability of démhs associated with the forecas
purchase of commodities.
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Interest rate risk

We may enter into interest rate swap agreementsidnage interest rate risk exposure. Our interdst s&vap agreements, if a
effectively modify our exposure to interest ratskriprimarily through converting certain of ourdtng rate debt to a fixed rate basis,
certain fixed rate debt to a floating rate basise§e agreements involve either the receipt or paywofefloating rate amounts in exchange
fixed rate interest payments or receipts, respelgtiover the life of the agreements without anhexge of the underlying principal amou
We also may utilize a crogs#rency interest rate swap agreement to managexpasure relating to certain intercompany debbdenated il
one foreign currency that will be repaid in anotfiereign currency. At December 31, 2013 and 201&ehwere nooutstanding swe
agreements.

We may enter into treasury rate lock agreemengsffirtively modify our exposure to interest ratekrby lockingin interest rates ¢
probable long-term debt issuances.

The following tables summarize our outstanding\ggive contracts and their effects on our Constéid@alance Sheets Becember 3:
2013 and 2012 :

Fair Value of
Type of Maximum Term

Millions of dollars Notional Amount Hedge Assets Hedge Liabilities Hedge® (Months)

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Derivatives accounted for as hedges
Foreign exchange forwards/options $ 744 $1101 $ 16 ¢ 8 $ 10 $ 12 (CF/FV) 14 18
Commodity swaps/options 363 354 8 11 13 9 (CF) 36 24
Total derivatives accounted for as hedges $ 24 $ 19 $ 23 $ 21
Derivatives not accounted for as hedges
Foreign exchange forwards/options $127¢ $1522 $ 6 $ 11 $ 32 $ 23 N/A 12 13
Commodity swaps/options 1 6 — — — — N/A 4 12
Total derivatives not accounted for as
hedges 6 11 32 23
Total derivatives $ 30 $ 30 $ 55 $ 4
Current $ 28 $ 26 $ 54 $ 43
Noncurrent 2 4 1 1
Total derivatives $ 30 $ 30 $ 55 $ 44

@ Derivatives accounted for as hedges are eitheiidemesl cash flow (CF) or fair value (FV) hed

The pre-tax effects of derivative instruments om @onsolidated Statements of Income for the yeade@& December 31, 20
2012 are as follows:

Gain (Loss)
Gain (Loss) Reclassified from
Recognized in OCI OCl into Income
Cash Flow Hedges - Millions of dollars (Effective Portion) (Effective Portion) ®
2013 2012 2013 2012
Foreign exchange forwards/options $ 2C $ 22 $ 9 $ (15 (a)
Commodity swaps/options (29 12 (19 9 (@
Interest rate derivatives — @) (2) @ (b)

$ 9 ¢ 17 $ (1) $ (25
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Gain (Loss) Recognized on Derivatives not
Derivatives not Accounted for as Hedges - Millionsf dollars Accounted for as Hedge®

2013 2012
Foreign exchange forwards/options $ 49 $ (23)

@ Gains and losses reclassified from accumulatedad@lrecognized in income are recorded in (a) dostamlucts sold; or (b) interest expel
@ Mark to market gains and losses recognized in ircare recorded in interest and sundry income (esq)

For cash flow hedges, the amount of ineffectivenessgnized in interest and sundry income (expense) nominal during 2013 a
2012. For fair value hedges, the amount of gailoss and offsetting gain or loss on the hedged tteahwere recognized in interest and su
income (expense) was nominal during 2013 and 20h2. net amount of unrealized gain or loss on dévigainstruments included
accumulated OCI related to contracts maturing apeeted to be realized during the next twelve meighmominal at December 31, 2013 .

(8) STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income primarily includes (1) ourortgd net earnings, (2) foreign currency transigti(8) changes in the effect
portion of our open derivative contracts designaasdcash flow hedges, (4) changes in our unrecedniension and other postretiren
benefits and (5) changes in fair value of our alAd for sale marketable securities.

The following table shows the components of accaeal other comprehensive income (loss) availabM/Irlpool at December 3
2011, 2012, and 2013, and the activity for the y¢laen ended:

Pension and
Foreign Derivative Postretirement Marketable
Millions of dollars Currency Instruments Liability Securities Total
December 31, 2010 $ (267 $ 84 $ (70¢8) $ 2 $ (899)
Unrealized gain (loss) (86) (142) — 4 (232)
Unrealized actuarial loss and prior service crémist) — — (a779) — (a779)
Tax effect (36) 42 65 — 71
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (122 (200 (112) (4) (339)
Less: Other comprehensive loss available to nonelting
interests (2 (3) — — (5
Other comprehensive income (loss) available to fvba (220 97) (112) (4) (339
December 31, 2011 $ (387) $ (13 % 820) $ 6 $ (1,226
Unrealized gain (loss) (36) 8 — 9 (29
Unrealized actuarial gain (loss) and prior sengiadit (cost) — — (420 — (420
Tax effect (29 3 152 — 13C
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (55 5 (26€) 9 (309
Less: Other comprehensive loss available to nonaliing
interests 4 — — — (4)
Other comprehensive income (loss) available to b (52) 5 (268) 9 (30%)
December 31, 2012 $ (439 $ 8 $ (1,089 $ 3 $ (1,53)
Unrealized gain (loss) (122 2 — 7 (113)
Unrealized actuarial gain (loss) and prior serdieasit (cost) — — 50¢ — 50¢
Tax effect 25 — (2190 — (165)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (97) 2 31¢ 7 23C
Less: Other comprehensive loss available to nonelting
interests ©)] — — — €)]
Other comprehensive income (loss) available to fvbal (99) 2 31¢ 7 23¢
December 31, 2013 $ (B39 % 6) $ (770 % 10 $ (1,29)
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Net Earnings per Share

Diluted net earnings per share of common stockuthelthe dilutive effect of stock options and othlearebased compensation pla
Basic and diluted net earnings per share of comstark were calculated as follows:

Millions of dollars and shares 2013 2012 2011
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per sharet earnings available to Whirlpool $ 827 $ 401 $ 39C
Denominator for basic earnings per share — weightegage shares 79.5 78.1 76.¢
Effect of dilutive securities — stock-based comptios 1t 1.2 1.3
Denominator for diluted earnings per share — adfuisteighted-average shares 80.¢ 79.c 78.1
Anti-dilutive stock options/awards excluded frontréags per share — 2.4 2.1
Dividends

Dividends per share paid to shareholders were $2280 and $1.93 during 2013, 2012 and 2011 esely.
Repurchase Program

On April 23, 2008, our Board of Directors authodza share repurchase program of up to $500 milliShare repurchases are r
from time to time on the open market as conditimasrant. We resumed the share repurchase programgd2013 and repurchas@db million
shares at an aggregate purchase price of $3500mitirough December 31, 2013 . At December 31, 201f3ere was no remaini
authorization under this program.

(9) SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS

We sponsor several share-based employee incenéins. [Shardsased compensation expense for grants awarded tivesser plans w.
$50 million , $49 million and $37 million in 20132012 , and 2011 , respectively. Related incoméémefits recognized in earnings wétes
million , $17 million and $13 million in 2013 , 221 and 2011 , respectively.

At December 31, 2013 , unrecognized compensatish retated to non-vested stock option and stock amards totaled $37 million
The cost of these non-vested awards is expectied tecognized over a weighted-average remaininingeseriod of 27 months .

Share-Based Employee Incentive Plans

On April 16, 2013, our stockholders approved theeAined and Restated 2010 Omnibus Stock and Incenlire (“2010 OSIP”)This
plan was previously adopted by our Board of Direstin February 19, 2013 and provides for the isseiaf stock options, performance st
units, performance shares, restricted stock angliatesl stock units. No new awards may be grantedeu the 2010 OSIP after the te
anniversary of the date that the stockholders aygufdhe plan. However, the term and exercise ofr@svgranted before then may ext
beyond that date. At December 31, 2013, approxin®&.5 million shares remain available for issieanoder the 2010 OSIP.

Stock Options

Eligible employees may receive stock options asréign of their total compensation. Such optioneagally become exercisable ove
3 -year period, expire 19ears from the date of grant and are subject tfeitare upon termination of employment, other ttigndeatt
disability or retirement. We use the Black-Schapsonpricing model to measure the fair value of stockans granted to employees. Grar
options have exercise prices equal to the marke¢ pf Whirlpool common stock on the grant datee Phincipal assumptions used in valt
options include: (1) risk-free interest rater-estimate based on the yield of United States eeupon securities with a maturity equal to
expected life of the option; (2) expected volatilitan estimate based on the historical volatility dfilfpool common stock for a period eq
to the expected life of the option; and (3) expeabption life—an estimate based on historical experience. Stptkrs are expensed ol
straight-line basis, net of estimated forfeituf@ased on the results of the model, the weiglatestage fair values of stock options grante:
2013, 2012, and 2011 were $33.92 , $19.54 and’$24espectively, using the following assumptions

49




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (C ONTINUED)

Weighted Average Black-Scholes Assumptions 2013 2012 2011
Risk-free interest rate 0.% 0.9% 2.3%
Expected volatility 40.2% 40.2% 36.5%
Expected dividend yield 1.8% 2.5% 2.C%
Expected option life, in years 5 5 5

Stock Option Activity
The following table summarizes stock option acyivdtrring 2013 :

Weighted-
Number Average
In thousands, except per share data of Options Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1 3,05: $ 74.0(
Granted 46¢ 110.3:
Exercised (1,187 80.0z
Canceled or expired (80) 88.2¢
Outstanding at December 31 225 % 77.81
Exercisable at December 31 1,20¢  $ 67.2%

The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdisgas $53 million , $32 million , and $9 million rf®013 , 2012 , and 2011
respectively. The related tax benefits were $1%anil, $12 million and $3 million for 2013 , 2012nd 2011, respectively. Cash received fr
the exercise of stock options was $95 million , #Bion , and $14 million for 2013 , 2012 , and120, respectively.

The table below summarizes additional informatielated to stock options outstanding at Decembe2@13 :

Outstanding Net of Options
Options in thousands / dollars in millions, excepshare data Expected Forfeitures Exercisable
Number of options 2,17¢ 1,20¢
Weighted-average exercise price per share $ 77.18 % 67.2%
Aggregate intrinsic value $ 177 $ 11C
Weighted-average remaining contractual term, ingea 7 5

Stock Units
Eligible employees may receive restricted stocksuoi performance stock units as a portion of tte#al compensation.

Restricted stock units are typically granted teseld management employees on an annual basisandwver three years. Periodice
restricted stock units may be granted to selectedwdives based on special recognition or retertimumstances and generally vest from t
years to seven years. Some of these awards acstiderdl equivalents on outstanding units (in tharfaf additional stock units) based
dividends declared on Whirlpool common stock. Thesards convert to unrestricted common stock attimelusion of the vesting period.

Performance stock units are granted to executivearoannual basis and generally vest over a theae geriod, converting to unrestric
common stock at the conclusion of the vesting merithe final award may equal 0 - 200% of a targeteldl on prestablished Whirlpor
financial performance measures.

We measure compensation cost for stock units baseithe closing market price of Whirlpool commoncgt@at the grant date, w
adjustments for performance stock units to refleetfinal award granted. The weighted average gtat# fair values of awards granted du
2013, 2012, and 2011 were $107.85 , $69.32 a8:%$8 respectively. The total fair value of staglkts vested during 2013 , 2012 , 2@l ]
was $35 million , $19 million and $15 million , pestively.
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The following table summarizes stock unit actiwtyring 2013 :

Stock units in thousands, except per-share data

Number of
Stock Units

Weighted- Average
Grant Date Fair

Value

Non-vested, at January 1 1,49C $ 76.91
Granted 27¢ 107.8¢
Canceled (129 81.9¢
Vested and transferred to unrestricted (439 80.4¢
Non-vested, at December 31 1,20: $ 82.4(

Nonemployee Director Equity Awards

Each nonemployee director receives an annual gfavithirlpool common stock, with the number of stsate be issued to the direc
determined by dividing $120,008y the closing price of Whirlpool common stock dre tdate of the annual meeting of our stockhol
Nonemployee directors receive a one time grail,000 shares of Whirlpool common stock made atithe they first join the Board.

(10) RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

During the fourth quarter 2011, the Company coneditto restructuring plans (the "2011 Plan") to expaur operating margins &
improve our earnings through substantial cost apcity reductions, primarily within our North Aniea and EMEA operating segments.
actions related to the 2011 Plan have been anndusmcé are now substantially complete, with cumwaitosts of $511 milliorincurrec

through December 31, 2013. Approximately $50 millio costs related to actions authorized under tHe Zlan remain and will be recogni.
primarily during 2014.

In January 2014, the Company announced the clafuaemicrowave oven manufacturing facility in EMB the end of 2014. Tt
action, combined with other organizational effi@gractions in EMEA, are expected to result in ckargf approximately $50 milliom 201<
primarily related to employee termination costs4tash asset impairment costs and facility exitcos

The following tables summarize the changes to estructuring liability for the years ended Decem®kr2013 and 2012 :

Charge to Non-cash and  Revision of
Millions of dollars 12/31/2012 Earnings Cash Paid Other Estimate 12/31/2013
Employee termination costs $ 56 $ 91 $ (62) $ — $ (12) $ 74
Asset impairment costs — 62 — (62 — —
Facility exit costs 3 37 (25) — (D) 14
Other exit costs 11 18 (12) — — 18
Total $ 70 $ 20€ $ (99) $ (62 $ 12 $ 10€

Charge to Non-cash and  Revision of
Millions of dollars 12/31/2011 Earnings Cash Paid Other Estimate 12/31/2012
Employee termination costs $ 62 $ 97 $ (109 $ — $ — $ 56
Asset impairment costs — 78 — (78) — —
Facility exit costs 9 33 (30 (8 (D) 3
Other exit costs 7 28 (25 — — 11
Total $ 78 $ 237 $ (158 $ (86) $ Q) % 70
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The following table summarizes 2013 restructurihgrges by operating segment:

Millions of dollars 2013 Charges
North America $ 65
Latin America 12
EMEA 111
Asia 7
Corporate / Other 1
Total $ 19¢

(11) INCOME TAXES

The income tax expense (benefit) was $68 millidiL33 million , and $(436) million in 2013 , 2012daA011, respectively. Tt
following table summarizes the difference betwemoime tax expense at the United States statutteyofa35%and the income tax expel
(benefit) at effective worldwide tax rates for tlespective periods:

Millions of dollars 2013 2012 2011
Earnings (loss) before income taxes
United States $ 14¢ % 11 % (240
Foreign 76€ 44~ 21z
Earnings (loss) before income taxes 917 55¢ (28
Income tax computed at United States statutory rate 321 19t (20
U.S. government tax incentives, including Energy Taedits (142) — (379
Foreign government tax incentives, including BEFIEX (63 (38) (200
Foreign tax rate differential ()] ()] (13
U.S. foreign tax credits (237) (32) (37
Valuation allowances 16 (86) 11
State and local taxes, net of federal tax benefit 7 2 4
Foreign withholding taxes 29 12 10
Non-deductible government settlements — — 30
U.S. tax on foreign dividends and subpart F income 19t 57 26
Settlement of global tax audits (54) 18 10
Other items, net 7 6 20
Income tax computed at effective worldwide tax rate $ 68 $ 13: % (43€)

Current and deferred tax (benefit) provision
The following table summarizes our income tax (ignprovision for 2013 , 2012 and 2011 :

2013 2012 2011
Millions of dollars Current Deferred Current Deferred Current Deferred
United States $ (6C0) $ 57 $ 18 $ 24 % (18) $ (469
Foreign 187 9 18¢ (96) 114 (64)
State and local 2 5 7 9 @ (©))
$ 12¢ % (61) $ 214  $ 81) % 95 $ (63)
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 68 $ 132 $ (43¢
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United States government tax incentives

On January 2, 2013, The American Taxpayer ReligfA@012 (the “Act”)was signed into law. The Act extends certain pliong
included in the Tax Relief, Unemployment InsuraReauthorization, and Job Creation Act of 2010 teuem that conservation and efficie
are a central component to the United States ersrgiegy. Among the provisions extended are matwfers’tax credits for the accelera
U.S. production of supeafficient clothes washers, refrigerators and disheas that meet or exceed certain Energy Starhibldss for energ
and water conservation levels as set by the U.pabment of Energy (“Energy Credit"yhe tax credits apply to eligible production durihg
2012 and 2013 calendar years provided the produaifoqualifying product in any individual year excks a rolling two year baseline
production. We continue to invest in innovation amergy efficient products that meet these starsdi@mdour customers.

Foreign government tax incentives

In previous years, our Brazilian operations earteedcredits under the Brazilian governmsngxport incentive program (BEFIE:
These credits reduced Brazilian federal excisestawedomestic sales, resulting in an increasedrofierationstecorded net sales. We be
recognizing BEFIEX credits in accordance with priavorable court decisions allowing for the crediisbe recognized. We were able
recognize approximately $109 million , $37 milliamd $266 millionof export credits in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respebtivwe recogniz
export credits as they are monetized; however réutictions by the Brazilian government could limitr ability to monetize these exg
credits. As of December 31, 2013, approximately $@iion of future cash monetization remained, imthg $52 millionof related cou
awarded fees, which is not expected to be payabledveral years.

In December 2013, the Brazilian government reintgd the monetary adjustment index applicable t&IBK credits that existed pri
to July 2009, when the Brazilian government requicempanies to apply a different monetary adjustnietgiex to BEFIEX credits. It
unknown whether Brazilian courts will require these of the reinstituted index be given retroacéffect for the July 2009 to December 2
period, the effect of which would be to increase dmount of BEFIEX credits we would be entitleddoognize.

Our Brazilian operations have received governmesabssments related to claims for income and|soaidribution taxes associa
with BEFIEX credits monetized from 2000 through 20énd 2007 through 2011. We do not believe BEFIKKoet credits are subject
income or social contribution taxes. We are disguthese tax matters in various courts and intendgorously defend our positions. We h
not provided for income or social contribution taxan these export credits, and based on the omiribtax and legal advisors, we have
accrued any amount related to these assessmerit®asember 31, 2013. The total amount of outstamthx assessments received for inc
and social contribution taxes relating to the BEKIEredits, including interest and penalties, is ragpnately 1.2 billionBrazilian reai
(equivalent to $ 530 million ) as of December 3112

Litigation is inherently unpredictable and the doston of these matters may take many years tmatgly resolve, during which tir
the amounts related to these assessments willntento be increased by monetary adjustments &ehe rate, which is the benchmark rate
by the Brazilian Central Bank. Accordingly, it isgsible that an unfavorable outcome in these pdicge could have a material adverse e
on our financial position, liquidity, or results operations in any particular reporting period.

United States tax on foreign dividends

We have historically reinvested all unremitted @age of our foreign subsidiaries and affiliates. \Wan to distribute approximate
$116 millionof foreign earnings over the next several yearss @itstribution is forecasted to result in tax bi#sevhich have not been recorc
because of their contingent nature. There has heetteferred tax liability provided on the remainiagnount of unremitted earnings $8.5
billion at December 31, 2013 . As of DecemberZ113 , we had $1.4 billion of cash and equivalem$and, of which $1.3 billiowas heli
outside of the United States. Our intent is to @eremtly reinvest these funds outside of the Unfi¢akes and our current plans do
demonstrate a need to repatriate these funds tbdunU.S. operations. However, if these funds wepatriated, then we would be require
accrue and pay applicable United States taxesdsulp an adjustment for foreign tax credits) anthlwolding taxes payable to varic
countries. It is not practicable to estimate the@ant of the deferred tax liability associated wikese unremitted earnings due to the compl
of its hypothetical calculation.

Valuation allowances

At December 31, 2013 , we had net operating lessyforwards of $2.7 billion , $1.4 billioof which were United States state
operating loss carryforwards. Of the total net afiag loss carryforwards, $1.1 billicho not expire, with substantially all of the remiag
carryforwards expiring in various years through 208s of December 31, 2013, we had $243 miltibioreign tax credit carryforwards a
$1.1 billionof United States general business credit carryfodavailable to offset future payments of fed@rabme taxes, expiring betwe
2017 and 2033.
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We routinely review the future realization of deést tax assets based on projected future revefsalxable temporary differenc
available tax planning strategies and projectedréutaxable income. We have recorded a valuatitmwahce to reflect the net estima
amount of certain deferred tax assets associatddngt operating loss and other deferred tax asgetselieve will be realized. Our recort
valuation allowance of $186 million at December 2013 consists of $168 millioof net operating loss carryforward deferred tayetssan
$18 million of other deferred tax assets. We believe thatntase likely than not that we will realize the béhef existing deferred tax asse
net of valuation allowances mentioned above.

Settlement of global tax audits

We are in various stages of audits by certain gowental tax authorities. We establish liabilities the difference between tax ret
provisions and the benefits recognized in our faranstatements. Such amounts represent a reagopahlision for taxes ultimately expec
to be paid, and may need to be adjusted over tenmare information becomes known. We are no losgéject to any significant Unit
States federal tax examinations for the years be?®08, or any state, local or foreign income taan@nations by tax authorities for ye
before 2005.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effe€temporary differences between the carrying ammofhtassets and liabilities used
financial reporting purposes and the amounts useth€ome tax purposes. The following table sumpeerithe significant components of
deferred tax liabilities and assets at December2®1,3 and 2012 :

Millions of dollars 2013 2012
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangibles $ 517 $ 513
Property, net 141 13€
LIFO inventory 49 54
Other 201 194
Total deferred tax liabilities 90¢ 89¢
Deferred tax assets
U.S. general business credit carryforwards, inclgdinergy Tax Credits 1,05(C 917
Pensions 311 557
Loss carryforwards 467 41C
Inventory prepayment 93 307
Postretirement obligations 177 174
Foreign tax credit carryforwards 243 98
Research and development capitalization 23¢ 19C
Employee payroll and benefits 13¢ 174
Accrued expenses 10z 82
Product warranty accrual 58 58
Receivable and inventory allowances 51 54
Other 23% 17¢
Total deferred tax assets 3,162 3,191
Valuation allowances for deferred tax assets (18¢€) (130
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowances 2,97¢ 3,061
Net deferred tax assets $ 2,06¢ $ 2,16z
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Unrecognized tax benefits

The following table represents a reconciliatiortted beginning and ending amount of unrecognizedéarefits that if recognized wol
impact the effective tax rate, excluding federaidfes of state and local tax positions, and irdeeand penalties:

Millions of dollars 2013 2012 2011

Balance, January 1 $ 17¢ % 17¢  $ 19C
Additions for tax positions of the current year 17 13 9
Additions for tax positions of prior years 6 1€ 10
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (81) (15) (24)
Settlements during the period 3 5) (D)
Lapses of applicable statute of limitation (4 9 (6)
Balance, December 31 $ 11 % 17¢  $ 17¢

It is reasonably possible that certain unrecogntagdbenefits of $9 milliorrould be settled with various related jurisdictiahsing the
next 12 months.

Interest and penalties associated with unrecognietienefits resulted in a net benefit of $12iomlland $4 million in 2013 and 2012
respectively, and a net expense of $17 milliondhX2 We have accrued a total of $49 million and &ifion at December 31, 2013 and 2012
respectively.

(12) PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

We have funded and unfunded defined benefit pergims that cover certain employees in North Anzerieurope, Asia and Brazil. T
United States plans are frozen for the majoritypaifticipants. The formula for United States satheenployees covered under the qual
defined benefit plan was based on years of seandefinal average salary, while the formula for tddiStates hourly employees covered u
the defined benefit plans was based on specifiadamounts for each year of service. There wertipieliformulas for employees cove
under the qualified and nonqualified defined beangins sponsored by Maytag, including a cash lsaldormula. In addition, we sponsor
unfunded Supplemental Executive Retirement Plais plan is nonqualified and provides certain keypkayees defined pension benefits
supplement those provided by the company’s othgeneent plans.

A defined contribution plan is being provided tb ahited States employees subsequent to the peptonfreezes and is not classi
within the net periodic benefit cost. The companyjles annual match and automatic company cotioibs, in cash or company stock, of
to 7% of employees’ eligible pay. Our contributiahging 2013 , 2012 and 2011 were $68 million , #6lion and $68 million , respectively.

We provide postretirement health care benefitset@ible retired employees in the United Statesndgia and Brazil. For our Unit
States plan, which comprises the majority of odigaition, eligible retirees include those who wérk-time employees with 10 years of sen
who attained age 55 while in service with us anals¢éhunion retirees who met the eligibility requients of their collective bargaini
agreements. In general, the postretirement heatthweelfare benefit plans include cadtaring provisions that limit our exposure for recanc
future retirees and are contributory, with partéeifs’ contributions adjusted annually. The plans are madd. We reserve the right to mot
these benefits in the future.
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Defined Benefit - Pensions and Postretirement BeriePlans

Obligations and Funded Status at End of Year

United States

Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits Foreign Pension Benefits Benefits
Millions of dollars 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Funded status
Fair value of plan assets $ 2,83 $ 2,79C $ 20¢€ % 197 — 3 —
Benefit obligations 3,54¢ 4,19¢ 43¢ 44¢ 50¢ A7
Funded status $ (711) $ (14000 $ (239 $ (25)) (509) ¢ (@479
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance shee
Noncurrent asset $ — % — % 7 % 5 —  $ —
Current liability @) (7 (14) (29 (52) (55)
Noncurrent liability (7049 (1,399 (22€) (237) (45¢) (422)
Amount recognized $ (711) $ (1406 $ (239 $ (25) (509 $ (477)
Amounts recognized in accumulated other compreheng
loss (pre-tax)
Net actuarial loss (gain) $ 1,21 $ 1,761 $ 98 $ 11¢ 42 3 27
Prior service (credit) cost (@) (20 3 4 (169 (210
Transition (asset) obligation — — — (@D} — —
Amount recognized $ 1,19¢ $ 1,741 % 101 % 122 (127 $ (189
Change in Benefit Obligation
United States Other Postretirement
Pension Benefits Foreign Pension Benefits Benefits
Millions of dollars 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 4,19¢ $ 387 $ 448 $ 37T $ 477 3 48¢
Service cost 2 2 6 6 4 5
Interest cost 162 17¢ 17 20 18 21
Plan participants’ contributions — — 1 1 8 9
Actuarial loss (gain) (420) 42t (7) 65 (32) 25
Benefits paid, net of federal subsidy (281) (270 (23 (22) (68) (64)
Plan amendments — — — — 2 2
Acquisitions / divestitures — — — 2 — —
New plans — — — 14 — —
Transfer of benefits (105) — — — 10t —
Settlements / curtailment (gain) 8 (11 (6) a7 — 2
Foreign currency exchange rates — — 3 9 (6) ©)]
Benefit obligation, end of year $ 3,54t $ 4,19¢ $ 43¢ % 44 $ 50¢ $ 471
Accumulated benefit obligation, end of year $ 353 % 4,181 $ 424 $ 428 $ — $ —

During the fourth quarter 2013, we transferred $itilion of ancillary benefits, as allowed under ERISA, ofitour United State
qualified pension plans and into our United Statdgee health and welfare benefit plan. The transfad no impact on our Consolide

Financial Statements as of December 31, 2013 .

During the second quarter 2011, we modified retimelical benefits for certain retirees to be cdaesiswith those benefits provided
the Whirlpool Corporation Group Benefit Plan. Weaaented for these changes as a plan amendmentliy B8sulting in a reduction in t
postretirement benefit obligation of $138 milliarith an offset to accumulated other comprehensigs,|net of tax. In response, a grou
retirees has initiated legal proceedings againsirlddol asserting the above benefits are vested. MWleve the outcome of the le
proceedings against Whirlpool will not have a miateadverse effect on our Consolidated Financiatéshents.
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Change in Plan Assets

Other Postretirement

United States Pension Benefits Foreign Pension Benefits Benefits
Millions of dollars 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $ 2790 $ 2577 $ 197 $ 17¢ % — =
Actual return on plan assets 207 317 13 19 — —
Employer contribution 127 181 24 27 60 55
Plan participants’ contributions — — 1 1 8 9
Gross benefits paid (281) (270) (23 (22) (68) (64)
New plans — — 2 14 — —
Settlements 8 (12) (6) (17) — —
Foreign currency exchange rates — — 2 4 — —
Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ 283 $ 2,79 % 20€ 9 197 $ — 3 =
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost
United States Foreign Pension Other Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits Benefits

Millions of dollars 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Service cost $ 2 3 2 3 2 % 6 $ 6 $ 7 % 4 $ 5 % 8
Interest cost 162 17¢ 192 17 20 20 18 21 31
Expected return on plan assets (197 (1949) (199 (10) (12) (20 — — —
Amortization:

Actuarial loss 62 46 31 6 4 4 1 1 1

Prior service cost (credit) ©)] 3 3 1 1 1 (39 (42 (43
Curtailment gain — — — — — — — (52 (35
Settlement loss 3 5 — 1 3 2 — — —
Net periodic benefit cost $ 35 $ 34 $ 28 ¢ 21 $§ 23 $ 24 $ (16 $ (67) $ (39

On October 27, 2011 we announced the closure ofmmnufacturing facilities in Fort Smith, Arkansasdaon August 28, 2009, \
announced the closure of our manufacturing facititfevansville, Indiana. Both closures triggereduatailment in our United States reti
health and welfare benefit plan, resulting in cimtant gains of $52 million and $35 million in 20B2d 2011, respectively. The curtailm
gains were recognized in our Consolidated Statesn@inincome as a component of cost of products witll an offset to accumulated ot
comprehensive loss, net of tax.

Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit ObligatianRecognized in Other Comprehensive Loss (Pre-Tai) 2013

United States Foreign Pension Other Postretirement

Millions of dollars Pension Benefits Benefits Benefits
Current year actuarial (gain) loss $ (481) $ (100 $ 16
Actuarial (loss) gain recognized during the year (65) (10 (@D}
Current year prior service cost (credit) — — 2
Prior service credit (cost) recognized during thary 3 (D) 39
Total recognized in other comprehensive loss (axg-t $ (549 $ 1) $ 56
Total recognized in net periodic benefit costs atiar

comprehensive loss (pre-tax) $ (50¢) $ — $ 40

Estimated Pre-Tax Amounts that will be amortized from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss into Net Periodic Pensio@ost in
2014

United States Foreign Pension Other Postretirement
Millions of dollars Pension Benefits Benefits Benefits
Actuarial loss $ 43 % 6 $ —
Prior service (credit) cost 3 1 (39

Total



40

(39
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Assumptions
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine bdit@bligation at end of year

United States Pension Other Postretirement
Benefits Foreign Pension Benefits Benefits
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Discount rate 4.95% 4.05% 4.1€% 3.92% 4.95% 4.02%
Rate of compensation increase 4.5(% 4.5(% 3.4(% 3.51% — —

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine nggriodic cost

United States Pension

Benefits Foreign Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Discount rate 40% 48(% 56(% 39% 504 52(% 4.02% 50% 5.6(%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.5(% 7.5(% 7.7% 5.4(% 5.44% 5.4(% — — —
Rate of compensation increase 450% 450(% 4506 351% 3.4&% 3.5(% — — —
Health care cost trend rate
Initial rate — — — — — — 7.0(% 8.0% 8.0(%
Ultimate rate — — — — — — 50% 5.0% 5.00%
Year that ultimate rate will be reached — — — — — — 2017 201t 201t

Discount rate

For our United States pension and postretiremenefiteplans, the discount rate was selected usimypothetical portfolio of hig
quality bonds outstanding at December 31 that wpubdide the necessary cash flows to match oueptefl benefit payments. For our fore
pension and postretirement benefit plans, the distcoate was selected using high quality bond gidlit the respective country or reg
covered by the plan.

Expected return on plan assets

In the United States, the expected rate of returplan assets was determined by using the hista&set returns for publicly trad
equity and fixed income securities tracked sinc6land the historical returns for private equitheThistorical equity returns were adjus
downward to reflect future expectations. The expageturns are weighted by the targeted assetatilbms. The resulting weightedrerag
return was rounded to the nearest quarter of ormpt

For foreign pension plans, the expected rate offmedn plan assets was primarily determined by mfrsg historical returns in the loc
fixed income and equity markets and computing teeghted average returns with the weights beingatiset allocation of each plan.

Estimated impact of one percentage-point change mssumed health care cost trend rate
A one percentage point change in assumed heakcoat trend rates would have the following effectour health care plan:

One Percentage One Percentage
Millions of dollars Point Increase Point Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost $ 1 % (@)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligations 5 (5)

Cash Flows
Funding Policy

Our funding policy is to contribute to our Unitethfes pension plans amounts sufficient to meetrtimemum funding requirement
defined by employee benefit and tax laws, plustamil amounts which we may determine to be apjpatgarin certain countries other than
United States, the funding of pension plans iscomtmon practice. Contributions to our United Statession plans may be made in the fori
cash or company stock. We pay for retiree medieakfits as they are incurred.
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Expected Employer Contributions to Funded Plans

United States Foreign Pension

Millions of dollars Pension Benefit<Y Benefits
2014 $ 16C $ 11
! Contributions include $160 million of minimum coibttions required by law.
Expected Benefit Payments

United States Foreign Pension Benefits Other Postretirement
Millions of dollars Pension Benefits Benefits
2014 $ 274 $ 28 $ 51
2015 24% 32 52
2016 24¢ 22 51
2017 24¢€ 26 49
2018 247 25 44
2019-2023 1,23( 131 187

Plan Assets

Our overall investment strategy is to achieve gor@griate mix of investments for long-term growtidefor nearterm benefit paymer
with a wide diversification of asset types, funthstgies, and investment fund managers. The tailpetation for plan assets is generaly4
equity and 58%ixed income, with exceptions for certain foreigengion plans. For our U.S. plan, the target allonaor equity securities
approximately 50% allocated to United States large; 28% to international equity, 14% to Unitedi&anid and small-cap companies &t
in venture capital. The target allocation for fixedome is allocated with 75% to corporate bond$ 26%to United States treasury and o
government securities. The fixed income securdigsition is intended to match that of our Unitedt&t pension liabilities.

Plan assets are reported at fair value based exiaiprice, representing the amount that wouldds®eived to sell an asset in an ord
transaction between market participants. As swhyalue is a markdtased measurement that should be determined basessomptions th
market participants would use in pricing an asAsta basis for considering such assumptions, @4ieeed fair value hierarchy is establist
which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring Yailue as follows: (Level 1) observable inputs sastguoted prices in active markets; (L
2) inputs, other than the quoted prices in actigekats that are observable, either directly orrgatly; and (Level 3) unobservable input
which there is little or no market data, which rieguhe reporting entity to develop its own assuong. We manage the process and apy
the results of a third party pricing service tousathe majority of our securities and to deterntireeappropriate level in the fair value hierarc
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The fair values of our pension plan assets at Dbeefdil, 2013 and 2012 , by asset category werallas/é:

December 31,

Other significant Significant
Quoted prices observable inputs unobservable inputs
Millions of dollars (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Cash and equivalents $ 23¢ 15 $§ — ¢ — $ — $ — $ 23 $ 15
Government and government agency secufities

U.S. securities — — 432 43¢ — — 432 43¢

International securities — — 131 104 — — 131 104
Corporate bonds and not&s

U.S. companies — — 85( 751 — — 85( 751

International companies — — 19¢ 17¢€ — — 19z 17¢€
Equity securities”

U.S. companies 12 217 — — — — 12 217

International companies 227 23¢ — — — — 228 23¢
Mutual funds®

77 10C — — — — 77 10C

Common and collective fund8

U.S. equity securities — — 71¢ 58¢ — — 71€ 58¢

International equity securities — — 79 10¢€ — — 79 10€

Short-term investment fund — — 87 49 — — 87 49
Limited partnership&

U.S. private equity investments — — — — 14t 145 14t 142

Diversified fund of funds — — — — 35 38 35 38

Emerging growth — — — — 18 15 18 15
Real estaté®

— — 11 10 — — 11 10

All other investments — — 7 8 — — 7 8

$ 335 $ 568 $ 2506 $ 222 $ 19¢ $ 19€ $ 3,041 $ 2,98%

(a) Valued using pricing vendors who use proprietandet® to estimate the price a dealer would pay joebgecurity using significant observable inputshsas intere
rates, yield curves, and credit risk.

(b) Valued using the closing stock price on a natisealrities exchange, which reflects the last repostles price on the last business day of the

(c) Valued using the net asset value (NAV) of the funtlich is based on the fair value of underlyingusities. The fund primarily invests in a diversdi@ortfolio o
equity securities issued by non-U.S. companies.

(d) Valued using the NAV of the fund, which is basedta fair value of underlying securiti

(e) Valued at estimated fair value based on the prapate share of the limited partnerships fair vaagedetermined by the general par

(f) Valued using the NAV of the fund, which is basedloa fair value of underlying ass¢

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobseniae Inputs (Level 3)

Limited
Millions of dollars Partnerships
Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 19€¢
Realized gains (net) 1€
Unrealized gains (net) 1C

Purchases 14



Settlements (39
Balance, December 31, 2013 $ 19¢
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Additional Information

The projected benefit obligation and fair valueptefn assets for pension plans with a projectedfliestdigation in excess of plan ass
at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

United States

Pension Benefits Foreign Pension Benefits
Millions of dollars 2013 2012 2013 2012
Projected benefit obligation $ 3,54¢ $ 4,19 $ 397 $ 374
Fair value of plan assets 2,83t 2,79( 157 117

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated biérwdfligation and fair value of plan assets for gien plans with an accumula
benefit obligation in excess of plan assets at Béeg 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

United States

Pension Benefits Foreign Pension Benefits
Millions of dollars 2013 2012 2013 2012
Projected benefit obligation $ 3,546 $ 4,19¢ $ 347 % 35¢
Accumulated benefit obligation 3,53¢ 4,181 34C 34¢
Fair value of plan assets 2,83t 2,79( 11C 10t

(13) OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are defined as components efitenprise about which separate financial infororats available that is evalua
on a regular basis by the chief operating decisi@ker, or decision making group, in deciding howatincate resources to an individ
segment and in assessing performance.

We identify such segments based upon geograplagains of operations because each operating segnanitfactures home applian
and related components, but serves strategicdfigreint markets. The chief operating decision makealuates performance based upon
segmens operating income, which is defined as income feefaterest and sundry income (expense), intergperese, income taxt
noncontrolling interests, intangible asset impaimtrend restructuring costs. Total assets by segarerthose assets directly associated wit
respective operating activities. The “Other/Elintioas” column primarily includes corporate expenses, asaatl eliminations, as well
restructuring costs and intangible asset impairgyghiny. Intersegment sales are eliminated wig@nh region except compressor sales ¢
Latin America, which are included in Other/Elimiiuets.

We conduct business in two countries, the UniteteStand Brazil, that individually comprised ov@f4d of consolidated net sales
long-lived assets within the last three years. fiflewing table summarizes net sales and long-liassets by geographic area:

Millions of dollars All Other
United States Brazil Countries Total

2013:

Sales to external customers $ 8571 $ 3,29t $ 6,897 $ 18,76¢
Long-lived assets 4,461 33E 1,671 6,46
2012:

Sales to external customers $ 8,008 $ 3331 $ 6,801 $ 18,14:
Long-lived assets 4,417 377 1,69¢ 6,48:
2011:

Sales to external customers $ 8,03t $ 3,34:  $ 7,28t $ 18,66¢
Long-lived assets 4,46¢ 40t 1,715 6,58¢
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As described above, our chief operating decisiokenaeviews each operating segmerierformance based upon operating inc
which excludes restructuring costs and intangisleetiimpairment, if any. Intangible asset impairaerd restructuring costs are include
operating profit on a consolidated basis and iretlith the Other/Eliminations column in the tabléole

OPERATING SEGMENTS

North Latin Other/ Total

Millions of dollars America America EMEA Asia Eliminations Whirlpool
Net sales

2013 $ 10,17¢  $ 4,92¢ % 3,02¢ % 807 $ (168) $ 18,76¢

2012 9,631 4,95( 2,87¢ 847 (159) 18,14:

2011 9,58: 5,062 3,30¢ 881 (164) 18,66¢
Intersegment sales

2013 $ 25¢ $ 174 % 7€ 3 257 % (76€6) $ —

2012 262 171 104 22€ (763) —

2011 21¢ 187 167 217 (787) —
Depreciation and amortization

2013 $ 236 % 91 $ 9t $ 18 $ 28 $ 54C

2012 26C 97 93 18 83 551

2011 28C 101 107 21 49 B55¢
Operating profit (loss)

2013 $ 1,07C % 557 % 4 3 34 3 (40¢) $ 1,24¢

2012 84¢ 47€ (52) 37 (439) 86¢

2011 39¢ 642 1 30 (279) 792
Total assets

2013 $ 7,78 % 3,38C % 2,95 % 921 $ 50 $ 15,54«

2012 7,76¢€ 3,84¢ 2,95¢€ 80z 27 15,39¢

2011 7,89¢ 3,62( 2,83¢ 797 31 15,181
Capital expenditures

2013 $ 254 % 106 $ 101 $ 25 % 9 $ 57¢

2012 21¢ 10C 88 24 45 47€

2011 31¢€ 112 103 27 50 60¢
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(14) QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

Three months ended

Millions of dollars, except per share data Dec. 31 Sept. 30 Jun. 30 Mar. 31
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Net sales $ 5090 $ 4,791 $ 4,68° $ 449 $ 4,748 $ 4510 $ 4,248 $ 4,34¢
Cost of products sold 4,181 3,97¢ 3,831 3,791 3,931 3,78: 3,52 3,69¢
Operating profit 354 25¢ 31: 213 32¢ 194 254 204
Interest and sundry income (expense) (82 (35 (16) (38 (39 (22 (18 ()]
Net earnings 187 12¢ 19¢ 80 20€ 12C 257 97
Net earnings available to Whirlpool 181 122 19¢ 74 19¢ 118 252 92

Per share of common stoc®:

Basic net earnings $ 231 $ 15t $ 24¢ $ 09 $ 24 $ 14t $ 318 $ 1.a¢
Diluted net earnings 2.2¢ 1.52 2.4z 0.94 2.44 1.4 3.1z 1.17
Dividends 0.62¢ 0.5C 0.62¢ 0.5C 0.62¢ 0.5(C 0.5C 0.5C

Market price range of common stock:

High $159.2: $104.2. $151.8: $ 86.47 $134.0¢ $ 77.0¢ $120.0( $ 79.3¢
Low 129.2: 82.3¢t 111.7¢ 59.8¢ 107.8¢ 54.0¢ 101.7¢ 47.7:
Close 156.8¢ 101.7¢ 146.4¢ 82.91 114.3¢ 61.1¢ 118.4¢ 76.8¢

@ The quarterly earnings per share amounts will egessarily add to the earnings per share compotetd year due to the method used in calculatérgspare dat

@ Composite price as reported by the New York StaokhBnge

(15) PENDING ACQUISITION

On August 12, 2013, Whirlpool's wholly-owned suliesig, Whirlpool (China) Investment Co., Ltd., (“Whpool China”), reache
agreements to acquire a 5Equity stake in Hefei Rongshida Sanyo Electric Cti,, a joint stock company whose shares arediated trade
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (“Hefei Sanyo”).

Pursuant to a Share Purchase A greement (the “Shmobase Agreement”) among Whirlpool China, SANKI@ctric Co., Ltd. (Sanyt
Japan”), and SANYO Electric (China) Co., Ltd., (ffya China”, and together with Sanyo Japan, thelé8), Whirlpool China expects
purchase the 157,245,200 shares (or 29.51% ) dfit$ainyo currently held by the Sellers (such tremsi, the “Share Purchase”).

In addition, pursuant to a Share Subscription Agreat (the “Share Subscription Agreemerttgtween Whirlpool China and He
Sanyo, Whirlpool China expects to subscribe for,833,000shares (which, together with shares purchased gurgo the Share Purchi
Agreement, will aggregate 51%) of Hefei Sanyo (subjo antidilution adjustments) issued pursuant to a priyddéeement (such transacti
the “Share Subscription”). Pursuant to the Sharbs&uption Agreement and as required by the lavthef Peoples Republic of Chin
Whirlpool China will be prevented from selling aslyares of Hefei Sanyo for 36 months following tlese of the Share Subscription.

The aggregate purchase price for the Share Puramas¢éhe Share Subscription is RMB 3.4 billion (@pgmately $555 millionas o
December 31, 2013), subject, in each case, toiceathustments if dividends are paid on the Hefeny® shares. The purchase price fo
Share Purchase is payable in USD based on the myehate as of August 9, 2013 and the purchase foicdhe Share Subscription is pay:
either in RMB or in USD based on the exchange oatéthe payment date. The Company currently intémdignd the total consideration for
shares with cash on hand or other public or pridatet financing depending on the timing of the iclgsand market conditions. The transac
also includes the commitment of capital and tecdmesources to enhance Hefei Sanyo’s researcderelopment and product innovation.

63




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (C ONTINUED)

The Share Purchase Agreement and Share Subscrijgi@ement contain representations and warrangigarding the shares of He
Sanyo, the Sellers’ and Hefei Sany@authority, and customary covenants. The SharehBse and Share Subscription are subject to cusf
closing conditions and the Share Purchase is suttjezertain termination rights, including Sellefistuciary termination right. In addition, t
Share Purchase and the Share Subscription arecsubjeegulatory approvals. Approvals from the Miny of Commerce of the Peopde’
Republic of China (antitrust and foreign strategicestment), the Statewned Assets Supervision and Administration Comimissf the Stat
Council, and Hefei Sanyo shareholders (Share Pseclznd Share Subscription) have been received. Chiea Securities Regulatc
Commission approval (including waiver of a tendfe, as well as regulatory reviews and approwgiother governmental authorities, h
not yet been received. The Share Purchase and Shhseription are crosmnditional on one another. Under certain circumsta, includin
if the Share Purchase does not close by Decemb@034 (or June 30, 2015 if the tax payment cegi® has not yet been obtained), the St
will be entitled to retain a $20 milliobreakup fee paid by Whirlpool in February 2014.1Btite Share Purchase and the Share Subscripti
currently expected to close anytime between theoétite second quarter and the end of 2014.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Disclosure controls and proceduresWhirlpool maintains disclosure controls and progedu(as defined in Rule 13#&{e) of th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (theeuiies Exchange Act")) that are designed to jl@weasonable assurance
information required to be disclosed in our filingsder the Securities Exchange Act is recordedzge®ed, summarized, and reported w
the periods specified in the rules and forms ofS3B€ and that such information is accumulated andaneunicated to Whirlpoad’ managemer
including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Rincial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely &émns regarding required disclosure.

Prior to filing this report, we completed an evdioa under the supervision and with the participatof Whirl[pool managemel
including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief &ntial Officer, of the effectiveness of the desagnal operation of our disclosure controls
procedures as of December 31, 201Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executiveid@ff and Chief Financial Officer concluded that
disclosure controls and procedures were effectitkeareasonable assurance level as of Decemb@033,.

Management’s annual report on internal control overfinancial reporting. Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarba®etey Act of 200:
and the rules and regulations adopted pursuanttthewe included a report of managemerassessment of the effectiveness of our int
control over financial reporting as part of thipoet. Managemend' report is included on page 70 of this report urttle caption entitle
“Management’s Report on Internal Control Over FitiahReporting”.

Our internal control over financial reporting asdcember 31, 20113as been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an indepehdgistere
public accounting firm, as stated in their reparhjch is included on page 72 of this report undher ¢aption entitiedReport of Independe
Registered Public Accounting Firm” and is incorgedaherein by reference.

There were no changes in our internal control diwancial reporting that occurred during the fougytrarter that have materially affect
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, aternal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

There was no information required to be disclosed ieport on Form 8-K during the fourth quartettivas not previously reported.

PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE.
Information regarding our executive officers isluded in ITEM 1 of PART | of this report.

Information regarding the background of the direstanatters related to the Audit Committee, andtiBed.6(a) compliance can
found under the captions “Directors and Nominees Héection as Directors,” “Board of Directors andr@orate GovernanceAudit
Committee,” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownersiipporting Compliancein our Proxy Statement, which is incorporated herey
reference.

There have been no material changes to the proeedurough which stockholders may recommend noraiteeeur Board of Directo
since March 4, 2013, which is the date of our peeky statement.
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We have adopted a code of ethics that applies| tof @ur employees, officers and directors, inchgdiour principal executive office
principal financial officer and principal accourgiofficer. The text of our code of ethics is postedour website: www.whirlpoolcorp.com
scroll over the “Responsibility” dropdown menu arlitk on “Code of Ethics.Whirlpool intends to disclose future amendmentotoyaiver:
from, certain provisions of the code of ethics daecutive officers and directors on the websitdiwifour business days following the dat
such amendment or waiver. Stockholders may reguiEse copy of the code of ethics from:

Investor Relations
Whirlpool Corporation
2000 North M-63
Mail Drop 2609
Benton Harbor, Ml 49022-2692
Telephone: (269) 923-2641

Whirlpool has also adopted Corporate Governancedélines and written charters for its Audit, Finan¢tuman Resources &
Corporate Governance and Nominating Committeespfalivhich are posted on our website: www.whirlp@ofzcom —scroll over th
“Responsibility” dropdown menu and then over “Gaaance” and then click on “Board of Director§&tockholders may request a free cog
the charters and guidelines from the address epheine number set forth above.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION .

Information regarding compensation of our executifcers and directors can be found under theicapt“Nonemployee Direct
Compensation,” “Compensation Discussion and Angl]ysExecutive Compensation Tables,” anduman Resources Committee Interlc
and Insider Participation” in the Proxy Statemertiich is incorporated herein by reference. See thisanformation under the captiorltimar
Resources Committee Report” in our Proxy Statenvelnich is incorporated herein by reference; howgsech information is only “furnished”
hereunder and not deemed “soliciting material” fiet” with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or 14Qaothe liabilities of Section 18
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Information regarding the security ownership of g@yson that we know to beneficially own more tBh&h of Whirlpool stock and t
each Whirlpool director, each Whirlpool named exeeuofficer, and all directors and executive offis as a group, can be found unde
captions “Security Ownership” and “Beneficial Owslgip” in the Proxy Statement, which is incorporated lmet®i reference. Informatic
relating to securities authorized under equity cengation plans can be found under the caption tE@ompensation Plan Informationt the
Proxy Statement, which is incorporated herein ligresce.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE.

Information regarding certain relationships andted transactions (if any) and the independend&'taflpool’s directors, can be fou
under the captions “Related Person Transactiond”“Board of Directors and Corporate Governance—®oe Independenceih the Prox
Statement, which is incorporated herein by refezenc

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

Information regarding our auditors and the Audin@uittee’s pre-approval policies can be found uritercaption Matters Relating 1
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm'ia Proxy Statement, which is incorporated hereireligrence.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) The following documents are filed as a parthas report:
1. Financial statements

Consolidated Statements of Income 32
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 33
Consolidated Balance Sheets 34
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 35
Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholHgrsty 36
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 37
Report by Management on the Consolidated Finafta&kements 69
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm 71

Individual financial statements of the registranffiliated foreign companies, accounted for by #guity method, have been omi
since no such company individually constitutesgaigicant subsidiary.

2. Financial Statement Schedules - “Schedule II-u&@bn and Qualifying Accountsis contained on page 73 of this report. Ce
schedules for which provisions are made in theiepiple accounting regulations of the Securities Bmdhange Commission are
required under the related instructions or areptiagble, and therefore have been omitted.

(b) The exhibits listed in the “Exhibit Index” attaed to this report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

W HIRLPOOL C ORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /sl Larry M. Venturelli February 18, 2014

Larry M. Venturelli
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on ber
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ie indicated.

Signature Title

ISl JEFF M. FETTIG Director, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executdfécer

Jeff M. Fettig (Principal Executive Officer)

/S/ MICHAEL A. TODMAN Director and President, Whirlpool International
Michael A. Todman

/S/' LARRY M. VENTURELLI Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
Larry M. Venturelli (Principal Financial Officer)
/S/ CHRISTOPHER J. KUEHN Vice President and Corporate Controller
Christopher J. Kuehn (Principal Accounting Officer)
SAMUEL R. ALLEN* Director

Samuel R. Allen

GARY T. DICAMILLO* Director
Gary T. DiCamillo

DIANE M. DIETZ* Director
Diane M. Dietz
MICHAEL F. JOHNSTON* Director

Michael F. Johnston

WILLIAM T. KERR* Director
William T. Kerr
JOHN D. LIU* Director
John D. Liu
HARISH MANWANI* Director

Harish Manwani

WILLIAM D. PEREZ* Director

William D. Perez



MICHAEL D. WHITE* Director

Michael D. White

*By: /s/ KIRSTEN J. HEWITT Attorney-in-Fact February 18, 2014
Kirsten J. Hewitt
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Report by Management on the Consolidated Financigbtatements

The management of Whirlpool Corporation has prapane accompanying financial statements. The firsratatements have be
audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent regesi public accounting firm, whose report, baseohugeir audits, expresses the opil
that these financial statements present fairly dhesolidated financial position, statements of imeoand cash flows of Whirlpool and
subsidiaries in accordance with accounting primsglenerally accepted in the United States. Thelit@are conducted in conformity with
auditing standards of the Public Company Accoun@wgrsight Board (United States).

The financial statements were prepared from the fi2my's accounting records, books and accounts whichre@sonable dete
accurately and fairly reflect all material transags. The Company maintains a system of internatrots designed to provide reason:i
assurance that the Company’s books and recordghar@ompany’s assets are maintained and accotorted accordance with management’
authorizations. The Comparsyaccounting records, compliance with policies amernal controls are regularly reviewed by an riné¢ audi
staff.

The audit committee of the Board of Directors cé thompany is composed of four independent direatdrs, in the opinion of tt
board, meet the relevant financial experiencerdig, and expertise requirements. The audit coramiftrovides independent and objec
oversight of the Company’s accounting functions amdrnal controls and monitors (1) the objectivifythe Companys financial statemen
(2) the Company’s compliance with legal and reguiatequirements, (3) the independent registerdaigpaccounting firms qualifications ar
independence, and (4) the performance of the Coypainternal audit function and independent registepablic accounting firm. |
performing these functions, the committee has #sponsibility to review and discuss the annual teddfinancial statements and quart
financial statements and related reports with mamamt and the independent registered public acemufitm, including the Company’
disclosures under “Management’s Discussion and y&malof Financial Condition and Results of Openagit to monitor the adequacy
financial disclosure. The committee also has tlspaasibility to retain and terminate the Companydependent registered public accour
firm and exercise the committee’s sole authoritye@iew and approve all audit engagement fees emastand prepprove the nature, exte
and cost of all non-audit services provided byitlieependent registered public accounting firm.

Isi L ARRY M. V ENTURELLI

Larry M. Venturelli

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
February 18, 2014
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The management of Whirlpool Corporation is respalasfor establishing and maintaining adequate inakecontrol over financi
reporting as defined in Rules 13a — 15(f) and 15t6¢) under the Securities Exchange Act of 193Ailpool’s internal control system
designed to provide reasonable assurance to Whlrpmanagement and board of directors regardingetiebility of financial reporting ar
the preparation and fair presentation of publisieahcial statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how welk@med, have inherent limitations. Therefore, etrese systems determined tc
effective can provide only reasonable assurande iegpect to financial statement preparation apdgntation.

The management of Whirlpool assessed the effe@sseinf Whirlpool's internal control over financiaporting as oDecember 3:
2013. In making this assessment, it used the critegtafarth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiof the Treadway Commiss
(COSO) ininternal Control—Integrated Framework (1992 FramekjoBased on our assessment and those criteria, mapagéelieves th
Whirlpool maintained effective internal control eancial reporting as of December 31, 2013 .

Whirlpool's independent registered public accoumptiimm has issued an audit report on its assessofevithirlpool’s internal contre
over financial reporting. This report appears oggoa2.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Whirlpool Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Whirlpool Corporation as of Decemider2®13 and 2012and th
related consolidated statements of income, compsie income, changes in stockholdexguity and cash flows for each of the three yea
the period ended December 31, 20T3ur audits also included the financial statensehiedule listed in the index at Item 15(a). Thésantia
statements and schedule are the responsibilithefCtompanys management. Our responsibility is to expressnian on these financi
statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting Oversighafglo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet daodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimntecial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedig, tonsolidated financial position
Whirlpool Corporation at December 31, 2013 and 20&8d the consolidated results of its operatiorts itcash flows for each of the th
years in the period endDecember 31, 2013in conformity with U.S. generally accepted acdinmprinciples. Also in our opinion, the rela
financial statement schedule, when considered latioa to the basic financial statements taken aghale, presents fairly, in all matel
respects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasda the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@united States), Whirlpo
Corporation’s internal control over financial repog as of December 31, 2013 , based on criteti@blished in Internal ControHntegrate:
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@iggtions of the Treadway Commission (1992 Framkwand our report dat
February 18, 2014 expressed an unqualified opitfiereon.

/si ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 18, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Whirlpool Corporation

We have audited Whirlpool Corporation’s internalntol over financial reporting as of December 3D12, based on criter
established in Internal Controllrtegrated Framework (1992 Framework) issued by Gmenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of
Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). WhirlpGorporations management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control o
financial reporting, and for its assessment of #ffectiveness of internal control over financiapoeting included in the accompany
Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Fim@nReporting. Our responsibility is to express @sinion on the compang’interna
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight rdo@nited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetdodbbtain reasonable assurance about whethectigeinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procedisege considered necessary in the circumstancesbélieve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is apess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princig
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclgdghose policies and procedures that (1) pertathéanaintenance of records tl
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflbet transactions and dispositions of the assettseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withosizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanasisurance regarding prevention or timely deteatiounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @ét@isstatements. Also, projections
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditior
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Whirlpool Corporation maintainedh, all material respects, effective internal contoekr financial reporting as
December 31, 2013, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@dnited States), tl
consolidated balance sheets of Whirlpool Corponatis of December 31, 2013 and 2QXhd the related consolidated statements of ing
comprehensive income, changes in stockholderstgcuid cash flows for each of the three yearsénperiod ended December 31, 20H¢
our report dated February 18, 2014 expressed amalifigd opinion thereon.

/si ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 18, 2014
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SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
WHIRLPOOL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
(Millions of dollars)

COL. A COL.B COL.C COL.D COL.E
ADDITIONS
. @) ) _
Balance at Beginning Charged to Costs Charged to Other Deductions Balance at End
Description of Period and Expenses Accounts / Other —Describe (A) of Period

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Allowance for doubtful accounts—
accounts receivable 60 21 — (8) 73

Year Ended December 31, 2012
Allowance for doubtful accounts—

accounts receivable 61 23 — (24) 60
Year Ended December 31, 2011

Allowance for doubtful accounts—

accounts receivable 66 17 — (22 61

Note A—The amounts represent accounts charged off, l@sslation adjustments and transfers. Recoveries m@minal for 2013, 2012 and
2011.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
ITEMS 15(a)(3) and 15(c)
EXHIBIT INDEX
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

The following exhibits are submitted herewith ocanporated herein by reference in response to ItE5&)(3) and 15(c). Each exh

that is considered a management contract or corapmysplan or arrangement required to be filed pans to Item 15(a)(3) of Form 10-is
identified by a “(2).”

Number and Description of Exhibit

3(i)

3(ii)

4(i)

4(i)

4(iii)

4(iv)

4(v)

4(vi)

4(vii)

4(viii)

4(ix)

4(x)

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Wpaol Corporation (amended and restated as of &22il2009). [Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Fori @ommission file number 1-3932)
filed on April 23, 2009]

By-Laws of Whirlpool Corporation (amended and restateaf April 17, 2012). [Incorporated by referefficen Exhibit 3.2 to th
Company’s Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-398@Y on April 20, 2012]

The registrant hereby agrees to furnish eéoSlecurities and Exchange Commission, upon recuesipy of instruments defining
the rights of holders of each issue of long-teriota the registrant and its subsidiaries.

Indenture dated as of April 15, 1990 betw&éhirlpool Corporation and Citibank, N.A. [Incorfded by reference from Exhibit 4
(a) to the Company’s Registration Statement on F8f&n(Commission file number 33-40249) filed on Mgyl 991]

Indenture dated as of March 20, 2000 betwé¢hirlpool Corporation and U.S. Bank, National Asi&tion (as successor to
Citibank, N.A.) [Incorporated by reference from kbih4(a) to the Company’s Registration StatemenEorm S-3 (Commission
file number 333-32886) filed on March 21, 2000]

Indenture dated as of June 15, 1987 betWéaytag Corporation and The First National Bank bfdago. [Incorporated by
reference from Maytag Corporation’s Quarterly Re¢jpor Form 10-Q (Commission file number 1-00655)tf@ quarter ended
June 30, 1987]

Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of Betd0, 2001 between Maytag Corporation and Bark ®ational Association.
[Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to MaytCorporation’s Form 8-K (Commission file numbed@655) filed on
October 31, 2001]

Tenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of Decenthe2® 0, between Maytag Corporation, Whirlpool @Gogtion and The Bar
of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. [Incorpordtby reference from Exhibit 4(vi) to the Compangisnual Report on
Form 10-K (Commission file number 1-3932) for tiexél year ended December 31, 2010]

Form of 8.6% Notes due 2014, issued unHerlhdenture dated as of March 20, 2000 betweenlpdol Corporation and U.S.
Bank, National Association (as successor to Citith&hA.). [Incorporated by reference from Annex Bite@ Certificate of
Designated Officers, Exhibit 4.1 to the Companydsrix 8-K (Commission file number 333-157392) filen May 5, 2009]

Form of 4.850% Notes due 2021 issued urtlerindenture dated as of March 20, 2000 betwekinlpdol Corporation and U.S.
Bank, National Association (as successor to CitthadhA.) [Incorporated by reference from Annex Athe Certificate of
Designated Officers, Exhibit 4.1 to the Companydsri 8-K (Commission file number 1-3932) filed oméur, 2011]

Form of 4.700% Notes due 2022 issued unideindenture dated as of March 20, 2000 betweenlpdoil Corporation and U.S.
Bank, National Association (as successor to CitthadhA.) [Incorporated by reference from Annex Athe Certificate of
Designated Officers, Exhibit 4.1 to the Companydsrit 8-K (Commission file number 1-3932) filed oméut, 2012]

Form of 3.700% Notes due 2023 and Form 05@% Notes due 2043 issued under the Indenture dateflMarch 20, 2000
between Whirlpool Corporation and U.S. Bank, Naglokssociation (as successor to Citibank, N.A.xfiporated by reference
from Annex A-1 and Annex A-2, respectively, to Bertificate of Designated Officers, Exhibit 4.1thee Company’s Form 8-K
(Commission file number 1-3932) filed on February 2013]
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Number and Description of Exhibit

10(i)(a) Amended and Restated Long-Term Five-Y&adit Agreement dated as of June 28, 2011 amonigal Corporation,
Whirlpool Europe B.V., Whirlpool Finance B.V., Whipol Canada Holding Co., Certain Financial Institns and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent and ArapAgent and The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC, asd®ation Agent, BNP
Paribas and Citibank, N.A., as Documentation Ageh®. Morgan Securities LLC and RBS Securities, la€ Joint Lead
Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners. [Incorporateddignence from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Forik @zommission file
number 1-3932) filed on July 1, 2011]

10(iii)(a)  Whirlpool Corporation Nonemployee Ditec Stock Ownership Plan (amended as of Februard®o, effective April 20, 1999).
(2) [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit A tet@ompany’s Proxy Statement (Commission file nunib8932) for the 1999
annual meeting of stockholders]

10(iii)(b)  Whirlpool Corporation Charitable Awafontribution and Additional Life Insurance Plan firectors (effective April 20, 1993).
(2) [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(jo) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-Krf@aission file number 1-
3932) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1994]

10(iii)(c)  Whirlpool Corporation Deferred Competisa Plan for Directors (as amended effective Jantal1992 and April 20, 1993). (Z)
[Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(iii)f the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Consiois file number 1-
3932) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993]

10(iii)(d)  Whirlpool Corporation Deferred Competisa Plan Il for Non-Employee Directors (as amendad restated, effective January 1,
2009). (2) [Incorporated by reference from Exhitffiii)(e) to the Company’s Annual Report on FortK (Commission file
number 1-3932) for the fiscal year ended DecemteRG08]

10(iii)(e)  Whirlpool Corporation Nonemployee Ditec Equity Plan (effective January 1, 2005). (Ziclrporated by reference from
Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (Commissfid@ number 1-3932) filed on April 21, 2005]

10(ii)(f)  Amendment of the Whirlpool Corporatiddionemployee Director Equity Plan (effective Januhr008). (Z) [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(iii)(a) to the Company’sderly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission file numbe3932) filed on April
24, 2008]

10(iii)(g)  Nonemployee Director Stock Option FoahAgreement. (Z) [Incorporated by reference frorhibit 10(iii)(b) to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission file nemb-3932) filed on April 24, 2008]

10(iii)(h)  Nonemployee Director Stock Option FoohAgreement (Z) [Incorporated by reference fromhibit 10.2 to the Compang’Form
8-K (Commission file number 1-3932) filed on Apeib, 2010]

10(ii) (i) Whirlpool Corporation 1996 Omnibus Stoand Incentive Plan (as amended, effective Febri@y 1999). (Z) [Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(r) to the Companysnual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file numhe3932) for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1999]

10(iii)(j) Whirlpool Corporation 1998 Omnibus Stoand Incentive Plan (as amended, effective Felpri@y1999). (Z) [Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(s) to the Company®enual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file numbe3932) for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1999]

10(iii)(k)  Whirlpool Corporation 2000 Omnibus Stoand Incentive Plan (effective January 1, 200D) [ihcorporated by reference from
Exhibit A to the Company’s Proxy Statement (Comioissile number 1-3932) for the 2000 annual meebhgtockholders filed
on March 13, 2000]

10(iii)(I) Whirlpool Corporation 2002 Omnibus Stoand Incentive Plan (effective January 1, 20@2) [ihcorporated by reference from
Exhibit A to the Company’s Proxy Statement (Comioisgile number 1-3932) for the 2002 annual meetihgtockholders filed
on March 8, 2002]

10(iii)(m)  Whirlpool Corporation 2007 Omnibus Skoand Incentive Plan (effective January 1, 20QZ) [ihcorporated by reference from
Annex A to the Company’s Proxy Statement (Commis$ile number 1-3932) for the 2007 annual meetihgtockholders filed
on March 12, 2007]

10(iii)(n)  Omnibus Equity Plans 409A Amendmenti¢efive December 19, 2008). (Z) [Incorporated emence from Exhibit 10(iii)(n) to

the Comnan’s Anniial Renart on Form -K (Commission file niimher-239232) far the fiscal vear ended Decemher 212
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Number and Description of Exhibit

10(ii) (o)

10(iii)(p)

10(iii)(a)

10(iii)(r)

10(jii)(s)

10(iii) (t)

10(ii) (u)

10(iii)(v)

10(ii) (w)

10(iii)(x)

10(ii(y)

10(jii)(z)

10(iii)(aa)

10(ii) (bb)

10(jii)(cc)

Whirlpool Corporation 2010 Omnibus Skoand Incentive Plan (Z) [Incorporated by referefroen Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-398@Y on April 26, 2010]

Whirlpool Corporation Amended and Rasth2010 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan (Z) [tpocated by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Registration StatetmenForm S-8 (Commission file number 333-18794i8yifon April 16,
2013]

Form of Agreement for the Whirlpool Gumorration Career Stock Grant Program (pursuant éoasnmore of Whirlpool's Omnibus
Stock and Incentive Plans). (Z) [Incorporated tgmence from Exhibit 10(iii)(g) to the Company’s #ul Report on Form 10-K
(Commission file number 1-3932) for the fiscal yeaded December 31, 1995]

Form of Amendment to Whirlpool Corpoiain Career Stock Grant Agreement. (Z) [Incorpordigdeference from Exhibit 10(iii)
(p) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-Kif@aission file number 1-3932) for the fiscal yeaded December 31,
2008]

Form of Stock Option Grant Document fbe Whirlpool Corporation Stock Option Programr§uant to one or more of
Whirlpool's Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plans)(R&(17/04). (Z) [Incorporated by reference from Bihl0(i) to the
Company'’s Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-398@Y on January 25, 2005]

Administrative Guidelines for the Whjpbol Corporation Special Retention Program (purst@mone or more of Whirlpool's
Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plans). (Z) [Incorpeddty reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(w) to the Coamy’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K (Commission file number 1-3932) for tiexél year ended December 31, 2001]

Addendum to Whirlpool Corporation SpacRetention Program Features (effective Janua?@5). (Z) [Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(s) to the Company®enual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file numbhe3932) for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2008]

Form of Whirlpool Corporation Strategiexcellence Program Grant Document (pursuant tooomeore of Whirlpool's Omnibus
Stock and Incentive Plans)(Rev. 02/17/04). (Z) ¢hporated by reference from Exhibit 10(ii) to ther@pany’s Form 8-K
(Commission file number 1-3932) filed on January 2805]

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreemépursuant to one or more of Whirlpool's Omnibusecktand Incentive Plans) (Z)
[Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to @@mpany’s Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-398@d on June 21,
2010]

Whirlpool Corporation 2010 Omnibus Stoand Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unit Awarjl [(Acorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10(iii)(a) to the Company’s Form 10-Q (Corssion file number 1-3932) for the quarter endeddia&81, 2011]

Whirlpool Corporation 2010 Omnibus Stoand Incentive Plan Strategic Excellence ProgranfioPmance Unit Award (Z)
[Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(iii){m) the Company’s Form 10-Q (Commission file numb&932) for the quarter
ended March 31, 2011]

Whirlpool Corporation 2010 Omnibus Skoand Incentive Plan Strategic Excellence ProgramekSOption Grant (Z)
[Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(iii)¢o) the Company’s Form 10-Q (Commission file numb&932) for the quarter
ended March 31, 2011]

Whirlpool Corporation 2010 Omnibus &taand Incentive Plan Strategic Excellence Prograstricted Stock Unit Award (2)
[Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(iii) (@) the Company’s Form 10-Q (Commission file numb&932) for the quarter
ended March 31, 2011]

Whirlpool Corporation 2010 Omnibus 8koand Incentive Plan Strategic Excellence Progstmek Option Grant Document (Z)
[Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(iii)¢a@)the Company’s form 10-Q (Commission file numbe3932) for the quarter
ended March 31, 2012]

Whirlpool Corporation 2010 Omnibus 8koand Incentive Plan Strategic Excellence Progeaniormance Restricted Stock Unit /
Performance Unit Grant Document (Z) [Incorporatgdadference from Exhibit 10(iii)(b) to the Compasybrm 10-Q
(Commission file number 1-3932) for the quartereshtarch 31, 2012]



10(iii)(dd) Form of Compensation and Benefits Assice Agreements (Z) [Incorporated by referencenfExhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-3932) filed ongust 23, 2010]
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Number and Description of Exhibit

10(iii)(ee)

10(iii) (ff)

10(iii)(g9)

10(iii)(hh)

10(jii) ii)

10(iii)(j)

10(jii) (k)

10(iii) ()

10(jii)(mm)

10(iii)(nn)

12

21

23

24

31(a)

31(b)

32

Whirlpool Corporation Performance Ekence Plan. (Z) [Incorporated by reference fronhibi 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-
K (Commission file number 1-3932) filed on April ,22009]

Whirlpool Corporation Executive Defexd Savings Plan (as amended effective Januaryd2)1&) [Incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10(iii)(n) to the Company’s Annual Rap on Form 10-K (Commission file number 1-3932) thee fiscal year ended
December 31, 1993]

Whirlpool Corporation Executive Defed Savings Plan Il (as amended and restated, igffeanuary 1, 2009), including
Supplement A, Whirlpool Executive Restoration Rlas amended and restated, effective January 1)2@09Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(y) to the Company&snual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file numthe3932) for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2008]

Amendment to the Whirlpool Corporati@xecutive Deferred Savings Plan Il (dated Decer2ieR009). (Z) [Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(x) to the Company&snual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file numthe3932) for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2009]

Whirlpool Retirement Benefits Restoran Plan (as amended and restated effective Jady&g09). (Z) [Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(dd) to the Companyanual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file numbe3932) for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2008]

Whirlpool Supplemental Executive Retiment Plan (as amended and restated, effectivadahu2009). (Z) [Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(ee) to the Companiisnual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file numhe3932) for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2008]

Whirlpool Corporation Form of IndemgitAgreement. (Z) [Incorporated by reference fronhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form
8-K (Commission file number 1-3932) filed on Febgua3, 2006]

Employment Agreement with Jose A. Drummond datetbkr 1, 2008. (Z) [Incorporated by reference figrhibit 10(iii)(gg) to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theedil year ended December 31, 2010]

Amendment to Employment Agreement of Jose A. Drumindated May 1, 2012. [Incorporated by referememfExhibit 10(iii)
to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter endec: B0, 2012]

Business Confidentiality, Non Compit and Other Covenants Agreement with Jose A. Dmond, dated March 14, 2013 (2)
ggigiporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to @@mpany’s Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-398@3d on March 15,
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

List of Subsidiaries

Consent of Independent Registered Public Ad@ogifrirm

Power of Attorney

Certification of Chief Executive Officer, lBuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley AGDOR2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer, Rwant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley AQOOR

Certifications Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectiobQl&as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Siagh@xley Act of 2002
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XBRL Instance Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation LinldeaDocument

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Dotent
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Number and Description of Exhibit

101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation LagdoDocument

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition LinkleaBocument
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EXHIBIT 12 - RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
WHIRLPOOL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Earnings
Earnings (loss) before income taxes
Fixed charges

Fixed charges
Portion of rents representative of the interestofiac
Interest on indebtedness
Amortization of debt financing fees

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
917 55¢ (28) $  58€ 292
231 25€ 27C 281 271

1,14¢ 814 242 $ 867 564
54 57 57 $ 56 52
172 192 204 211 21C
5 6 9 14 9
231 25€ 27§ 281 271
5.0 3.2 0.¢ 3.1 2.1




WHIRLPOOL CORPORATION
List of Subsidiaries

Subsidiary and Name Under Which It Does Business

Jurisdiction in Which Organized

Exhibit 21

1900 Holdings Corporation

BUD Comércio de Eletrodomésticos Ltda.

BWI Products Limited

Bauknecht AG

Bauknecht Hausgerate GmbH

Bauknecht Limited

Beijing Embraco Snowflake Compressor Company Lichite
Bill Page Orchestra, Inc.

Brasmotor S.A.

CNB Consultoria Ltda

Centro de Desarrollo Tecnologico e Innévacion WHMde R.L de C.V.
Comercial Acros Whirlpool, S.A. de C.V.

Consumer Appliances Service Limited

Ealing Compania de Gestiones y Participaciones S.A.
Elera Delaware, Inc.

Elera Holdings Corporation

Embraco Europe S.r.l.

Embraco Eurosales S.r.l.

Embraco Luxembourg S.ar.l.

Embraco Mexico Servicios, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Embraco Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V.

Embraco North America, Inc.

Embraco RUS LLC

Embraco Slovakia S.r.o.

Everest Campus, LLC.

Guangdong Whirlpool Electrical Appliances Co., Ltd.
Haceb Whirlpool Industrias S.A.S.

Hisense - Whirlpool (Zhejiang) Electric Appliandgs., Ltd.
Hoover Comercial Limitada

IRE Beteiligungs GmbH

Industrias Acros Whirlpool, S.A. de C.V.

KitchenAid Delaware, Inc.

KitchenAid Europa, Inc.

KitchenAid Europa, Inc. (Brussels Branch)
KitchenAid Global, Inc.

KitchenAid Promotions, LLC

KitchenAid, Inc.

LAWSA S.A.

MLOG Armazém Geral Ltda.

Maytag Comercial, S. de R.L. de C.V.

Maytag Limited

Maytag Properties, LLC

Maytag Sales, Inc.

Maytag Worldwide N.V.

Delaware
Brazil
England
Switzerland
Germany
England
China
California
Brazil
Brazil
Mexico
Mexico
Hong Kong
Uruguay
Delaware
Delaware
Italy
Italy
Luxembourg
Mexico
Mexico
Delaware
Russia
Slovak Republic
Michigan
China
Colombia
China
Brazil
Germany
Mexico
Delaware
Delaware
Belgium
Delaware
Michigan
Ohio
Argentina
Brazil
Mexico
Ontario
Michigan
Delaware
Netherlands Antilles




Subsidiary and Name Under Which It Does Business

Jurisdiction in Which Organized

Nineteen Hundred Corporation

Prestadora de Servicios Administrativos Regiomamt&i de R. L. de C.V.

Qingdao EECON Electronic Controls and Appliances Cal.
South American Sales Partnership

THC Assets Corporation

WCGP Nova Scotia Co.

WFC de Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.

Whirlpool (Australia) Pty. Limited

Whirlpool (Australia) Pty. Limited dba Whirlpool MeZealand
Whirlpool (B.V.l.) Limited

Whirlpool (China) Investment Co., Ltd.

Whirlpool (Hong Kong) Limited

Whirlpool (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Whirlpool (Thailand) Limited

Whirlpool (UK) Limited

Whirlpool America Holdings Corp.

Whirlpool Argentina S.A.

Whirlpool ASEAN Co.

Whirlpool Asia B.V.

Whirlpool Asia Holdings S.ar.l.

Whirlpool Asia Inc.

Whirlpool Austria GmbH

Whirlpool Asia Private Limited

Whirlpool Baltic UAB

Whirlpool Benelux N.V./S.A.

Whirlpool Bulgaria Ltd.

Whirlpool CIS Ltd.

Whirlpool CR, spol. s.r.o.

Whirlpool Canada Co. (post 9/1/05 amalgamation camgjp
Whirlpool Canada Holding Co. (post 4/18/06 amalgtomacompany)
Whirlpool Canada LP

Whirlpool Canada Luxembourg Holdings S.ar.l.
Whirlpool Chile Limitada

Whirlpool Coldmbia S.A.S.

Whirlpool Comercial Ltda.

Whirlpool Croatia Ltd.

Whirlpool CSA Holdings S.ar.l.

Whirlpool do Brasil Investements B.V.

Whirlpool do Brasil Ltda.

Whirlpool Ecuador S.A.

Whirlpool Eesti OU

Whirlpool El Salvador, S.A. de C.V.

Whirlpool Eletrodomésticos AM S.A.

Whirlpool Enterprises, LLC

Whirlpool Europe B.V.

Whirlpool Europe Coordination Center

Whirlpool Europe Holdings Limited

Whirlpool Europe S.r.l.

Whirlpool Europe Srl (Dubai Representative Office)

New York
Mexico

China

Florida

Delaware

Nova Scotia

Mexico

Australia

New Zealand

Virgin Islands (British)

China

Hong Kong

Malaysia

Thailand

England

Delaware

Argentina

Delaware

Netherlands (The)

Luxembourg

Delaware

Austria

India

Lithuania

Belgium

Bulgaria

Russia

Czech Republic

Nova Scotia

Nova Scotia

Ontario

Luxembourg

Chile

Colombia

Brazil

Croatia

Luxembourg

Netherlands

Brazil

Ecuador

Estonia

El Salvador

Brazil

Delaware

Netherlands (The)

Belgium

Delaware

Italy

United Arab Emirates






Subsidiary and Name Under Which It Does Business

Jurisdiction in Which Organized

Whirlpool Europe Srl (Ukraine Representative Office
Whirlpool Finance B.V.

Whirlpool Finance Overseas Ltd.

Whirlpool Financial Corporation

Whirlpool Financial Corporation International
Whirlpool Floor Care Corp.

Whirlpool France SAS

Whirlpool Germany GmbH

Whirlpool Greater China Inc.

Whirlpool Greater China Inc. (Hong Kong Branch)
Whirlpool Guatemala, S.A.

Whirlpool Hellas SA

Whirlpool Holdings Corporation

Whirlpool Home Appliance (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Whirlpool Home Appliances Limited Liability Company
Whirlpool Hungarian Trading Limited Liability Compg
Whirlpool Iberia, Sucursal en Espana de Whirlpootdpe s.r.l. (Spanish Branch)
Whirlpool India Holdings Limited

Whirlpool India Holdings Limited (India Branch)
Whirlpool of India Limited

Whirlpool Insurance Company, Ltd.

Whirlpool Insurance Company, Ltd. (Vermont Branch)
Whirlpool Internacional S. de R.L. de C.V.

Whirlpool International GmbH

Whirlpool International Holdings S.ar.l.

Whirlpool International Manufacturing S.ar.l.
Whirlpool Ireland Limited

Whirlpool Japan Inc.

Whirlpool Latin America Corporation

Whirlpool Latvia S.I.A.

Whirlpool Ltd Belgrade

Whirlpool Luxembourg Holdings S.ar.l.

Whirlpool Luxembourg Investments S.ar.l.
Whirlpool Luxembourg S.ar.l.

Whirlpool Luxembourg Ventures S.ar.l.

Whirlpool Management Services Sagl|

Whirlpool Maroc S. ar.l.

Whirlpool Mauritius Limited

Whirlpool MEEA JLT

Whirlpool Mexico, S.A. de C.V.

Whirlpool Mexico Holdings LLC

Whirlpool Mexico Ventures LLC

Whirlpool Microwave Products Development Limited
Whirlpool NAAG Holdings Corporation

Whirlpool NAR Holdings, LLC

Whirlpool Nederland B.V.

Whirlpool Nordic A/S

Whirlpool Nordic AB

Whirlpool Nordic AB (Sweden's Denmark Branch)

Ukraine

Netherlands (The)

Bermuda
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
France
Germany
Delaware
Hong Kong
Guatemala
Greece
Delaware
China
Turkey
Hungary
Spain
Delaware
India
India
Bermuda
Vermont
Mexico
Switzerland
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Ireland
Delaware
Delaware
Latvia
Serbia
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Switzerland
Morocco
Mauritius

United Arab Emirates

Mexico
Delaware
Delaware
Hong Kong
Delaware
Delaware

Netherlands (The)

Denmark
Sweden
Denmark






Subsidiary and Name Under Which It Does Business

Jurisdiction in Which Organized

Whirlpool Nordic OY

Whirlpool Norge AS

Whirlpool Oceania Inc.

Whirlpool Overseas Holdings, LLC

Whirlpool Overseas Hong Kong Limited
Whirlpool Overseas Manufacturing S.ar.l.
Whirlpool Peru S.R.L.

Whirlpool Polska S.A.

Whirlpool Polska S.A. (Warsaw Branch)
Whirlpool Portugal Electrodomesticos, Lda.
Whirlpool Product Development (Shenzhen) Compamyited
Whirlpool Properties, Inc.

Whirlpool Puntana S.A.

Whirlpool R&D s.r.l.

Whirlpool Realty Corporation

Whirlpool Romania s.r.l.

Whirlpool S.A.

Whirlpool SSC Limited

Whirlpool Slovakia spol. s.r.o.

Whirlpool South Africa (Proprietary) Limited
Whirlpool Southeast Asia Pte

Whirlpool Southeast Asia Pte (Hong Kong Branch)
Whirlpool Sweden Aktiebolag

Whirlpool Taiwan Co., Ltd.

Whirlpool Technologies, LLC

Whirlpool UK Pension Scheme Trustee Limited
Whirlpool Ukraine LLC

Finland
Norway
Delaware
Delaware
Hong Kong
Luxembourg
Peru

Poland
Poland
Portugal
China
Michigan
Argentina
Italy
Delaware
Romania
Brazil
Ireland
Slovak Republic
South Africa
Singapore
Hong Kong
Sweden
Taiwan
Michigan
England
Ukraine



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irféHewing Registration Statements:

Registration Statements of Whirlpool Corporation

Exhibit 23

33-34037 333-90602 333-150942
33-40249 333-125260 333-157392
333-02827 333-128686 333-166484
333-66211 333-131627 333-181339
333-77167 333-143372 333-187948
333-42322

Registration Statements of Maytag Corporation

333-62980

Registration Statements of Whirlpool Corporation

pertaining to the Whirlpool Savings Plan

33-26680 33-53196

Registration Statements of Whirlpool Corporation

pertaining to the Whirlpool 401(k) Retirement Plan

333-66163 333-138711 333-179695

Registration Statement of Whirlpool Corporation
pertaining to the Maytag Corporation Salary SaviRtgs, Maytag Corporation Deferred
Compensation Plan and Maytag Corporation Deferr@aiznsation Plan Il

333-132875

Registration Statements of Maytag Corporation
pertaining to the Maytag Corporation Deferred Congag¢ion and Salary Savings Plans

333-102002 333-101995

333-121368

of our reports dated February 18, 2014, with respet¢he consolidated financial statements and dudleeof Whirlpool Corporation and t
effectiveness of internal control over financiapoeting of Whirlpool Corporation, included in thfnnual Report (Form 16&) for the yea
ended December 31, 2013.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Chicago, lllinois
February 18, 2014



Exhibit 24

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of thedemsigned, being a director or officer, or both, WHIRLPOOL
CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (hereinaftdtedathe “Corporation”),does hereby constitute and appoint JEFF M. FETTi@
KIRSTEN J. HEWITT, with full power to each of thetm act alone, as the true and lawful attorneys agehts of the undersigned, with
power of substitution and resubstitution to eackaifl attorneys, to execute, file or deliver angl alh instruments and to do all acts and th
which said attorneys and agents, or any of theramdadvisable to enable the Corporation to complih whe Securities Act of 1933,
amended, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, anded, and any requirements of the Securities awthadhge Commission in resp
thereof, in connection with the filing under saielc8rities Exchange Act of the Corporation's AnriRaport on Form 16 for the year ende
December 31, 2013, including specifically, but with limitation of the general authority hereby geath the power and authority to sign hi
her name as a director or officer, or both, of@weporation, as indicated below opposite his ordigmature, to the Annual Report on Form 1C
K, or any amendment, post-effective amendmentapeps supplemental thereto to be filed in respesaid Annual Report on Form K-anc
each of the undersigned does hereby fully ratify eonfirm all that said attorneys and agents, grafrthem, or the substitute of any of th
shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned hasailtied these presents, as of the 18th day of Ber2014.

Signature Title
ISl JEFF M. FETTIG Director, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executdféicer
Jeff M. Fettig (Principal Executive Officer)
/S MICHAEL A. TODMAN Director and President, Whirlpool
Michael A. Todman International
IS/ LARRY M. VENTURELLI Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
Larry M. Venturelli (Principal Financial Officer)
/S/ CHRISTOPHER J. KUEHN Vice President and Corporate Controller
Christopher J. Kuehn (Principal Accounting Officer)
/S/ SAMUEL R. ALLEN Director

Samuel R. Allen

/S/ GARY T. DICAMILLO Director
Gary T. DiCamillo

/S/ DIANE M. DIETZ Director
Diane M. Dietz
/S/ MICHAEL F. JOHNSTON Director

Michael F. Johnston

/S/ WILLIAM T. KERR Director
William T. Kerr
/S/ JOHN D. LIU Director
John D. Liu

/SI HARISH MANWANI Director




Harish Manwani

/SI WILLIAM D. PEREZ

William D. Perez

/SI MICHAEL D. WHITE

Michael D. White

Director

Director



Exhibit 31(a)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA$-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeff M. Fettig, certify that:

1.

2.

Date

| have reviewed this annual report on FornK1&F Whirlpool Corporatior

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the

period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant, as of, amgdthe periods presented in this report

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rule
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdar caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control ovearfitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presénthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden!

functions):

€) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisattifole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

:February 18, 2014

/s/ JEFF M. FETTIG

Name: Jeff M. Fettig

Title:

Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31(b)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA$-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Larry M. Venturelli, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on FornK1&F Whirlpool Corporatior

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant, as of, amgdthe periods presented in this report

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rule
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdar caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control ovearfitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presénthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden!
functions):

€) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisattifole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date:February 18, 2014
/s LARRY M. VENTURELLI
Name: Larry M. Venturelli

Title:

Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32

Certifications Pursuant to

18 U.S.C. Section 1350,

as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fhirlpool Corporation (the “Company”) for the yeended December 31, 2013 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ortd#tte hereof (the “Report”), Jeff M. Fettig, as Glieecutive Officer of Whirlpool, and

Larry M. Venturelli, as Chief Financial Officer &¥hirlpool, each hereby certifies, pursuant to 18.G. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, tiaahis knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; an
2. The information contained in the Report fandpresents, in all material respects, the finaraalition and results of operations of
Whirlpool.

s/ JEFF M. FETTIG
Name: Jeff M. Fettig

Chairman of the Board and

Title:  Chief Executive Officer
Date: February 18, 2014

/sl LARRY M. VENTURELLI
Name: Larry M. Venturelli

Executive Vice President and

Title: Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 18, 2014



